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©Zheng Chongbin

“The Landscape Can be Viewed in Four Ways” by Shanghai-
born artist Zheng Chongbin is featured as the cover piece of
this year’s annual report. Born in 1961, Zheng now resides
in California, US and has studios in China and the US. He
graduated from the National Academy of Fine Arts in Hangzhou
in 1984 and received his MFA from the San Francisco Academy
of Arts and the San Francisco Art Institute in 1991. Deeply
thoughtful and thoroughly bicultural, Zheng constantly lifts the
boundaries of Chinese ink painting.

“The Landscape Can be Viewed in Four Ways” invites viewers to
delight in the mix of the Chinese ink and acrylic and the textures
created where they merge in each of the four quadrants. This
large-scale artwork also suggests viewers to consider from
different perspectives, value multiple angles and embody
receptivity and broad-mindedness, all of which resonate strongly
with the business philosophy of Gold Peak Group.
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GROUP PROFILE HEfH7T

Gold Peak Group is an Asian multinational group which owns
high-quality industrial investments via GP Industries Limited,
its major industrial investment vehicle. The Group has built
renowned brand names for its major product categories, such as
GP batteries, KEF premium consumer speakers and CELESTION
professional speaker drivers.

The parent company, Gold Peak Industries (Holdings) Limited,
was established in 1964 and has been listed on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong since 1984. Currently, Gold Peak holds
an approximately 85.5%* interest in GP Industries while GP
Industries holds an approximately 64.9%* interest in GP Batteries
International Limited. GP Industries and GP Batteries are publicly

listed in Singapore.

Including all divisions, the Group's turnover for the financial
year 2016-2017 amounted to HK$5.8 billion and its total
assets exceeded HK$6.1 billion. Including the major operations
of its various divisions, the Group currently employs 8,200

people worldwide.

* As at 20 June 2017
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GROUP STRUCTURE £HREI%#8

Gold Peak Industries
(Holdings) Limited

UTE (£E) BRAT
Hong Kong-listed &i&

85.5%"
GP Industries Limited
GP TXERRAF
Singapore-listed AN L
64.9%"
GP Batteries Electronics & Other Industrial
International Acoustics Investments
Limited
SIS HEEERAT EFEMREER Hih TERE

e Primary specialty
—RIEHFEE

e Primary cylindrical
—RMEAFEIE

e Rechargeable & others
REMREAM

Singapore-listed i3k L

* Percentage stated denotes respective shareholding held by Gold Peak or GP Industries as at 20 June 2017
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FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL HIGHLIGHTS

B R AR TR

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

Year ended 31 March (HK$ million)

Turnover
Total profit for the year
Earnings per share (Hong Kong cents)

Dividends per share (Hong Kong cents)

TeRRR

#E3IA3NHILEE (B8HER)

—E

s g
BEERF &)
BERALE G

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

At 31 March (HK$ million)

FEMBRRE
3B 318 (H&EET)

Equity attributable to owners of the Company KATIHEE AEERES
Total assets REE

Capital expenditure BT

Ratios tb=E

At 31 March ®3B31H

Current assets : Current liabilities (ratio)
Inventory turnover period (months)

Net bank borrowings : Total equity (ratio)

REEE T RBAME (LX)

FEmES (B)

SRITIEEFE * BAE (thX)

- The Group - &E
- The Company — AR
Other Information HithgH
At 31 March M®3A31H
The Company & its subsidiaries: KARKEMBAT :
Number of employees EEAH
- China — FE
- Hong Kong - &8
- Other countries — HttE%

Total area (sq m)
— China
- Hong Kong

— Other countries

#emEfa (FI3K)
— FPE
- &E
— HttBEz

2016

5,795.5
18.7
2.4

3.5

1,323.5
5,882.9
197.1

1.2
2.5

0.45
0.44

7,000
450
800

8,250

301,000
11,000
38,000

350,000



Turnover by Business
Year ended 31 March 2017

TEEFZIEERE
HE2017F3831HLEE

73.2%

26.8%

Batteries &t 73.2%
Electronics &% 26.8%

Turnover by Location
Year ended 31 March 2017

SHEZERED
HE20175F3831HLEEE

1.5%

Asia ZEIM 48.1%
Americas EM 25.9%
Europe EXM  245%
Others Hfth 1.5%

Total Assets by Location
As at 31 March 2017

HitEZ REED

72017438318

3.3%
4.9% 2

14.8%

Hong Kong & China &&R$E
Rest of Asia HEfthZZMEIZR
Europe B

Americas ZE

77.0%
14.8%
4.9%
3.3%

Profit before Taxation by Business
Attributable to Gold Peak*

Year ended 31 March 2017

FEEFHZIEREF
HE2017F3831HILFE
60.8%
39.2%

Batteries &t  60.8%
. # Excluding other expenses
Electronics F 39.2% SREtEMh




FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL HIGHLIGHTS (conTp)

BT RARETHER (|)

Turnover
Year ended 31 March (HK$ million)
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HE3H 31 HULEFE (BBHET)
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Profit by Business*
Year ended 31 March (HK$ million)
REEHEEN Y

BE3H 31 HLFE (BBET)

——QO— Batteries Eith
()= Electronics BF

=——Q=—=Other Industrial Investments
Hith T¥#%E

# Total net profits by respective business (on a 100% basis)

BRI BRI (R 100% BEHE)

* Excluding other expenses
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1800

Market Capitalization

At 31 March (HK$ million) )
miE 1400
®3A31H (B8%ET) 1200
1000

800

I Gold Peak £ILT# 500
I GP Industries GP T# 00
I GPBoatteries £ILE .
0

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
Profit (Loss) Attributable 60 40.3 (127.9) 51.5 18.7 201
to Owners of the Company
Year ended 31 March (HK$ million) 30 I
FABEEAEGRET (8518) 0 0 1
BE3IA 3 HILEE (BE8ET)
30)
(60)
(90)
(120)
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
Earnings (Loss) Per Share "
and Dividends Per Share
Year ended 31 March (Hong Kong cents) 5
SREH (5E) RERIRE I '
5.1 5.0 4.0 6.6 5.0 2.4 3.5 2.6.2.4
HZE 3 A 31 HLEE (L) 0
(16.3)
®)
I tarnings (Loss) per share 10
SIREF (B8)
I Dividends per share (15)
BIRER

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017




10

TEN-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY +FE 75 E

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
Year ended 31 March (HK$ million)

Turnover

Operating profit (loss)

Share of results of associates

Share of results of a joint venture

Profit (Loss) from ordinary activities before taxation

FeRaR
HE3A 31 BILFE (BET)

FESC

mEEN (B18)

FHEBE ARIRE
Fria—FaEhEEE
BRERRIRE RGN (B18)

2016

5,795.5

76.6
128.2

204.8
(86.5)

118.3

18.7
99.6

118.3

Taxation #HiE

Profit (Loss) for the year 255 (F8)
Attributable to: B

Owners of the Company KANFFEBA
Non-controlling interests PlEudig
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position SF&BERIRE

At 31 March (HK$ million) M3A31H (B&EST)
Investment properties wEME

Property, plant and equipment M ~ B R
Prepaid lease payments AN HEERIE
Interests in associates Frib & AR
Interest in a joint venture Frib—EaehiEms
Available-for-sale investments AHHERE
Investment in convertible note AR ERRE
Long-term receivables REBEWERIA
Intangible assets W EE

Goodwill mE

Deferred taxation assets RIEBIEE E
Deposits and prepayments e RIANFIR
Current assets MENEE

Assets classified as held for sale NERFHEEE
Total assets REE

Borrowings EEN

Notes =&

Deferred taxation liabilities REBIESE
Obligation under finance leases MBHEEE

Current liabilities mEa A

Liabilities associated with assets classified as held for sale NERFHEEEZEBER
Total liabilities RarE

Equity attributable to owners of the Company P/NCTE 2PNy
Non-controlling interests PlEudiv g2

Note: The financial information from 2008 to 2013 had been restated to reflect changes in accounting policies in 2014 resulting from adoption of

the new Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards effective in that year.

9.6
1,393.4

1,3335

62.3

6.4
102.1
21.5
24.7
2,929.4

5,882.9

832.6
18.7
0.5
2,471.3

3,323.1

2,559.8

1,323.5
1,236.3

2,559.8




2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
(restated) (restated) (restated) (restated) (restated) (restated)

(EHRY) (EHRF) (EHHRY) (EHHRY) (EHRY) (EHRY)

5,855.7 5,849.3 6,020.6 5,810.5 5,859.0 5,379.7 5,984.3 6,624.0
203.8 (322.0) 422 (5.3) 73.4 157.3 (99.7) (32.5)
96.3 109.5 14.6 314 113.5 140.4 106.4 184.1

- 16.5 52.4 74.5 77.1 94.4 - -

300.1 (196.0) 109.2 100.6 264.0 392.1 6.7 151.6
(114.3) (75.6) (42.8) (69.0) (68.8) (77.8) (49.1) (55.5)
185.8 (271.6) 66.4 316 195.2 3143 (42.4) 96.1
51.5 (127.9) 403 (25.0) 85.1 128.2 (65.3) 70.4
134.3 (143.7) 26.1 56.6 110.1 186.1 229 25.7
185.8 271.6) 66.4 316 195.2 3143 (42.4) 96.1
9.9 411 58.4 74.2 82.4 7.2 109.9 124.2
1,409.2 1,495.5 1,601.5 1,676.5 1,718.3 1,606.6 1,639.9 1,754.2
- - - - - - 246 36.1
1,318.9 1,346.0 1,298.7 1,308.8 1,271.7 1,300.8 1,436.1 1,400.7
- - - 265.8 170.5 153.0 - -

61.1 75.8 69.9 73.1 154.4 206.5 309.1 460.1

- - 408 53.9 - - - -

- - - 29.2 130.7 62.1 46.8 3717

10.6 15.0 19.7 26.0 40.4 63.1 926 125.0
118.5 127.2 158.8 168.0 175.1 171.0 163.4 138.1
206 35.1 289 234 23.0 17.2 13.7 16.7
8.6 1.0 2.8 4.0 - 6.9 - 81.2
2,703.7 2,878.6 2,997.4 3,201.2 3,215.8 3,337.9 3,519.1 4,259.8
0.4 227 330.4 - - - - -
5,661.5 6,038.0 6,607.3 6,904.1 6,982.3 6,932.3 7,355.2 8,767.8
524.9 503.7 708.0 674.9 684.2 516.9 836.6 2,083.7
26.8 39.0 387 43.9 44.2 39.8 33.8 26
0.7 0.7 2.7 3.2 1.6 1.6 5.2 4.5
2,371.3 2,667.9 2,749.1 3,054.7 3,101.3 3,329.1 3,627.5 3,479.5
- - 78 - - - - -
2,923.7 3,211.3 3,506.3 3,776.7 3,831.3 3,887.4 4,503.1 5,610.3
2,737.8 2,826.7 3,101.0 3,127.4 3,151.0 3,044.9 2,852.1 3,157.5
1,406.0 1,380.9 1,505.5 1,508.2 1,542.2 1,445.5 1,137.3 1,354.7
1,331.8 1,445.8 1,595.5 1,619.2 1,608.8 1,599.4 1,714.8 1,802.8
2,737.8 2,826.7 3,101.0 3,127.4 3,151.0 3,044.9 2,852.1 3,157.5

FiEE: 2008 = 2013 FHBERCWENRS SURMRRRAR 2014 FAEW BB BREENEL o GHBRE
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT XEHEE

Market conditions for the financial year 2016-17 (“FY2017")
remained highly competitive. Slower market growth together
with intense competition put pressure on sales performance.
As a result, the Group maintained a steady level of turnover.
GP Batteries continued with the strategy of restructuring
its manufacturing facilities which affected its short-term
performance both in sales and profitability. However, the
production capacity expansion in Malaysia and Vietnam is
expected to enhance business growth in the coming period.

2016-2017 BAMF E R s FHAIFRRIZL - migiE I8 E R
Kzl FHHERITBARE ] - Rt EE & X R R
SEKT - LB HEFE R R EAVRRS R ETHAH
ERBFIRE - AT BRI Mz EREIE 0 - FaRA RIS
REIRSEEER-



Results and Dividend

Consolidated turnover for FY2017 increased by 0.5% to HK$5,823
million. Profit attributable to shareholders of the Company was
HK$20.1 million compared to HK$18.7 million last year. Earnings
per share were 2.6 HK cents, as compared with 2.4 HK cents for

the previous year.

The Board proposed a final dividend of 1.2 HK cents (2016: 1.0
HK cent) per share, making a total of 2.4 HK cents (2016: 3.5 HK

cents) per share for the whole year.

Operations

Despite the soft global market and intense price competition

during the year, the Group maintained a stable turnover.

Revenue from the electronics and acoustics business was
steady for FY2017. During the year, KEF collaborated with
Porsche Design, a world-renowned premium brand, to launch
the headphones and Bluetooth speaker series which received
encouraging response from the market. The partnership has
enabled KEF to open up new market segments which will be
a new channel for business development. KEF will continue to
focus on growing the new media product category for the fast
growing market while maintaining its leading position in the

premium loudspeaker market.

Celestion will continue with its strategy to expand its business in
professional speaker drivers for the installed music system market
while strengthening its leadership in the premium guitar speaker

driver and portable public address speaker driver market.

The automotive wire harness business has successfully penetrated
deeper into the China domestic market, striving a more balanced
sales ratio between the China and overseas markets. It will
continue to diversify its product applications to tap new business

opportunities. Looking forward, the business segment will keep

FERIR

R20V7THBEE SEEEE LA
0.5% £ 5823 BT - AARIKEE
EEFl /201088t ZFRAHA
1,870 BB - BREXREFN R 2.6 8
il KR 2.4 B4l

EXZREFIRBERPKEEGR12E
il EFERSK1.0B - 2FEREE
B 24780l - REERIREM 3.5 W -

FHERR

FA - BRI BRIREREI M
AU RENREERRENERE -

017 FEETERMGBREXEMH
FRE - W ' KEF HREERHME 5 H @
k% Porsche Design &1E HEHERA K
EFBBERAY > BEXmBEL - 18
BFERKEFRE2FME  KAER
BRNGHEE HHEREEZN™
5% KEF GEEEPERFERES
FASEFHESRERBRMENES
AL -

Celestion 2t BEHRANEFTE R MK
REXGRERBHEXE > ARKZEH
EemEtEERReEREBATE
BB ARRE ARG -
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™% > RELEITHBNEELXRER
T3 o It SETE S M AR 1R PR A S 2R R LURE
hELEH RERK XK EHRE
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (contp) FEREHEE (&)

on expanding from the tier-2 automotive component supplier
business to the tier-1 market for direct supply to automotive
manufacturers. To cope with the steady growth, the Group has a
plan to build a new factory to cater for the additional production

capacity needed for future development.

Global demands for primary batteries and Nickel Metal Hydride
rechargeable batteries were slow-growing. The unsold capacity
within the industry drove keen competition on price. The
increase in commodity price will also impact on GP Batteries’
manufacturing costs. During the year, growth for primary battery
business was slow while revenue for rechargeable was affected
by the expiry of a contract of a customer with the Taiwan plant
which has ceased operation. An increase in sales of portable
PowerBank was recorded following the growing popularity of
mobile gadgets. However, rapid price erosion in this market

segment remains a challenge.

To mitigate the rising labour costs in China, GP Batteries
has been actively diversifying its manufacturing bases to the
nearby regions. At the same time, it has also consolidated the
smaller plants with the larger ones for economies of scale. We
believe the strategy of enhancing productivity and streamlining
operations will effectively control production costs and improve

turnover in the near future.

Outlook

Consumer demand in the US is expected to remain healthy
and China will remain stable. The Europe market is expected
to remain soft. The competitive business environment will be

impacted by the weak Euro and British Pound.

The Group will continue its strategy of building the brands by
strengthening their global presence and recognition. During the
financial year, more effort and investment have been made on
promoting the GP and KEF brands world-wide which we believe

will enhance mid to long-term business growth.

FoRAEREENERMLERS - R
BYRER > SEFEEEZ—TR IR
BN RIREBEINEEERNTR °
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EHERSRERNIE -
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BHNHERICEEREBEMOME
(7] B 7% 35 BXUAR AR A /N BU T R B K A
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BA - SR ERER -
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Development of e-commerce will be one of the Group’s major
focuses in order to expand online sales channels to cope with
the changing consumer behavior. It will also continue with
further automation of its manufacturing facilities and expansion

of distribution networks in key markets.

Vote of Thanks

On behalf of the Board, | would like to extend my appreciation to
the employees for their diligence and my fellow Board members
and management team for their commitment during the year. |

also thank our customers, suppliers, shareholders and bankers for

their continuous support.

I

Victor LO Chung Wing

Chairman & Chief Executive

20 June 2017
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS ##5[EIREA

Overview

During the financial year 2016-2017, global market remained
competitive. The weak Euro and British Pound exerted pressure
on the sales performance in those regions. The weak consumer
demand and excess production capacity led to intense price
competition. Nevertheless, the Group’s business maintained steady
performance despite the challenging market conditions.

GP Industries
(85.5% owned by Gold Peak as at 31 March 2017)

For the financial year ended 31 March 2017 (“FY2017"), GP
Industries’ revenue was S$1,037.6 million, comparable to the
S$1,038.3 million reported for the financial year ended 31 March
2016 (“FY2016").

During the year, GP Industries continued with its strategy to invest in
brands and in strengthening its global distribution network which
incurred increased distribution costs. GP Batteries International
Limited (“GP Batteries”), GP Industries’ listed subsidiary, started
expanding some of its manufacturing facilities and consolidated
smaller factories resulting in closure costs. Nevertheless, some gains
from disposal of property, plant and equipment were recorded.

For FY2017, profit before taxation decreased by 2.9% to S$55.3
million, compared to S$$57.0 million for FY2016. Profit after
taxation attributable to equity holders of GP Industries for FY2017
decreased by 18.3% to S$18.7 million, compared to $$22.8 million
reported for FY2016.

Electronics and acoustics business

During the year, demand for professional audio products remained
soft and competition intensified. Revenue from the business
segment grew by 1.2% when compared to FY2016. Despite
challenging market conditions, sales of electronics products grew
by 3.2%. The new factory extension in Huizhou, China commenced
operation in the last quarter of FY2017 and is expected to start
contributing to the Group'’s profitability.

Revenue from the acoustics business increased by 1.8%. Sales to
the US and Europe markets increased while Asia market remained
flat. KEF gained market share in the premium component
loudspeaker category in the past few years but this market category
has been slowly shrinking in some key global markets. To develop
new business drivers, KEF has been expanding its presence in the
new media market since a few years ago and has received good
response amidst intense competition in this market.

Profit contribution by this segment decreased by 10.8% in FY2017.
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Automotive wire harness business

Sales of the automotive wire harness business grew by 3.5%
in FY2017. Sales to the domestic China market increased by
28.2% while sales to the US decreased by 4.9%. The decrease
in the US was mainly due to the car models that the Group has
been supplying have approached the end of their production
cycles. Profit contribution for the year decreased by 28.3% when
compared to FY2016, which included a write-back of $S$1.3 million
unclaimed warranty cost provision related to the disposal of a joint
venture in FY2013.

Battery business
(“GP Batteries” 64.9% owned by GP Industries as at 31 March 2017)

Revenue of GP Batteries for FY2017 dropped by 0.7% to $$759.8
million. Sales of primary batteries increased by 1.3% while sales
of rechargeable batteries decreased by 10.4%. The decrease in
the revenue of rechargeable batteries was due to the expiry of
a contract with a major customer of the Taiwan plant, which has
ceased production.

In geographical terms, battery sales in the Americas and Asia
decreased by 24.3% and 2.4% respectively while sales in Europe
increased by 32.2%. The decrease in sales in the Americas and
increase in sales in Europe were largely due to the relocation of the
procurement office of a major customer from the US to Europe.

GP Batteries set up a new plant in Vietnam which opened in
March 2017 and an extended plant of the Malaysia plant also
started operation in February this year. Some smaller plants were
closed and the manufacturing capacities were merged with
the larger factories for economies of scale. Closure costs were
incurred but income was recorded for the disposal of property,
plant and equipment.

During FY2017, GP Batteries reported foreign exchange gains
of $$7.4 million, compared to S$3.5 million reported in FY2016.
Performance of GP Batteries’ associates improved and profit
contribution increased from $$4.9 million last year to $$6.8 million
for FY2017.

GP Batteries reported a profit after taxation attributable to its
equity holders of S$3.5 million, compared to S$2.4 million for
FY2016.
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (contp) SEF5[0]EE (&)

Other industrial investments

In FY2017, despite a decrease in revenue, Meiloon Industrial
Co., Ltd. contributed more profit before taxation, due mainly
to production of higher value-added products. Linkz Industries
Limited reported both revenue and profit growth despite a more
competitive market for the cable products. This segment reported
a 37.4% increase in profit contribution.

Financial Review

During the year, the Group's net bank borrowings increased by
HK$133 million to HK$1,279 million. As at 31 March 2017, the
aggregate of the Group’s shareholders’ funds and non-controlling
interests was HK$2,454 million and the Group's gearing ratio (the
ratio of consolidated net bank borrowings to shareholders’ funds
and non-controlling interests) was 0.52 (31 March 2016: 0.45).
The gearing ratios of the Company, GP Industries and GP Batteries
were 0.47 (31 March 2016: 0.44), 0.30 (31 March 2016: 0.25) and
0.20 (31 March 2016: 0.16) respectively.

At 31 March 2017, 62% (31 March 2016: 61%) of the Group's bank
borrowings was revolving or repayable within one year whereas
38% (31 March 2016: 39%) was repayable from one to five years.
Most of these bank borrowings are in US dollars, Singapore dollars
and Hong Kong dollars.

The Group's exposure to foreign currency arises mainly from the net
cash flow and the translation of net monetary assets or liabilities of
its overseas subsidiaries. The Group continued to manage foreign
exchange risks prudently. Forward contracts, borrowings in local
currencies and local sourcing have been arranged to minimize the
impact of currency fluctuation.
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EVENTS AND ACHIEVEMENTS £EH
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2016

April

KEF M400 headphone was presented the “Red Dot Award 2016" by Red
Dot Design Museum, Germany.

August
KEF MUO wireless Bluetooth speaker was awarded the “Golden Ear
Awards 2016" by The Absolute Sound, US.

September

KEF collaborated with premium-lifestyle brand Porsche Design
to develop a trio of Hi-Fi systems embodying the refined style of
Porsche Design and the peerless sound of KEF — GRAVITY ONE
Bluetooth speaker, MOTION ONE in-ear headphone, and SPACE
ONE active noise-cancelling headphone.

October
KEF EGG wireless digital music system was named the “Best Desktop
Speakers” by What Hi-Fi? Sound & Vision, UK.

A pop-up store was set up at the Hong Kong International Airport
featuring the iconic KEF MUON loudspeaker and colorful MUO launch
edition wireless speakers.

KEF launched LS50 Wireless, a complete and fully active music system, in
celebration of its 55th anniversary.

December

Three factories in China were awarded “Hong Kong-Guangdong Cleaner
Production Partner (Manufacturing)” while GP Batteries International Ltd.
("GP Batteries") was awarded “Hong Kong-Guangdong Cleaner Production
Partner (Supply Chain)” by the Environment Bureau of Hong Kong and the
Economic and Information Commission of Guangdong Province, China.
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2017

January

GP Batteries was awarded the “Hong Kong Most Admired Knowledge
Enterprise (MAKE) Award” by The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and
Knowledge Management and Innovation Research Centre to recognize its
achievement in knowledge management in operations.

February
KEF BLADE TWO Hi-Fi speaker was awarded “Editor’s Choice Award” by
Hi-Fi Choice, UK.

Nielsen's MarketTrack Report ranked GP as the No.1 brand in sales volume
in the Alkaline battery segment as well as the rechargeable battery
segment in Hong Kong for the thirteenth consecutive year.

GP Batteries expanded its plant in Malaysia.

March
The new plant of GP Batteries (Vietnam) LLC, a joint venture with Hanoi
Battery Joint Stock Company, opened and started operations in Vietnam.

To follow the strategy of streamlining operation, battery manufacturing
facilities in Shanghai, China were moved to Ningbo and a new wholly-
owned subsidiary, Ningbo Bi Ba Energy Ltd, was incorporated to continue
the operation.

April
The collection of flashlights, Beam, was presented the “Red Dot Award -
Product Design 2017" by Red Dot Design Museum, Germany.

May

GP Batteries received the "CSR Advocate Mark” from Hong Kong
Quality Assurance Agency for the fourth year to recognize its
commitment in practising good social responsibilities.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
ESRERERE

Executive Directors

Victor LO Chung Wing GBM, GBS, OBE, JP, aged 67, joined
Gold Peak Group in 1972 and has been appointed the Chairman
and Chief Executive since 1990. He is also the chairman and
chief executive officer of GP Industries Limited and GP Batteries
International Limited. Mr Lo is a member of the board of directors
of Hong Kong Design Centre. He is a non-official member of the
Economic Development Commission and is also the convenor of its
Working Group on Manufacturing Industries, Innovative Technology,
and Cultural and Creative Industries. He is a member of the board of
the West Kowloon Cultural District Authority in Hong Kong, and the
chairman of M Plus Museum Limited. In addition, he is a director of
PMQ Management Company Limited and the chairman of board of
directors of Hotel ICON Limited, which is the teaching and research
hotel under The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Mr Lo graduated
from the Institute of Design of lllinois Institute of Technology, US
with a Bachelor of Science degree in Product Design. He also holds
an Honorary Doctorate in Design from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. He is the father of Ms Grace Lo Kit Yee.

LEUNG Pak Chuen aged 67, joined Gold Peak Group in 1981 and
has been appointed an Executive Director since 1990. He is also
the Deputy Chief Executive of the Company and the executive
vice chairman of GP Industries Limited and an executive director
of GP Batteries International Limited. Mr Leung has been in the
electronics manufacturing industry for 45 years and has played an
important role in setting up the Group’s major joint ventures in
China in mid 1980s. He is a member of The Chartered Institute of
Marketing, UK and The International Institute of Management. He
graduated from Chu Hai College, Hong Kong with a Bachelor’s
degree in Business Administration.

Richard KU Yuk Hing aged 69, joined Gold Peak Group in 1978
and has been appointed an Executive Director since 1990. He is
also the vice chairman of GP Batteries International Limited. He
has over 35 years’ experience of international marketing in the
battery industry. Mr Ku graduated from Sophia University, Japan
with a Bachelor of Science degree in Economics.

Andrew CHUANG Siu Leung SBS, JP, PhD, aged 69, has
been appointed an Executive Director since 1992. He is also an
executive director and chief risk officer of GP Industries Limited.
He graduated from Queen Mary College of the University of
London and holds a first class honour in Bachelor’s degree in
Electrical (Electronics) Engineering and a Doctoral degree in
Microwave Engineering.
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Brian LI Yiu Cheung DBA, aged 64, has been appointed an
Executive Director since 2015. Dr Li joined Gold Peak Group in
1981 and is currently the managing director and an executive
director of GP Industries Limited. He has been engaging in the
electronic engineering and manufacturing industry internationally
and in China for over 30 years. He is the vice chairman of The
Hong Kong Electronic Industries Association and council member
of the Hong Kong Electronics Industry Council of the Federation
of Hong Kong Industries. He is also an honorary advisor of the
Institute for Supply Management Hong Kong, a member of the
Hong Kong-France Business Partnership — Hong Kong section
and a member of the Electronics Cluster Expert Panel and the
Evaluation Panel for Soft-landing Programme of Hong Kong
Science and Technology Parks Corporation. Dr Li serves as the
chairman of the Advisory Committee for the Department of
Electronic Engineering, a member of the Advisory Committee
for the Department of System Engineering and Engineering
Management and the Co-operative Education Centre of the
City University of Hong Kong. He is also a member of the
Industrial Advisory Committee for the Department of Industrial
Engineering and Logistics Management of the Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology, a member of the Advisory
Committee for the Department of Electronic Engineering of
the Chinese University of Hong Kong and a member of the
Electronic and Information Engineering Programme Board of the
Hong Kong Institute of Vocational Education. Dr Li is a fellow of
The Hong Kong Institution of Engineers and holds a Bachelor’s
degree in Electrical Engineering from the University of British
Columbia, Canada, a Master’s degree in Global Business with
Dean’s Honour from The Chinese University of Hong Kong
and a Doctor of Business Administration degree from the City
University of Hong Kong.

Non-Executive Directors

LUI Ming Wah SBS, JP, PhD, aged 79, has been appointed
an Independent Non-Executive Director since 1995. Dr Lui is
currently an honorary chairman of The Hong Kong Electronic
Industries Association, an honorary president of the Chinese
Manufacturers' Association of Hong Kong, and an advisor of Hong
Kong International Arbitration Centre. He is also a member of the
Hong Kong Economic Development Commission. He obtained his
Master’s and Doctoral degrees from the University of New South
Wales in Australia and the University of Saskatchewan in Canada
respectively. He is currently the managing director of Keystone
Electronics Co. Ltd. He is also an independent non-executive
director of AV Concept Holdings Limited, L.K. Technology Holdings
Limited, S.A.S. Dragon Holdings Limited and Asian Citrus Holdings
Limited, all of which are companies listed in Hong Kong.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (conTD)

EERSHREEE &)

Frank CHAN Chi Chung ACA, FCCA, FCPA, CPA, aged 63, has
been appointed an Independent Non-Executive Director since
2004. He is currently a group executive director of Hong Kong-
listed Techtronic Industries Company Limited. Mr Chan is a fellow
member of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a
member of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales. He is qualified to practise as a Certified Public Accountant
in Hong Kong.

CHAN Kei Biu PhD, aged 70, has been appointed an
Independent Non-Executive Director since 2005. Prof Chan is the
honorary chairman of both The Hong Kong Electronic Industries
Association and the Hong Kong Green Manufacturing Alliance,
a member of both the Executive Committee of the Hong Kong
Electronics Industry Council of the Federation of Hong Kong
Industries and the Intellectual Property Assessment Committee of
the Innovation and Technology Department Office of The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University. Prof Chan is also an honorary president
of both the Hong Kong Association for the Advancement of Science
and Technology and the Hong Kong Mould and Product Technology
Association. In addition, he is the industry chairman of electronics
industry of the Hong Kong Federation of Innovative Technologies and
Manufacturing Industries. He is currently the chairman and senior
managing director of Surface Mount Technology (Holdings) Limited.

Karen NG Ka Fai CFA, aged 36, has been appointed a Non-
Executive Director since 2015. Ms Ng managed transactions in
Asia for global financial institutions, and possesses more than 10
years of experience in investment in the region. She graduated
from Massachusetts Institute of Technology, US with a Bachelor
of Science degree in Electrical Engineering and Computer Science.
Ms Ng is the daughter of the late Mr Andrew Ng, an Executive
Director of the Company from 1984 to 2014.

Senior Management

HUI Wing Sun aged 71, joined Gold Peak Group in 1978 and
is currently an executive director of GP Batteries International
Limited. Mr Hui is a member of The Hong Kong Institution of
Engineers. He holds a Higher Diploma in Mechanical Engineering
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University (formerly The Hong
Kong Polytechnic) and a Master of Science degree in Applied
Mechanics from the Institute of Science and Technology,
University of Manchester, UK.
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LAM Hin Lap aged 56, joined Gold Peak Group in 2014 and is
currently an executive director, group general manager, business
development of GP Industries Limited and Assistant to Chairman
of the Company. He first joined Gold Peak Group in 2001, and
was transferred to a global energy management group following
the disposal of the Group’s electrical business in 2007. He has
been in senior management positions for over 15 years. He holds
a Bachelor's degree in Electrical Engineering from The University
of New South Wales, Australia.

Henry LEUNG Kwong Hang aged 65, joined Gold Peak Group
in 2006 and is currently an executive director, executive vice
president and chief risk officer of GP Batteries International Limited.
Mr Leung has more than 35 years’ global business experience in
the US, Singapore and Hong Kong, and has held senior positions
in a number of multinational electronic corporations. He is a
member of the Research Grants Council of Hong Kong and is also
a member of board of directors of Nano and Advanced Materials
Institute Limited. Mr Leung graduated from the University of Essex,
UK with a Bachelor’s degree in Telecommunication Engineering.
He is a Chartered Engineer and a member of The Institution of
Engineering and Technology, UK as well as a fellow of The Hong
Kong Institution of Engineers.

Grace LO Kit Yee aged 46, joined Gold Peak Group in 2002
and is currently Deputy General Manager of the Company. She
is also managing director of the KEF Audio Group, GP Acoustics
International Limited. She graduated from the Northwestern
University, US and holds a Master of Design degree from lllinois
Institute of Technology, US as well as an MBA degree from The
Hong Kong University of Science and Technology. She is the
daughter of Mr Victor Lo Chung Wing.

WONG Man Kit aged 57, joined Gold Peak Group in 1991 and is
currently the General Manager as well as the Company Secretary
of the Company. He is also an executive director and chief financial
officer of GP Industries Limited. Mr Wong is a fellow member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and The
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. He holds an MBA
degree from The Chinese University of Hong Kong.

Brian WONG Tze Hang aged 54, joined Gold Peak Group in 1993
and is currently an executive director and chief financial officer of
GP Batteries International Limited. Mr Wong has over 30 years’
experience in the accounting field and is a fellow member of both
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants of the UK. He holds
a Bachelor of Laws degree from the University of London, UK.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance and has applied the principles of the code provisions set out in
the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (the
“Code") in Appendix 14 to The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

Throughout the financial year ended 31 March 2017, the Company has
complied with the code provisions set out in the Code, except for the
deviations from A.2.1 of the Code, details of which are set out below.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The principal focus of the board of directors (the “Board”) is on the overall
strategic development of the Group. The Board also monitors the financial
performance and the internal controls of the Group’s business operations.

As at 31 March 2017, the Board comprised five executive directors (one
of whom is the Chairman), three independent non-executive directors and
one non-executive director. The biographical details of all directors of the
Company are set out on pages 20 to 23 of this annual report.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Board comprised:

Executive Directors:

Victor LO Chung Wing (Chairman & Chief Executive)
LEUNG Pak Chuen

Richard KU Yuk Hing

Andrew CHUANG Siu Leung

Brian LI Yiu Cheung

Non-Executive Directors:

LUI Ming Wah*

Frank CHAN Chi Chung*

CHAN Kei Biu*

Karen NG Ka Fai

*  Independent non-executive director

The Chairman is primarily responsible for drawing up and approving the
agenda for each board meeting in consultation with all directors. Notice
of at least 14 days has been given to all directors for all regular board
meetings and the directors can include matters for discussion in the
agenda if necessary. Agenda and accompanying board papers in respect
of regular board meetings are sent in full to all directors within reasonable
time prior to the meeting.

The Board’s primary function is to assume responsibility for leadership
and control of the Company. The directors are collectively responsible
for directing and supervising the Company’s affairs. Other duties of the
directors include but not limited to maintaining effective control of the
Company, giving specific strategic direction to the Company, reviewing,
approving and monitoring the fundamental financial and business
strategies, plans and major corporate actions, ensuring that the Company
complies with the relevant laws, regulations and codes of business
practice, ensuring that the Company communicates with shareholders and
the relevant stakeholders transparently and promptly and monitoring the
overall corporate governance functions of the Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Although the Board may and has delegated some of its responsibilities and
functions to various committees and principal divisions, it acknowledges
that it remains ultimately accountable for the performance and affairs of
the Company.

Minutes of board meetings and meetings of board committees are kept by
the company secretary and copies of minutes are sent to the directors for
their records. Each Board member is entitled to have access to the advice
and services of the company secretary and, upon reasonable request and
in appropriate circumstances, seek independent professional advice at the
Company'’s expenses.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, four board meetings and one
general meeting were held and the attendance of each director was set

FZHBEBEREIIMT out as follows:
HEBITERR R BITRR
EHERH KERE
Number of board Number of general
ESHR2 Name of director meetings attended/held meeting attended/held
ZRIhES Victor LO Chung Wing 4/4 11
2Bz LEUNG Pak Chuen 4/4 il
=R Richard KU Yuk Hing 4/4 171
AR Andrew CHUANG Siu Leung 4/4 1/1
R Brian LI Yiu Cheung 4/4 1/1
=i LUI Ming Wah 4/4 171
fREEE Frank CHAN Chi Chung 4/4 11
BRESE CHAN Kei Biu 4/4 11
RRE Karen NG Ka Fai 4/4 1”1
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EHRANEMEERECEE - FEFEE

PR SRMAMEES - DIBRREMERMM
TER AR EEMABARAE

FrE EFH LS MEARRBNERE A REN
MET @B AERRETHERRER - 1
AREEFEN  ARAREELZHEBERLEE
WENSTERE -

In respect of continuing professional development, the Company will
provide an induction package including necessary information and
briefings for newly appointed directors and directors are encouraged to
participate in professional development courses and seminars to ensure
that they are aware of their responsibilities under the Listing Rules and
other regulatory requirements. Ongoing professional training had been
and will be offered to all directors to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills as directors of a listed company.

All the directors have participated in continuing professional development
by attending seminars or perusing materials relevant to the Company’s
business and corporate governance. During the year under review,
a professional training course was organised for the directors by the
Company in relation to disclosure of inside information.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

The corporate governance function of the Group is collectively performed
by the Board. The Board acknowledges overseeing the corporate
governance function of the Group collectively and agreed to comply with
a specific written terms of reference. During the year under review, the
Board has performed the following corporate governance functions:

reviewed the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance and made recommendations;

— reviewed the training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management;

— monitored the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements; and

— reviewed the Company’s compliance with the Code and disclosure in
this corporate governance report.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Victor LO Chung Wing is the Chairman and the Chief Executive of
the Company. Although A.2.1 of the Code stipulates that the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual, the Board considers that the present
structure will not impair the balance of power and authority between
the Board and the management of the Group as the Group's principal
businesses are separately listed and each business is run by a different
board of directors.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
directors an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all the independent non-
executive directors to be independent.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The Board reviews its own structure, size and composition regularly to
ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience appropriate
to the needs of the business of the Company.

The Company has entered into a letter of appointment with each of the
non-executive directors pursuant to which the non-executive directors
are appointed for a specific term of 3 years subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company
in accordance with the provisions of the articles of association of the
Company.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The main duties and functions of the Nomination Committee are to review
the composition of the Board at least annually, to make recommendations
to the Board on the changes of the Board, including the appointment or
re-appointment of directors, to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy and to assess the independence of the independent non-executive
directors, provided that no directors being involved in fixing his own
terms of appointment and no independent non-executive directors being
involved in assessing his own independence. The terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee follow the guidelines set out in the Code and have
been posted on the Company’s website.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Nomination Committee
comprised:

Victor LO Chung Wing (Chairman)
LUI Ming Wah

Frank CHAN Chi Chung

CHAN Kei Biu

LEUNG Pak Chuen

During the year ended 31 March 2017, one Nomination Committee
meeting was held and the attendance of each committee member was set
out as follows:

HEBITEERY

Number of meeting
mEEE Name of member attended/held
R Victor LO Chung Wing 171
= RREE LUI Ming Wah 11
RAAER Frank CHAN Chi Chung 11
BEREL 5 CHAN Kei Biu 11
2Ez LEUNG Pak Chuen 1/1
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The work performed by the Nomination Committee during the year ended
31 March 2017 included reviewing the structure, size and composition
of the Board, assessing the independence of independent non-executive
directors and making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of directors.

The Board adopted a board diversity policy setting out the approach to
diversity of members of the Board. All Board appointments will be based
on merit, and candidates will be considered by objective criteria for their
potential contribution to the Board and the Company as a whole in order
to achieve board efficiency. The Company sees increasing diversity at the
Board level as an essential element in supporting the attainment of its
strategic objectives and its sustainable development.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The main responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to review the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and to review
the effectiveness of the financial reporting process and internal control
system of the Group.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Audit Committee comprised:
LUI Ming Wah (Chairman)

Frank CHAN Chi Chung
CHAN Kei Biu
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

The Board considers that each Audit Committee member has broad
commercial experience and there is a suitable mix of expertise in legal,
business and accounting in the Audit Committee. The composition
and members of the Audit Committee comply with the requirements
under Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules. The terms of reference of the Audit
Committee follow the guidelines set out in the Code and have been
posted on the Company’s website.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, two Audit Committee meetings
were held and the attendance of each committee member was set out as
follows:

HE T BTEERY

Number of meetings

mE®E Name of member attended/held
= hAEE LUI Ming Wah 2/2
PRASHR Frank CHAN Chi Chung 212
BRESE CHAN Kei Biu 21
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The work performed by the Audit Committee during the year ended 31
March 2017 included reviewing the audited financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2016 and the unaudited interim financial statements
for the six months ended 30 September 2016, with recommendations to
the Board for approval.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Audit Committee met with the
external auditor twice.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The main responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are to
review and endorse the remuneration policy of the directors and senior
management and to make recommendations to the Board for the
remuneration of the directors and senior management. The Remuneration
Committee has taken sufficient measures to ensure that no director is
involved in deciding his own remuneration.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Remuneration Committee
comprised:

Frank CHAN Chi Chung (Chairman)
LUI Ming Wah

CHAN Kei Biu

Victor LO Chung Wing

LEUNG Pak Chuen

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee have been posted
on the Company’s website.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2017, one Remuneration Committee
meeting was held and the attendance of each committee member was set
out as follows:

HEBITEERY

Number of meeting
mERE Name of member attended/held
PR Frank CHAN Chi Chung 11
=R LUl Ming Wah 11
BREL 5 CHAN Kei Biu 1/1
ZEfPEE Victor LO Chung Wing 11
a2 LEUNG Pak Chuen 171

REBREZF—tHF=A=+—HLEFE  HFHE
ERCREARENESRNEREERE ZFHE
REESRN A »

EEZREHX

FATICHAEFETNESRS © FWNEN LD
RAISTT BT ABESETESX SR
TR (THREESTRI DIFTTASTRI - KAAAT
FTEESZRNEAER  AATRENMAMEE
FEEETRESTRIPTRENER -

BEREZ

EEREAAEREREMRFERREEELR
NP RRAEBEBEIN N FBEREK - EFRF
jﬁT%ﬂ*’EEﬁE%?#’FWEET EEREAAT
FERENED - Alt - EERCRFEKEE
E%F“EZK’ATE@EZH‘%*E@E

EZRERBEEEAATER - PHRSE
fio ~ ERARE M BIKE &I‘?ﬁ*”%%’m/)&m
BEURRBEEERKEZER D - BHF
7~ B R BN EAEARTAE o

E

EXROAAERCAREEHELERTE
25 aREEkEREREREESEZBRMN
ETEFRN - EFRBDEBEEINEFNA
MERERG  REERRNGELIAEEZEE -

The work performed by the Remuneration Committee during the year
ended 31 March 2017 included reviewing the remuneration policy and the
remuneration of the directors and senior management.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the “Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers” set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the
“Model Code") as its code of conduct regarding the directors’ securities
transactions. Having made specific enquiry of all directors, the Company
confirmed that all directors have complied with the required standard set
out in the Model Code throughout the year.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare financial statements
for each financial year which give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group. The Board is not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that might cast significant doubt upon
the Company'’s ability to continue in business. Accordingly, the Board has
prepared the financial statements of the Company on a going concern
basis.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to present a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment in the Company’s annual and interim reports,
announcements, financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules, and
reports to the regulators as well as information required to be disclosed
pursuant to statutory requirements.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has conducted annual review on the system of internal control
of the Group and its effectiveness covering the financial, operational,
compliance controls and risk management functions. The Board is
committed to implementing an effective and sound internal control system
to safeguard the interest of shareholders and the Group’s assets.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid and payable to Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, external
auditor of the Group, for services provided during the year ended 31

BENKEMZERMT March 2017 were as follows:
Bft ERER
BRFSIR M Services rendered Fees paid/payable
FHT
HK$'000
FERE Audit services 9,530
SRS Non-audit services 1,051
B Total 10,581

NEE COMPANY SECRETARY
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Mr. WONG Man Kit is the company secretary of the Company and he has
complied with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules by obtaining no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training during the year under review.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

The Board has adopted a Shareholders Communication Policy (the “Policy”)
which aims at promoting and facilitating effective communication with
its shareholders. The objective is to ensure that the Company provides
timely, clear, reliable and relevant information for its shareholders in
exercising their rights. The Policy includes how shareholders can convene
a general meeting, the procedures by which enquiries may be put to the
Board and the procedures for putting forward proposals at shareholders’
meeting. Sufficient contact details for the above can also be found in the
Policy. A procedure for election of directors was also adopted to provide
guidelines on how shareholders can nominate an individual as director of
the Company. The Policy and the procedures for nomination of directors
are published on the Company’s website.

INVESTOR RELATIONS
During the year ended 31 March 2017, there was no change to the articles

of association of the Company. The articles of association of the Company
is posted on the Company’s website.
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The Group is committed to reducing the impact on the environment
and being socially responsible to its employees, customers and the
communities. During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group complied
with all relevant laws and regulations relating to environmental, social and
governance issues. The 2016-2017 Environmental, Social and Governance
Report will be published separately on the websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange.

ENVIRONMENTAL

The Group has formed teams to deal with wastes and emissions. The
teams manage programs to cut down hazardous and non-hazardous
wastes, as well as encourage recycling for more efficient use of resources.
Proper treatment of industrial waste water and hazardous wastes has been
put into practice.

The Group strives to reduce energy consumption to alleviate effects on
global warming. Green building concept has been employed to reduce
energy consumption in its factories. Air-conditioning, electricity and water
conservation have been closely tracked and reviewed to maintain a lean
and an efficient operation. Product packaging is constantly reviewed
in order to reduce material usage and minimise the impact on the
environment.

The Group has a well-established supply chain management policy to
monitor the quality of its suppliers. Suppliers are qualified based on
their capability to meet the product’s technical and quality requirement,
health, safety and environment standards and business ethics. The Group
conducts random audits of the suppliers’ production sites to ensure their
continuous compliance with the quality and environmental regulatory
requirements.

The Group is committed to producing safe and quality products. It strives
to comply with all regulatory requirements pertaining to the health
and safety impacts of its products and services. It provides appropriate
mechanisms to receive customers’ feedback in order to continuously
improve upon its products and services.

HUMAN RESOURCES

The Group is supported by a motivated workforce of approximately 8,200
people worldwide. The Group strives to provide its employees with a safe
and healthy workplace and offer them fair and competitive remuneration
packages. Remuneration policies and packages are reviewed regularly to
ensure that compensation and benefits are in line with the market of each
territory.

The Group invests in employees through development programs
to enhance their soft and hard skills as well as work competence in
preparation for their career development. Employees participated in various
workshops and training sessions on laws and regulations, management
and leadership skills, as well as language and communication during the
year.

The Group is committed to compliance with applicable anti-corruption
laws and regulations. It prohibits its employees from offering, making or
receiving any bribes or kickbacks for the purpose of securing an improper
business advantage, or otherwise engaging in corrupt activities or
practices.

The Group has established a whistle-blowing policy that allows anyone
to report misconduct or malpractice without fear of reprisal through a
confidential channel.
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COMMUNITY

As a responsible corporate citizen, the Group nurtures a caring culture
among employees in the workplace and reciprocates to the community
through participation in various community events during the year. The
Group has joined the Community Chest’s Corporate and Employee
Contribution Program for more than a decade. It is also an active
supporter of many community events throughout the year. In recognition
of its continuous commitment in good corporate citizenship, the Group
has been awarded the Caring Company Logo by The Hong Kong Council
of Social Service for 15 consecutive years.
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The directors have pleasure in presenting their annual report and the
audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The activities
of its principal subsidiaries and associates are investment holding and
development, manufacturing, marketing and trading of batteries,
electronics and acoustics products, and automotive wire harness, which
are set out in notes 43 and 44 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively. Further discussion and analysis of these activities, including a
discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties the Group is facing and
an indication of likely future developments of the Group's business, can
be found in the Review of Operations set out on pages 16 to 18 of this
annual report. This discussion forms part of this Directors’ Report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group and appropriations of the Company for the year
ended 31 March 2017 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss on page 48 and the accompanying notes to the consolidated
financial statements. An interim dividend of 1.2 HK cents per share was
paid to the shareholders during the year. A final dividend of 1.2 HK cents
per share is proposed by the directors. On the basis of 2.4 HK cents per
share for the entire year, total dividends amount to HK$18,832,000.

TEN-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the past ten financial years is set out on pages 10 and 11.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the Company’s share capital are set out in note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in investment properties of the Group during the
year are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group acquired property, plant and equipment
of approximately HK$257,951,000 to expand its business. Details of
movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during the
year are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.
DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders as at
31 March 2017 are represented by the retained profits and the dividend
reserve totalling HK$14,513,000 (2016: HK$32,361,000).

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations totalling
HK$296,000.
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DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive directors:

Victor LO Chung Wing (Chairman & Chief Executive)
LEUNG Pak Chuen

Richard KU Yuk Hing

Andrew CHUANG Siu Leung

Brian LI Yiu Cheung

Non-executive directors:
LUl Ming Wah*

Frank CHAN Chi Chung*
CHAN Kei Biu*

Karen NG Ka Fai

* Independent non-executive director

In accordance with Article 112 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Messrs. LEUNG Pak Chuen, Richard KU Yuk Hing and LUl Ming Wah
are due to retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

No director being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company or its subsidiaries
which is not determinable by the Group within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The non-executive directors have been appointed for a specific term of
3 years subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual
general meeting of the Company in accordance with the provisions of the
Articles of Association of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director
of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The articles of association of the Company provides that every Director or
other officer of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the
assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities which he may sustain
or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his office or otherwise in
relation thereto, and no Director or other officer shall be liable for any loss
or damages which may happen to or be incurred by the Company in the
execution of the duties of his office or in relation thereto. The Company
had arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance
coverage for the directors and other officers of the Group for the year
under review.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS IN SECURITIES OF
THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 March 2017, the interests and short positions of the directors
and the chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company and any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the "SFO") ) which were required to be notified to the Company and The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO) or which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO,
to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which were required,
pursuant to Appendix 10 “Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers” contained in the Listing Rules to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange were as follows:

(a) Interests in shares of the Company (long positions)
As at 31 March 2017, the interests of the directors and the chief
executive in the ordinary shares of the Company were as follows:

FREERMHE

Number of ordinary shares held

FATEHIT
Bif 2B AL

Percentage of

B e issued share

Personal Total capital of

BE Name of director interests interests the Company
%

FE{pLs Victor LO Chung Wing 169,985,888 169,985,888 21.66
2Ez LEUNG Pak Chuen 4,575,114 4,575,114 0.58
RN Richard KU Yuk Hing 2,629,684 2,629,684 0.34
SRR Andrew CHUANG Siu Leung 677,855 677,855 0.09
S iy ed Brian LI Yiu Cheung 300,000 300,000 0.04
=R LUI Ming Wah - - -
fREER Frank CHAN Chi Chung - - -
PR 4R CHAN Kei Biu - - _
RRE Karen NG Ka Fai 40,646,524 40,646,524 5.18
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS IN SECURITIES OF
THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS (continued)

(b) Interests in shares of the Company’s associated corporations
(long positions)
As at 31 March 2017, the direct beneficial interests of the directors
and the chief executive in the shares of GP Batteries International
Limited (“GPBI"”), a 64.9% owned subsidiary of GP Industries Limited
("GP Ind"”), Gold Peak Industries (Taiwan) Limited (“GPIT"), a 79.6%
owned subsidiary of GPBI, and GP Ind, an 85.5% owned subsidiary of
the Company, were as follows:

FREBRMBERECHTRAZEN!

Number of ordinary shares and percentage of their issued share capital held

ZIEith =1ERE GPIT#¥
BEE Name of director GPBI GPIT GP Ind
B8 B8 A8

Number % Number % Number %
ZEhLs Victor LO Chung Wing 300,000 0.19 - - 300,000 0.06
Z2{F2 LEUNG Pak Chuen - - - - 1,608,000 0.33
E R Richard KU Yuk Hing 151,500 0.10 200,000 0.10 340,000 0.07
e oa 24 Andrew CHUANG Siu Leung - - - - 155,000 0.03
S iy ed Brian LI Yiu Cheung - - - - 1,465,000 0.30
=R LUI Ming Wah - - - - - -
BRI Frank CHAN Chi Chung - - - - - -
BRELR CHAN Kei Biu _ _ _ B ~ ~
RRE Karen NG Ka Fai - - - - - -

BRDLEFTREESN RZF—tF=R=+—H"
EFLRBREBAEALRARAIREESK
PERPIERCBEARZEFRBEMES °

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2017, none of the directors, the
chief executive or their associates had any interest in the securities of the
Company or any of its associated corporations as defined in SFO.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Particulars of the share option scheme of the Company is set out in note
32 to the consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors, chief executive, their
spouses or children under the age of 18 had any right to subscribe for the
securities of the Company, or had exercised any such right during the year.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2017, none of the directors or
chief executive of the Company had any interest or short position in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO) or which were required, pursuant to section 352
of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which
were required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers, to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the directors
or the chief executive of the Company or their respective associates to
acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The Directors are in the opinion that due to the excessive number of
subsidiaries and their directors, disclosure of the names of all subsidiaries
and their directors in this Directors’ Report would be made by way of
reference to the information on the names of subsidiaries and their
directors under “Investor Relations” at www.goldpeak.com.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2017, the following persons (not being a director or chief
executive of the Company) had an interest or short position in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed
to the Company under section 336 of the SFO, or who was, directly or
indirectly, interested in 5% or more of any class of share capital carrying
rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of the Company:

FABREHTRE
ZBEAL

Percentage of

HEZERE issued share
BR Bin Number of capital
Name of shareholder Capacity ordinary shares held of the Company
REB A 81,888,764 (Note 1) 10.44%
TO May Mee Beneficial owner (PEEET)
RIEHE TmA 40,646,524 (Note 1) 5.18%
Jessica NG Sheen Fai Beneficial owner (B&ET)
Ring Lotus Investment Limited SE AT D 60,288,143 (Note 2) 7.68%
("Ring Lotus") Interests of controlled (F5E2)
corporation
HSBC International Trustee Limited ZEEA 60,288,143 (Note 2) 7.68%
("HSBC Trustee") Trustee (F5E2)
st Notes:

1. AREBREIRRABERZEIDBIR/ANTZIFMTE
FRRELLZFRRIIREK

2. IREMENZEEEMERING LotusTIHSBC Trustees
BI/EHA9BEA] » HSBC Trustee LU0 5E ARV S 15
WARIEFEE 60,288, 143/ AR 2 3% » 45 LLR
1P 1HSBC Trusteez 2 E ZEH/ARIRING LotusAS2 1%
HINATIERBPFTHES °
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REFRIRHRINFEAREZ S LGRS
ThERBARARZ AN R AR Z
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1. Madam TO May Mee and Ms. Jessica NG Sheen Fai are the mother and sister,
respectively, of Ms. Karen NG Ka Fai, a non-executive director of the Company.

2. According to the two corporate substantial shareholder notices filed by Ring
Lotus and HSBC Trustee respectively, HSBC Trustee was deemed to be interested
in 60,288,143 shares in its capacity as the trustee of these shares, which were
in turn owned by Ring Lotus, a company wholly-owned by HSBC Trustee, as
interests of controlled corporation.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2017, the directors and the chief
executive of the Company are not aware of any person (other than a
director or chief executive of the Company) who had any interest or short
position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Part XV of the
SFO, or who was, directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or more of any
class of the issued share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances
at general meetings of the Company.
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CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS, WARRANTS OR SIMILAR
RIGHTS

The Company had no outstanding convertible securities, options, warrants
or other similar rights as at 31 March 2017 and there had been no exercise
of convertible securities, options, warrants or similar rights during the year.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Details of the retirement benefit schemes of the Group are set out in note
36 to the consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY'’S LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

A brief discussion on the Group’s environmental policies and performance
during the year under review is set out on pages 31 to 32 of this annual
report which forms part of the Directors’ Report. The 2016-2017
Environmental, Social and Governance Report will be published separately
at the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During the year, there was no material breach of or non-compliance with
the applicable laws and regulations by the Group.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The aggregate sales attributable to the Group's largest customer and five
largest customers accounted for 6.11% and 21.61% respectively of the
Group's total turnover for the year.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s largest supplier and
five largest suppliers accounted for 1.67% and 6.16% respectively of the
Group's total purchases for the year.

None of the directors, their associates, or any shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital) has any interest in the Group's five largest customers or suppliers.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the directors, throughout the year ended 31 March 2017,
there is sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the Company's issued
shares as required under the Listing Rules.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE, AUDIT COMMITTEE AND
NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Details of the Company’s audit committee, remuneration committee and
nomination committee are set out in the Corporate Governance Report.
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EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of significant event occurring after the reporting period are set out
in note 45 to the consolidated financial statements.

AUDITOR
A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting of the

Company to re-appoint Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board

Victor LO Chung Wing
Chairman & Chief Executive
20 June 2017
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TO THE MEMBERS OF GOLD PEAK INDUSTRIES (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)
Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Gold Peak
Industries (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as “the Group”) set out on pages 48 to 136,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
March 2017, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March
2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

41



42

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (conTD)

BWIZHEIRSE @)

FEE%SIE

Key audit matter

BAMEZNMREERREXER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
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Impairment of trade receivables
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We identified the impairment of trade receivables as a key
audit matter due to the significance of the balance to the
consolidated statement of financial position and significant
judgement involved by management in the impairment
assessment. As set out in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group has trade receivables of approximately
HK$915 million (net of accumulated impairment loss of
approximately HK$46 million) as at 31 March 2017.

As set out in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements,
the assessment of recoverability of trade receivables requires
management to make significant judgements based on
the current creditworthiness of each customer, the past
collection history of each customer and aging analysis of the
trade receivable.
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Our procedures in relation to assessing the impairment of
trade receivables included:

e Understanding the impairment assessment process on
trade receivables;

e Evaluating the valuation of the trade receivables and the
appropriateness of the impairments recognised taking
into account the aging analysis and the subsequent
settlement of the trade receivables;

e Testing the accuracy of the ageing analysis of the
trade receivables, on a sample basis, to the supporting
documents; and

e Testing the subsequent settlement of the trade
receivables, on a sample basis, to the supporting
documents.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter
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We identified the allowance for inventories as a key audit
matter due to the significance of the balance to the
consolidated statement of financial position and significant
judgement involved by management in the assessment
process. As set out in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group has inventories of approximately
HK$848 million as at 31 March 2017 and recognised
allowance for inventories of approximately HK$20 million
during the year.

As set out in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements,
there is significant judgement and estimates involved in
assessing the level of inventory allowance required in respect
of slow moving inventories and the net realisable values of
inventories at the end of the reporting period with reference
to the current market demand and future sales plan, aging
analysis and the estimated selling prices, less the estimated
cost of completion.
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Our procedures in relation to allowance for inventories
included:

e Understanding the process over the assessment of
allowance for inventories, including identification of
slow-moving inventories and determination of the net
realisable value; and

e Assessing the net realisable values of inventories and
evaluating the appropriateness of the level of inventory
allowance required in respect of slow moving stock, by
considering the current market demand and future sales
plan, ageing analysis and the estimated selling prices,
less the estimated cost of completion.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter
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Impairment of property, plant and equipment of a
certain plant in the Group (the “Plant”)
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We identified the impairment of property, plant and
equipment of the Plant as a key audit matter due to the
significance of the balance to the consolidated statement
of financial position and significant judgement involved by
management in the impairment assessment. As set out in
notes 4 and 14 to the consolidated financial statements, the
Plant has property, plant and equipment of approximately
HK$29,000,000 as at 31 March 2017. The management
considered no additional provision for impairment loss was
required during the year ended 31 March 2017 based on the
estimated recoverable amount of the Plant.

The estimated recoverable amount of the Plant has been
determined based on cash flow projections from the latest
financial budgets approved by management with a suitable
discount rate. The key assumptions used in the discounted
cash flow calculation includes budgeted sales growth rate,
budgeted operating expenditure and the discount rate.

The key assumptions to the assessment and the reasons for
impairment loss recognised are set out in Notes 4 and 14 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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Our procedures in relation to assessing the impairment of
property, plant and equipment of the Plant included:

e Understanding the impairment assessment process,
including reviewing for indicators of impairment;

e Assessing the impairment model used by management
and the reasonableness of the budgeted operating
expenditure;

e Involving our valuation experts to review the discount
rates and budgeted sales growth rates;

e Evaluating the potential impact of the impairment
assessment based on the reasonably possible change of
the discount rate and budgeted sales growth rate; and

e Performing an assessment of the reliability of
management’s estimates through a review of actual
cashflows against previous projections made in prior
year.
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with Governance
for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group'’s
financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Chu, Johnny Chun Yin.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

20 June 2017

47



48

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FERmR

Year ended 31 March 2017 BEZ—Z—+F=FA=+—HI1FE

2017 2016
FIEE TFiE&x FHT
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
EEE Turnover 5 5,822,574 5,795,467
SHERA Cost of sales (4,363,541) (4,309,705)
EH Gross profit 1,459,033 1,485,762
HAA Other income 167,993 82,994
HERDHETH Selling and distribution expenses (642,395) (577,428)
1TE Sz Administrative expenses (783,870) (783,740)
Hib Other expenses 6 (36,899) (41,382)
BTSN Finance costs 7 (96,229) (89,543)
FrihEteE N R EE Share of results of associates 142,571 128,158
B EnER Profit before taxation 8 210,204 204,821
15 Taxation 10 (103,173) (86,549)
2EHR Profit for the year 107,031 118,272
2ERFEEN Profit for the year attributable to:
V/NEIEZZ=PN Owners of the Company 20,108 18,705
IR Non-controlling interests 86,923 99,567
107,031 118,272
srREF Earnings per share
BEAXRREE(EW) Basic and diluted 12 2.6 HK cents 2.4 HK cents




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FoiRnREMZEERR

Year ended 31 March 2017 BEZE—-Z—+F=-A=+—HIFE

2017 2016
FERT FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
2EHRF Profit for the year 107,031 118,272
Hh2EZH : Other comprehensive expense:
PEE REE T B IEH ©  Items that may be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss:
BRERINEBESE CERESR Exchange differences arising from translation
of foreign operations (112,755) (106,705)
BB AR RSP IE o iws Net translation surplus reclassified to profit or
EMNEZRER loss upon deregistration of subsidiaries (4,283) -
AHHEKRE A E Fair value gain (loss) on available-for-sale
W B8 ) investments 1,680 (2,712)
FrisBeE AR 2 mT Share of other comprehensive expense
of associates (13,688) (34,866)
2EEMBPEEH Other comprehensive expense for the year (129,046) (144,283)
2EDHE L HEZE Total comprehensive expense for the year (22,015) (26,011)
2HEZBHREER Total comprehensive expense attributable to:
EN/NEIEZ Z=DN Owners of the Company (42,609) (62,003)
JEE AR Non-controlling interests 20,594 35,992
(22,015) (26,011)

49



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
FEMBHRAR

Asat 31 March 2017 R-—Z—+®F=A=+—H

50

31.3.2017 31.3.2016
FIEE TFi&x FHT
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
JERENEE Non-current assets
KB Investment properties 13 9,955 9,635
L E YN Property, plant and equipment 14 1,400,864 1,393,409
P B AR Interests in associates 15 1,403,784 1,333,509
AtHERE Available-for-sale investments 16 63,966 62,286
AHRREEEE Investment in convertible note 17 - _
M EE Intangible assets 18 3,570 6,352
S Goodwill 19 102,066 102,066
REFIEEE Deferred tax assets 30 19,729 21,483
FEMERIA ~ #2& RIENFRIE Receivables, deposits and prepayments 22 37,384 24,704
3,041,318 2,953,444
MENEE Current assets
7E Inventories 21 848,425 904,126
JEWE TN E At RN AR TE & Trade and other receivables and
RN prepayments 22 1,170,825 1,003,005
FEIRG S Dividend receivable 6,975 39,300
CIEE R E] Taxation recoverable 13,105 5,027
RITHEGE  ERkRS Bank balances, deposits and cash 23 1,058,541 977,879
3,097,871 2,929,337
DEREHESE Assets classified as held for sale 24 5,872 -
3,103,743 2,929,337
mEaE Current liabilities
FEERIB A ER Creditors and accrued charges 25 1,299,170 1,150,230
TESBIA Derivative financial instruments 26 - 2,866
e IE Taxation payable 31,775 27,804
MEHEERE— Obligations under finance leases —
—FANER amount due within one year 27 737 653
SRITERNEEEE Bank loans and import loans 28 1,453,127 1,289,704
2,784,809 2,471,257
mEEERE Net current assets 318,934 458,080
BEEREREEE Total assets less current liabilities 3,360,252 3,411,524




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (conTp)

FeBERRT@®

Asat 31 March 2017 R-Z—+F=A=+—8H
31.3.2017 31.3.2016
i Fi&rx FET
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
ERBEE Non-current liabilities
MFHERE— Obligations under finance leases —

—FRER amount due after one year 27 1,025 452
&3k Borrowings 29 882,236 832,629
RIERIEAE Deferred taxation liabilities 30 23,175 18,689

906,436 851,770

BERE Net assets 2,453,816 2,559,754

BEXRiEE Capital and reserves

R Share capital 31 921,014 921,014

&S Reserves 347,318 402,496
EN/NCIE ZE DN - Equity attributable to owners of the

Company 1,268,332 1,323,510

I e R Non-controlling interests 1,185,484 1,236,244

LR Total equity 2,453,816 2,559,754

BABEER 6B Bz ERNZ
FS—tEANAZTHARESR\EB > YARUTE

The consolidated financial statements on pages 48 to 136 were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 20 June 2017 and

EREEA are signed on its behalf by:
Rz #B2 Victor LO Chung Wing LEUNG Pak Chuen
3 2 Director Director



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FoEREER

Year ended 31 March 2017 HE_-_Z—+E=A=+—HIFEE

BENALTREA
Attributable to owners of the Company
AftHE
% RERE B HR
EffRRE Available- @ s
R EEER Popety HERE BERR forsle RERE  Shee GEEH Non-  fEEHHEH

Share  Legal revaluation Translation  Capital investment Dividend  option Retained &%t controlling  Total
capital  surplus  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reseve profits Total interests  equity
TEn TEL AR TEL AR TEL T TR TR TR TR TR
HKS'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000

() (&)
note) (note)
RZZ-1FME-H At 1 April 2015 014 14830 37804 (181464) 180,991 3299 19617 4429 405530 1,406,050 1331790 2,737,840
2 Rt for ey _ - - - - - - N I I IR L)
BESNEHELRLEE Exchange differences arising rom transition of
foreign operations - - - (5234 - - - - - (52,345 (54360) (106,705
HHERE/ATEEE Fair value loss on avallable-for-sale investments - - - - - (143) - - - (1413 (0299 @72)
FiEBE AT AR TR Share of other comprehensire expense of associates - - - (629 - - - - (B%) (69500 (7.916)  (34866)
ERENE(R R Total comprehensive incorme (expense)
for the year - - - (18639 - (143) - - 18049 (62003 35992 (26011)
B\ Transfer of reserves - - - -3 - - - 379 - - -
EREEAREA Transfer upon lapse of share options - - - - - - - B9 49 - - -
R \NRATEMER Deemed acquisiton of additional nterests in
(Hz4300)) subsiares (Note 43(0) - 9T (4 (44909)
EA-BRBATEMER Acquistion of additionalinerests n a subsidiary
(z430) (Note 43(b) - 8% (701) (BT
HEERERLER Capital contribution by non-conroling shareholders
(Fisk430) (Note 43(0) - -9 90
*ERE Undaimed dividend 10 10 2 12
T HBATERRRRS Dividend paid to non-controling shareholders of
Subsidiaries - - (69317) (931)
ERERS Dividend paid
S Lz ~2015 el didend - (1961 - (196
-Z5-NERERS - 2016 nterim dividend (19617 (19617) - (19617)
B3RS Dividend proposed
-Z5-RERERE - 2016 final diidend (1847) - - -
(26819 (0537) (131,538) (152,075

RB-7F=R=T-B

At31 March 2016

39,760 1323510

1236244 2,559,754




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (conT)
TEEREHR®R

Year ended 31 March 2017 BE_—_Z—+E=A=+—HIFE

BERFLIREA
Attributable to owners of the Company
AfiHE
ng HERE 0
EfiRE Available- Bt
B EEER  Poperty BERE  RABE  forsle RERE  REE Non-  HEGHEER
Share Legal revaluation ~ Translation Capital investment  Dividend  Retained aft  controlling Total
capital surplus reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total  interests equity
TR TFir Tin Fhn T Thn TR TR Tn TR Tr
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(M) (M)
(note) (note)
RI5-7ERA-H At 1 April 2016 921,014 14,830 37804 (260,103 203472 1,886 7847 396,760 1323510 1236244 2,559,754
2ERF Profit for the year - - - - - - - 20,108 20,108 86923 107,031
BEFNERELZERER Exchange differences arising from
translation of foreign operations - - - (46,990) - - - - (46,990) (65,765  (112,755)
SEMBARESELEE  Nettranslation surplus reclassified to
EfNEEER profit or loss upon de-registration of
subsidiaries - - - (3,661) - - - - (3,661) (622) (4,283)
TMRBEREZATEYS  Fairvalue gain on available-for-sale
investments - = = - - 930 - - 930 750 1,680
FISEEAREMRE  Share of other comprehensive (expense)
(St Mt income of associates - - S EYL) - - - % (12,99 (692)  (13688)
2ERF(EHMEEE  Total comprehensive (expense) income
for the year - - - (63,943) - 930 - 20,404 (42,609) 20,59 (22,015
B\GE Transfer of reserves - - - - 1201 - - (1.221) - - -
—BNBAREREAL  Capitalisation of profit by a subsidiary - - - - 861 - - (861) - - -
WE-EBATR Acquisiion of a subsidiary with non-
EARRER(ME33)  controling interest (Note 33) - - - - - - - - - 831 831
EEBAMBARDEIMES  Deemed acquisition of additional
(HizE43(0)) interests in subsidiaries (Note 43(0) - - - - 54 - - - 54 479) 425)
E\-FNEADEMES  Acquisition of additional nterests in a
(Biz430)) subsidiary (Note 43(o) - - - - 957 - - - 957 (2,350) (1,393
SEEATHERE  Capital reduction by non-controling
(FizE43(0)) shareholders (Note 43(b)) - - - - - - - - - (4,966) (4,966)
-BRBATER Liquidation of a subsidiary - - - 107 - - - 3528 3635 (3,639) -
RERS Unclaimed dividend - - - - - - - I I 8 5%
RFHBAFERERZRS Dividend paid to non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - (60,363) (60,363)
EIRERE Dividend paid
-ZE-RERERE - 2016final dvidend - - - - - - (7.847) - (7.847) - (7.847)
SIE-HERERE - 2017interim dvidend - - - - - - - p4e 948 - g
EERE Dividend proposed
-Z3-UERERS - 2017 findl dividend - - - - - - 9416 (9:416) - - -
- - - 107 9,09 - 1,569 (23,304) (12,569) (71,354) (83923)
RIE—tE=B=+-H At31March 2017 921,014 14,830 37804 (323939 21257 2816 9416 393820 1268332 1185484 2453816
[zt : BAEEETEAEMEAELEHEZELTH Note:  Capital reserve mainly represents the difference between the amount of

& FEEWE B AR R AR
RS RN WEIRE AT ERZ
DRIRNREARIIME(" PE DWEBAT K
BENTCWENMEEH » ZFHERMOER
HFIEAEBTEEERERERTETIR

EERGBEREEFEN PRI HBEA
BZIEEBEREER

non-controlling interest adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid/received on partial disposal/deemed acquisition of a subsidiary
without losing control and the capitalisation of profits of subsidiaries and
associates established in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") that
were available for appropriation after the approval from the relevant PRC

authorities.

Legal surplus comprises the Group’s share of statutory reserves of the
subsidiaries established in the PRC.

53



54

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FaHERER

Year ended 31 March 2017 BEZ—Z—+F=FA=+—HI1FE

2017 2016
FIEE TFigrx FHT
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
B Operating activities
FRFL BT F) Profit before taxation 210,204 204,821
R Adjustments for:
FrihEteE N R 2EE Share of results of associates (142,571) (128,158)
F SUA Interest income (4,790) (9,549)
SRAT REAEFRF B Interest on bank and other
borrowings 96,221 89,446
MBHEREN S Interest on obligations under finance
leases 8 97
ARERER Allowance for doubtful debts 3,115 -
ZEARET Y Bad debts written off 78 -
FEEE Allowance for inventories 20,090 21,014
BB Amortisation of intangible assets 4,332 4,283
WEWENFEZ R Change in fair value of investment
properties (1,071) -
M2~ BENEECITE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 134,709 134,136
AHHERE R SWA Dividend income from available-for-
sale financial assets (27) -
HEWE - BEREEZ Gain on disposal of property, plant
Wz and equipment (72,056) (19,099)
Xl YN € Gain on deregistration of subsidiaries (4,283) -
AERE—RENEAR Gain on bargain purchase arising
PG from the acquisition of a
subsidiary 33 (777) -
EAREZRESE Impairment loss recognised on
goodwill - 16,382
L ESNN NG Impairment loss recognised on
BEEE property, plant and equipment 11,812 25,000
mEsR T ECEER Realised (gain) loss on derivative
(Weak Es1E financial instruments (1,166) 2,161
TESHMIAEZAYE Unrealised fair value loss on
REIREIE derivative financial instruments - 2,866
RME B IR RBE Unclaimed warranty cost provision - (7,327)
NS AR B /N Effect of foreign exchange rate
R E changes on inter-company
balances (80,585) (11,528)
STHEEESEERICEE Operating cash flows before movements
BE&he in working capital 173,243 324,545
BEZE ) Decrease (increase) in inventories 31,857 (137,371)
FEW &S = M Hofth FE U AR T8 Ay (Increase) decrease in trade and
TR RIS Z( 320 Es other receivables and prepayments (175,311) 2,557
FENTBRIER & 2380 Increase in creditors and
accrued charges 102,065 52,511
REEBEA RS Cash generated from operations 131,854 242,242
ENEELIN it @R IE Taxation in other jurisdictions paid (98,806) (102,947)
ENEERIEH Taxation paid in Hong Kong (3,344) (4,041)
U E SN bt [ RE IE IR 5% Taxation in other jurisdictions refunded 477 30,515
EWEBTRIEER Taxation refunded in Hong Kong 2,672 3,988
IR R VIR P58 Net cash from operating activities 32,853 169,757




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (conTD)
FeRERER®

Year ended 31 March 2017 BEZE—-Z—+F=-A=+—HIFE

2017 2016
i Fi&rx FET
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
WEZEB Investing activities
HEWZE - BERRE Proceeds from disposal of property,
pd N plant and equipment 102,420 26,922
EREE AR ZKE Dividends received from associates 91,233 48,858
HEDZ ~ ERE Deposits received from disposal of
Bz ET& property, plant and equipment 52,519 -
2UFE Interest received 4,793 9,341
Wi —RRE AR Acquisition of a subsidiary, net cash
ZBREMNFE inflow 33 4,668
AHHEREZKREWA Dividends received from available-for-
sale financial assets 27 -
HENEELERBAT Proceeds from disposal of and deemed
Z 5B disposal of subsidiaries - 10,791
AfHEREZFE Capital injection of available-for-sale
investments - (3,875)
BA—ERBAR AN Deposit paid for acquisition of a
i subsidiary - (3,096)
BADZE ~ BB MR Purchase of property, plant and
equipment (240,159) (191,659)
AW ~ BB KRBT Deposits paid for acquisition of
ZEl® property, plant and equipment (28,507) (17,027)
BAERTEE Purchase of intangible assets (1,550) -
HENTRE Investment in an associate (300) (233)
KEEBFER RS 53 Net cash used in investing activities (14,856) (119,978)
RE Financing activities
HERITER New borrowings raised 990,567 840,714
REKE Unclaimed dividends 56 12
BRIBITER Repayment of borrowings (740,166) (520,693)
EAFIRIT R HEABETR Interest on bank and other borrowings
ZF B paid (99,826) (84,380)
EARBARIFERERR Dividends paid to non-controlling
i ds shareholders of subsidiaries (60,363) (69,317)
[SEN):ESS Dividends paid (17,263) (39,234)
(FEEARTIEEREME ) Capital (reduction paid to) contribution
FEIERE R E by non-controlling shareholders (4,966) 9,450
BA—RNEAREIMER Acquisition of additional interests in a
subsidiary (1,393) (8,077)
BEVEHEEEECAS Principal payments for obligations
under finance leases (691) (899)
BN ) Repurchase of shares of subsidiaries (425) (44,909)
ENMBHEESECFE Interest on obligations under finance
leases paid (6) 97)
BBFELE ISP Net cash from financing activities 65,524 82,570
ReREERSEINFR Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 83,521 132,349
FUeReRkEERS Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of the year 977.879 846,155
HINEE 3 Y SR B ) = AL Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (2,859) (625)
FRCHASREERS Cash and cash equivalents at end of the
IRITHEGE ~ BRERS year, bank balances, deposits and cash 1,058,541 977,879
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1.

GENERAL

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in Hong
Kong and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office
and principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in the
corporate information section of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is also the functional currency of the Company.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The activities of
its principal subsidiaries and associates are set out in notes 43 and 44,
respectively.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the
current year

The Group has applied for the first time in current year the following
amendments to HKFRSs and Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKAS") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA").
Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for acquisitions of interests
in joint operations
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure initiative
Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Clarification of acceptable methods of
depreciation and amortisation

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

Agriculture: Bearer plants

Investment entities: Applying the
consolidation exception

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to HKFRSs
2012-2014 cycle

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has
had no material impact on the Group’s financial performance and
positions for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set
out in these consolidated financial statements.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments
to HKFRSs and HKASs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

8l -

BEMBREENER SRTER?
ERMIEWMELEAFE 159 B AHMER?
BB BIREEAE 1698 HE
BB BREED EEMGTEL
BAFZIBRIAR D IREREIR
P

E/%ﬁﬂ%i H2AER HEBM RS

SBASE BT A ERI B A5 IRER
BR—HIER
BB R
HEAIBSRSE
BT H?

& }% B R SR WEEEEE
FI0REEEGER HEERES
28 IERT R BMEENE

SHEE

ERGEER WETEN

BIFZBTTAR
EEGEER ?/HE AR B IRTE
F125 BT R FIRERIEE
Fw
Ehet S B W
%4053%21\;:.%
BB IR ELER “F-FEE"
ZABET R F—RFEHH
I EUES
ER(ERVFERERE INERZRFAN
TE®R)-RBH225% RE?

RIS
AR

—tHE—RA—BAREKRIRZFENE

2 PRI \F—-A-HEERRREENE

ARy e

3 PRI NEFE—B—HREERBZEEHRE
Ao

¢ E"H% EEZ B BRRFERBE

5 RIF—tFE-RA-BERZ2-NE—R—
H(BRERE ) RERFARCEFERRE

R o

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 7

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 40

Amendments to HKFRSs

HK(IFRIC) — Int 22

Financial instruments?

Revenue from contracts with customers?

Leases?

Classification and measurement of
share-based payment transactions?

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial instruments
with HKFRS 4 Insurance contracts?

Sale or contribution of assets between
an investor and its associate or joint
venture*

Disclosure initiative!

Recognition of deferred tax assets for
unrealised losses!

Transfers of investment property?

Annual improvements to HKFRSs
2014-2016 cycle®

Foreign currency transaction and
advance consideration?

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017 or 1
January 2018, as appropriate.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial assets, financial liabilities, general hedge
accounting and impairment requirements for financial assets.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 which are relevant to the Group are:

e all recognised financial assets that are within the scope of HKFRS
9 are required to be subsequently measured at amortised cost
or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are held within
a business model whose objective is to collect the contractual
cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding
are generally measured at amortised cost at the end of the
subsequent accounting periods. Debt instruments that are held
within a business model whose objective is achieved both by
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and
that have contractual terms that give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding, are generally measured at
FVTOCI. All other debt investments and equity investments are
measured at their fair values at the end of subsequent reporting
periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may make an
irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in the fair
value of an equity investment (that is not held for trading) in
other comprehensive income, with only dividend income generally
recognised in profit or loss.

e in relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS 9 requires
an expected credit loss model, as opposed to an incurred credit
loss model under HKAS 39. The expected credit loss model
requires an entity to account for expected credit losses and
changes in those expected credit losses at each reporting date
to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition. In other
words, it is no longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred
before credit losses are recognised.

Based on the Group's financial instruments and risk management
policies as at 31 March 2017, application of HKFRS 9 in the future may
have a material impact on the classification and measurement of the
Group's financial assets. The Group’s available-for-sale investments,
including those currently stated at cost less impairment, will either be
measured at fair value through profit or loss or be designated as fair
value through other comprehensive income (subject to fulfillment of
the designation criteria). In addition, the expected credit loss model
may result in early provision of credit losses which are not yet incurred
in relation to the Group's financial assets measured at amortised cost.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single comprehensive
model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from
contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the current
revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18 “Revenue”, HKAS
11 “Construction contracts” and the related interpretations when it
becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
Specifically, the standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue
recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a

performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred
to the customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has been added
in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive
disclosures are required by HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued clarifications to HKFRS 15 in relation to
the identification of performance obligations, principal versus agent
considerations, as well as licensing application guidance.

The management of the Company anticipates that the application of
HKFRS 15 in the future may result in more disclosures, however, the
management of the Company does not anticipate that the application
of HKFRS 15 will have a material impact on the timing and amounts of
revenue recognised in the respective reporting periods.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the identification of
lease arrangements and accounting treatments for both lessors and
lessees. HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS 17 “Leases” and the related
interpretations when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes leases and service contracts on the basis of
whether an identified asset is controlled by a customer. Distinctions of
operating and finance leases are removed for lessee accounting, and
is replaced by a model where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability have to be recognised for all leases by lessees, except for short-
term leases and leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and subsequently
measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions) less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted for any remeasurement
of the lease liability. The lease liability is initially measured at the
present value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date.
Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for interest and lease
payments, as well as the impact of lease modifications, amongst
others. For the classification of cash flows, operating lease payments
are presented as operating cash flows and the principal payment on
obligations under finance lease as financing cash flows. Under HKFRS
16, lease payments in relation to lease liability will be allocated into a
principal and an interest portion which will be presented as financing
cash flows.

Under HKAS 17, the Group shall recognise an asset and a related
finance lease liability for finance lease arrangement and prepaid
lease payments for leasehold lands where the Group is a lessee.
The application of HKFRS 16 may result in potential changes in
classification of these assets depending on whether the Group
presents right-of-use assets separately or within the same line item at
which the corresponding underlying assets would be presented if they
were owned.

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially carries
forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17, and
continues to require a lessor to classify a lease either as an operating
lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 16.

As at 31 March 2017, the Group has non-cancellable operating
lease commitments of HK$275,712,000 as disclosed in note 40. A
preliminary assessment indicates that these arrangements will meet
the definition of a lease under HKFRS 16, and hence the Group will
recognise a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability in respect
of all these leases unless they qualify for low value or short-term leases
upon the application of HKFRS 16. In addition, the application of new
requirements may result changes in measurement, presentation and
disclosure as indicated above. However, it is not practicable to provide
a reasonable estimate of the financial effect until the management of
the Company completes a detailed review.

Except as describe above, the management of the Company does not
anticipate that the application of the other new and amendments to
HKFRSs and HKASs will have a material impact on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain properties and financial
instruments, that are measured at revalued amounts or fair values
at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability
if market participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-
based payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2
“Share-based payment”, leasing transactions that are within the scope
of HKAS 17 “Leases”, and measurements that have some similarities
to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS
2 "Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36 “Impairment of assets”.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements
are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which
the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety,
which are described as follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within
Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly

or indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
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The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

e has power over the investee;

e is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of
the three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights of an
investee, it has power over the investee when the voting rights are
sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant activities
of the investee unilaterally. The Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether or not the Group’s voting rights in
an investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

e the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size
and dispersion of holdings of the other vote holders;

e potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote holders or
other parties;

e rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

e any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the
Group has, or does not have, the current ability to direct the
relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be made,
including voting patterns at previous shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control
over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired
or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases to
control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even
if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the
Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of
the Group's relevant components of equity including reserves and
the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted after re-
attribution of the relevant equity component, and the fair value of
the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the
fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary attributable
to owner of the Company. All amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for
as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities
of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to
another category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under HKAS 39,
when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

e deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities related to
employee benefit arrangements are recognised and measured
in accordance with HKAS 12 “Income taxes” and HKAS 19
“Employee benefits” respectively;

e liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree or share-based payment
arrangements of the Group entered into to replace share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree are measured
in accordance with HKFRS 2 “Share-based payment” at the
acquisition date (see the accounting policy below); and

e assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in
accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current assets held for sale and
discontinued operations” are measured in accordance with that
standard.

63



64

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conT'D)
FERBMEE@)

Year ended 31 March 2017 HZEZZF—

3.

FTEEHBE @)

g£Hmath e

FETVRATSZARE « REEEEFT LT
JF M RRBE NI EE R WIS
ERARER 2 AFE(NE )2 LREBR I
HEHRBCIBEERKIEZBEREY
ERETE o (MAEHTER - WEZATHEA
BEREECEENKELD 2 FHEBRX S
RE  RPBEE MRS
FEEBERE 2 HREE RS < A FE
(408 )z #%8  RIEZRERIRNIERERAE
BB -

R AEREREERFE AR BHEFELL
RUCBESHRENBARFEEIFZRME
R4 - ATRATEIBIEE 2 THE P E
ECEDRSEIZLPIRIGED AT E
STEEZLUERRZ /AN - HitMERZF
ERM R IR E AT ERE

E—EXEBEHIERER » AEE R
BRUEE IR W B B BNARSEEE
BESNCBEIRAVEERTE  TEE
IR SRR ANAE ) RIBRHER - fH2
BEBWHE - REERREREEMEE
Witz BB E R P ELMNSERENOE
ER4 0 KHBEENEEEE -

[
1451B%—Iﬁi%?%ﬁﬁFEZﬁ%gﬂTﬁﬁ’\%]\ﬁ?%
& ARTE 2 AN 2 R & 5T R )HRAE
ARETR{ERIE(ANE B

BBERANS @ ESOEREAMEER
AFFEEBRNG S EARER 2 REE
SENNSEARSELEM - MABLRNE
AHERERAFENEEZNREKTER

IR NER o

ENEmECREELBENSEFHNERN
SREATRN 2 B U B 2R Rk (L s SE SR AR
BE - REWEEL BB cRERBMS
ENRmEcREELEMENZRENE
REVEANRE - MRS EL Bz AW EE
BEREREE  RIBESESEAERE
EAPEEZBLCAEREE  HEAR
ZEA(FRSELBEMES INSHEEER
HEZHDEEZEM(NBESELEM
HE I HMEE -

TEZAZT—HLEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations (continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If,
after re-assessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously
held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the relevant
subsidiary’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially
measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement basis is made on
a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling
interests are measured at their fair value.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date when the Group obtains
control), and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit
or loss. Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior to
the acquisition date that have previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss where such
treatment would be appropriate if that interest were disposed of.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost
as established at the date of acquisition of the business (see the
accounting policy above) less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or groups of cash-
generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combinations, which represent the lowest level at which the goodwill is
monitored for internal management purposes and not larger than an
operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently whenever there is indication that the unit may be impaired.
For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-
generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment before the end of that
reporting period. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or group of cash-generating
units).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Goodwill (continued)

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable
amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the amount of
profit or loss on disposal.

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of an
associate is described below.

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not
control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated
in these consolidated financial statements using the equity method
of accounting, except when the investment, or a portion thereof, is
classified as held for sale, in which case it is or the portion so classified
is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current assets
held for sale and discontinued operations”. Any retained portion of
an investment in an associate that has not been classified as held for
sale shall be accounted for using the equity method. The financial
statements of associates used for equity accounting purposes are
prepared using uniform accounting policies as those of the Group
for like transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under the
equity method, an investment in an associate is initially recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the profit or loss and
other comprehensive income of the associate. When the Group’s
share of losses of an associate exceeds the Group's interest in that
associate (which includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses
are recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes an associate.
On acquisition of the investment in an associate, any excess of the
cost of the investment over the Group’s share of the net fair value
of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is recognised
as goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of the
investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the
period in which the investment is acquired.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine whether it
is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to the
Group’s investment in an associate. When necessary, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment of assets” as
a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value
in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount.
Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of
the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in
accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount
of the investment subsequently increases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments in associates (continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an associate,
it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in the investee
with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. When
the Group retains an interest in the former associate and the retained
interest is a financial asset within the scope of HKAS 39, the Group
measures the retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair
value is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition. The difference
between the carrying amount of the associate and the fair value of
any retained interest and any proceeds from disposing the relevant
interest in the associate is included in the determination of the gain
or loss on disposal of the associate. In addition, the Group accounts
for all amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that associate on the same basis as would be
required if that associate had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income by that associate would be reclassified to
profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the
Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a
reclassification adjustment) when the equity method is discontinued.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group, profits
and losses resulting from the transactions with the associate are
recognised in the Group's consolidated financial statements only to
the extent of interests in the associate that are not related to the
Group.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated customer returns, rebates
and other similar allowances.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be reliably
measured; when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow
to the Group and when specific criteria have been met for each of the
Group's activities, as described below.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods are
delivered and titles have passed.

Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the
rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ right to receive payment has been established.

The Group's accounting policy for recognition of revenue from
operating leases is described in the accounting policy for leasing
below.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale
if their carrying amounts will be recovered principally through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is
regarded as met only when the asset (or disposal group) is available
for immediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms that
are usual and customary for sales of such asset (or disposal group)
and the sale is highly probable. Management must be committed
to the sale, which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a
completed sale within one year from the date of classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss of control
of a subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities of that subsidiary are
classified as held for sale when the criteria described above are met,
regardless of whether the Group will retain a non-controlling interest
in its former subsidiary after the sale.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held for sale are
measured at the lower of their previous carrying amount and fair value
less costs of disposal.

Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for
capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at their fair values. Gains or losses
arising from changes in the fair value of investment properties are
included in profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use or no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
that asset) is included in the profit or loss in the period in which the
property is derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment held for use in the production or supply
of goods or services, or for administrative purposes (other than asset
under construction and freehold land) are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost or revalued amount less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Advantage has been taken of the transitional relief provided by HKAS
16 "Property, plant and equipment” from the requirement to make
regular revaluations of the Group’s land and buildings which had
been carried at revalued amounts prior to 30 September 1995, and
accordingly no further revaluation of land and buildings is carried out.
Prior to 30 September 1995, the revaluation increase arising on the
revaluation of these assets was credited to the property revaluation
reserve. Any future decreases in value of these assets will be dealt
with as an expense to the extent that they exceed the balance, if any,
on the property revaluation reserve relating to a previous revaluation
of the same asset. On the subsequent sale or retirement of a revalued
asset, the corresponding revaluation surplus is transferred to retained
profits.
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Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or
administrative purposes and freehold land are carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional fees
and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance
with the Group’s accounting policy. Such properties are classified to
the appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets,
on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the assets
are ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost or valuation of
assets other than properties under construction less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method
or the reducing balance method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted
for on a prospective basis.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected
useful lives on the same basis as owned assets. However, when there
is no reasonable certainty that ownership will be obtained by the end
of the lease term, assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease
term and their useful lives.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the assets and is recognised in the profit or loss.

Intangible assets

(a) Intangible assets acquired separately — Trademarks and
Technical know-how
Trademarks are measured initially at purchase cost and are
amortised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives,
which are estimated to be twenty years.

The cost of acquiring rights to technical know-how for the
production of new products is amortised on a straight-line
method, over a period of three to five years from the date of
acquisition or over the licence period, whichever is shorter.

The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes
in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets (continued)
(b) Internally-generated intangible assets — Research and

(c)

development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in
the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development
activities is recognised if, and only if, all of the following have
been demonstrated:

e the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so
that it will be available for use or sale;

e the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell
it;

e the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

e how the intangible asset will generate probable future
economic benefits;

e the availability of adequate technical, financial and other
resources to complete the development and to use or sell the
intangible asset; and

e the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to
the intangible asset during its development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible
asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when
the intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria above.
Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is charged to profit or loss in the period
in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated intangible
assets are recorded at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any, on the same basis as
intangible assets acquired separately. The resultant asset is
amortised on a straight-line basis over its estimated useful live, not
exceeding ten years, commencing in the year when the product is
put into commercial use.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination -
Customer relationship

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
recognised separately from goodwill and are initially recognised at
their fair value at the acquisition date, which is regarded as their
cost.

The customer relationship is amortised using straight-line method,
over a period of five years. Subsequent to initial recognition,
the customer relationship is recorded at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future
economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains and
losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when
the asset is derecognised.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets (other than
goodwiill)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with finite useful
lives to determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss, if any.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of
future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if
applicable) and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. The carrying amount
of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs
of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and zero.
The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been
allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the
unit. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss,
unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount under another
standard, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
decrease under that standard.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount
of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal
of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss,
unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount under another
standard, in which case the reversal of impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation increase under that standard.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"))
are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets included financial assets at FVTPL, available-for-sale
("AFS”) financial assets and loans and receivables. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is
determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases
or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments.

Financial assets at FVTPL
A financial asset may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

e such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement
or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

e the financial asset forms part of a group of financial assets or
financial liabilities or both, which is managed and its performance
is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group's
documented risk management or investment strategy, and
information about the grouping is provided internally on that
basis; or

e it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded
derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire combined contract
(asset or liability) to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL (including investment in convertible
note) are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising from
remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on
the financial assets. Fair value is determined in the manner described
in note 35.
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Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables (including trade and other receivables, dividend
receivable, bank balances, deposits and cash) are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate,
except for short-term receivables where the recognition of interest
would be immaterial.

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated
as AFS or are not classified as financial assets at FVTPL, loans and
receivables or held-to-maturity investments.

Equity securities held by the Group that are classified as AFS financial
assets and are traded in an active market are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period. Dividends on AFS equity investments
are recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive the
dividends is established. Other changes in the carrying amount of
AFS financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated under the heading of available-for-sale investment
reserve. When the investment is disposed of or is determined to be
impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
reserve is reclassified to profit or loss (see the accounting policy in
respect of impairment loss on financial assets below).

AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted market price in an
active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are
measured at cost less any identified impairment losses at the end of
the reporting period.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators
of impairment at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a
result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial
assets have been affected.

For AFS equity investment, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of that investment below its cost is considered to be objective

evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could
include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

e breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
financial re-organisation.
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Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could
include the Group's past experience of collecting payments, an
increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
average credit period of 30 to 120 days, and observable changes in
national or local economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of
trade and other receivables where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.
When trade and other receivables are considered uncollectible, it is
written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be impaired, cumulative
losses previously recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss in the period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
losses was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount
of the investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised.

In respect of AFS equity investments, impairment losses previously
recognised in profit or loss are not reversed through profit or loss. Any
increase in fair value subsequent to impairment loss is recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of
available-for-sale investment reserve.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liability and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified as
either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of an equity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including creditors and other payables, bank loans
and import loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition. Interest
expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date when
derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently remeasured
to their fair value at the end of the reporting period. The resulting gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately unless the derivative is
designated and effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the
timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends on the nature of the
hedge relationship.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer
to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are initially
measured at their fair values and, if not designated as at FVTPL, are
subsequently measured at the higher of: (i) the amount of obligation
under the contract, as determined in accordance with HKAS 37
“Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets”; and (ii)
the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative
amortisation recognised over the guarantee period.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest
in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay.
If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the
financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the
proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Costs of inventories are determined on first-in, first-out method. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories
less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the
sale.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before taxation’ as reported in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss because of income and
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that
are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax base used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition,
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.
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Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in
the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments and interests
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will
be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred taxation assets is reviewed at the end
of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred tax
assets for investment properties that are measured using the fair value
model, the carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when
it relates to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are
also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor
Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the Group
at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at the
present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding
liability to the lessor is included in the consolidated statement of
financial position as a finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and
reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges
are recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless they are directly
attributable to a qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalised in
accordance with the Group’s general policy on borrowing cost.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leasing (continued)

The Group as lessee (continued)

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring land held
under operating leases, are recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term. Contingent rentals arising under operating
leases are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating
leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate
benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on
a straight-line basis.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are re-
translated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not re-translated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and
on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are
translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong
dollars) using exchange rate prevailing at the end of the reporting
period. Income and expenses are translated at the average exchange
rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
the period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity under the heading of translation reserve (attributable to non-
controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group’s
entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, or a
partial disposal of an interest in an associate that includes a foreign
operation of which the retained interest becomes a financial asset), all
of the exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified
to profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that
does not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary, the
proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences are re-
attributed to non-controlling interests and are not recognised in
profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals of
associates that do not result in the Group losing significant influence),
the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange differences is
reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired
arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation on or after 1 April
2005 are treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation
and translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Exchange differences arising are recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sales.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the defined contribution retirement plan, including stated
managed retirement benefit scheme and the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme, are recognised as expenses when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees of the Group after 7 November
2002 and vested on or after 1 April 2005

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-
based-payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period, based on the Group's estimate of equity instruments that will
eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity (share option
reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimate of
the number of equity instruments expected to vest. The impact of
revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss
such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to share option reserve. For share options
that vest immediately at the date of grant, the fair value of the share
options granted is expensed immediately to profit or loss.

When the share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to retained
profits. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting date
or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to retained
profits.

Share options granted to employees on or before 7 November 2002,
or granted after 7 November 2002 and vested before 1 April 2005

The financial impact of share options granted is not recorded in the
consolidated financial statements until such time as the options are
exercised, and no charge is recognised in profit or loss in respect of
the value of options granted. Upon the exercise of the share options,
the resulting shares issued are recorded as additional share capital.
Options which lapse or are cancelled prior to their exercise date are
deleted from the register of outstanding options.
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4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the management of the Company is required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-
going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year.

Impairment of trade receivables

The policy for allowances for bad and doubtful debts of the Group
is based on the evaluation of recoverability of trade receivables by
management'’s judgement. A considerable amount of judgement is
required in assessing the ultimate recoverability of these receivables,
including the current creditworthiness of each customer, the past
collection history of each customer and aging analysis of the trade
receivable. If the financial conditions of customers of the Group were
to deteriorate, resulting in the impairment of their ability to make
payments, additional allowances may be required.

As at 31 March 2017, the carrying amount of trade receivables was
HK$914,884,000 (2016: HK$797,083,000) net of accumulated
impairment loss of HK$46,493,000 (2016: HK$47,355,000).

Allowances for inventories

Inventory is stated at lower of cost and net realisable value. The
management of the Group reviews regularly the suitability of the
Group's allowance policy for inventories and carries out review of
the inventories at the end of each reporting period. At the end of
each reporting period, management carries out the assessment of
determining allowance for inventories by comparing the carrying
amounts of inventories with their net realisable values. The net
realisable values are primarily determined with reference to estimated
selling prices, less the estimated cost to completion, as appropriate.
In addition, the management of the Group identifies slow-moving
inventories with reference to aging analysis and determines the
net realisable value for inventories by considering the saleability of
inventories based on current market demand and future sales plan.
When the expectation of the net realisable value is less than the cost,
further allowance may arise.

Allowance for inventories of HK$20,090,000 (2016: HK$21,014,000)
on inventories was recognised during the year ended 31 March
2017. As at 31 March 2017, the carrying amount of inventories was
HK$848,425,000 (2016: HK$904,126,000).
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4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Impairment of properties, plant and equipment of a certain
plant in the Group (the “Plant”)

The management reviews any indication that property, plant and
equipment may be impaired and tests whether property, plant and
equipment have suffered any impairment whenever there is any
indication that the assets may have been impaired. During the years
ended 31 March 2016 and 2017, the Plant which was operating in
manufacture of a particular battery product incurred losses, which
indicated its property, plant and equipment may be impaired. The
management conducted an impairment assessment on the property,
plant and equipment of the Plant, which is considered as an individual
cash generating unit of the Group. In determining whether property,
plant and equipment are impaired requires an estimation of the
recoverable amount of the Plant. The estimated recoverable amount of
the Plant has been determined based on the cash flow projection from
the latest financial budgets approved by management with a suitable
discount rate. The key assumptions used in the discounted cash flow
calculation includes budgeted sales growth rate, budgeted operating
expenditure and the discount rate. The budgeted sales growth rate
is based on management's expectations for the market development
on products. Where the actual future cash flow is less than expected,
an additional impairment loss may arise. As at 31 March 2016,
the management determined that the recoverable amount of the
Plant was less than its carrying amount and therefore, impairment
loss of HK$25,000,000 was recognised. As at 31 March 2017, the
management considered that no additional provision for impairment
loss was required based on the estimated recoverable amount of the
Plant.

Estimated impairment of goodwiill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation
of the value in use of the cash-generating units to which goodwill
has been allocated. The value in use calculation requires the Group
to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-
generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value. Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, a material impairment loss may arise. For the year ended
31 March 2016, the Group recognised impairment loss on goodwill
of HK$16,382,000 (2017: Nil). As at 31 March 2017, the carrying
amount of goodwill was HK$102,066,000 (2016: HK$102,066,000).
Details of the recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in note 20.
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4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Impairment of interests in associates and amounts due from
associates

Determining whether interests in associates are impaired requires an
estimation of the recoverable amount of the associates. Recoverable
amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
The recoverable amount of the associates is determined based on the
estimated fair value less costs to sell of the associates. Management
has evaluated the recovery of the investments based on such estimates
and is confident that the allowance for impairment, where necessary,
is adequate. No impairment loss was recognised in respect of interests
in associates or amounts due from associates during the year ended
31 March 2017 and 2016 was recognised in respect of interests in
associates.

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

Some of the Group's assets are measured at fair value for financial
reporting purposes. The directors have a designated team to
determine the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair
value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of the Group’s investment properties,
the Group uses market-observable data to the extent it is available.
Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages third party
qualified valuers to perform the valuation of the Group’s investment
properties. At the end of each reporting period, the management
of the Group works closely with the qualified external valuers to
establish and determine the appropriate valuation techniques and
inputs for Level 2 and Level 3 fair value measurements. The Group will
first consider and adopt Level 2 inputs where inputs can be derived
observable quoted prices in the active market. When Level 2 inputs are
not available, the Group will adopt valuation techniques that include
Level 3 inputs. Where there is a material change in the fair value of
the assets, the causes of the fluctuations will be reported to directors.
Any changes in the price per square metre in reference with recent
transactions will affect the fair value of the investment properties of
the Group. Information about the valuation techniques and inputs used
in determining the fair value of the Group’s investment properties are
disclosed in note 13.

In estimating the fair value of the Group’s available-for-sale
investments and derivative financial instruments, the Group uses
market-observable data to the extent it is available. Where Level 1
inputs are not available, the management of the Group will assess
the valuation of financial instruments with reference to the fair value
quoted in the over-the-counter market with the adjustments for the
lack of marketability. Where there is a material change in the fair
value of the assets, the causes of the fluctuations will be reported
to the board of directors. Any changes in the marketability of the
investments will affect the fair value of the investments. Note 35
provides detailed information about the valuation techniques, inputs
and key assumptions used in the determination of the fair value of
the Group's available-for-sale investments and derivative financial
instruments.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions.
Judgement is involved in determining the group-wide provision for
income taxes. There are certain transactions and computations for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. The Group recognises liabilities for expected tax
issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recognised, such differences will impact
the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION

For the purposes of resources allocation and performance assessment,
the executive directors, who are the chief operating decision makers
("CODM"), assess profit or loss of these operating divisions using a
measure of operating profit which exclude: interest income, other
expenses, finance costs and unallocated expenses.

The three main operating divisions of the Group, each of which
constitutes an operating and reportable segment for financial
reporting purpose, are:

Electronics — development, manufacture and distribution of electronics
and acoustic products, automotive wire harness and other businesses.

Batteries — development, manufacture and distribution of batteries
and battery related products.

Other investments — holding of other investments which are mainly
engaged in selling and distribution business.

No operating segments have been aggregated to derive the reportable
segments of the Group.

The Group's turnover represents sales of electronics and acoustics,
automotive wire harness, batteries and other products.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by

these operating and reportable segments:

Year ended 31 March 2017

Hitk &
B7 it Other it ait
Electronics Batteries investments Eliminations Total
Fi#EwT Fi#T F#ET Fi#Ex Fi#Ex
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
£ TURNOVER
HIMEE External sales 1,558,819 4,263,755 - - 5,822,574
EEREEE Inter-segment sales 28 174 - (202) -
EJedF 3] Segment revenue 1,558,847 4,263,929 - (202) 5,822,574
ES RESULTS
EEE Segment results 160,921 232,032 (2,492) - 390,461
HEIA Interest income 4,790
HinER Other expenses (36,899)
B ISR AR Finance costs (96,229)
ReENKECER Unallocated expenses (51,919)
IR Profit before taxation 210,204
BE_E-ARE=-A=1t—HLEE Year ended 31 March 2016
Hitig s
BT Eyic) Other HeH &3t
Electronics Batteries  investments  Eliminations Total
FHBT FHBIT FHIT FHT FBT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
- TURNOVER
HIMEE External sales 1,526,423 4,269,044 - - 5,795,467
EBRHEE Inter-segment sales 38 2,223 - (2,261) -
ESlE Segment revenue 1,526,461 4,271,267 - (2,261) 5,795,467
ES RESULTS
ESiE S Segment results 172,913 228,718 (1,756) - 399,875
FEIA Interest income 9549
HinER Other expenses (41,382)
BT RA Finance costs (89,543)
RSB ER Unallocated expenses (73,678)
FRBERTEF Profit before taxation 204,821

EBRMEEDH2ENSERMERE -

Inter-segment sales are charged by reference to market prices.
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and liabilities by

reportable segments:

Hitiz &
EF Bt Other &t
Electronics Batteries investments Total
FiET FiET FiET FiET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
R-E—tF=A=1+—H At 31 March 2017
&E Assets
EBEE Segment assets 1,915,413 2,978,928 29,000 4,923,341
TEENEEE Unallocated assets 1,221,720
REBEE Consolidated total assets 6,145,061
aE Liabilities
¥KaE Segment liabilities 293,796 1,000,986 44 1,294,826
N =L Unallocated liabilities 2,396,419
mRBEE Consolidated total liabilities 3,691,245
HingE
BT oy Other AF
Electronics Batteries  investments Total
FisT T Fi#T Fi#T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
NIF—X"E=A=1+—H At 31 March 2016
BE Assets
EBEE Segment assets 1,861,174 2,854,499 29,000 4,744,673
RN BEE Unallocated assets 1,138,108
IRABEE Consolidated total assets 5,882,781
afE Liabilities
ES A=l Segment liabilities 318,199 828,183 46 1,146,428
ReenEaR Unallocated liabilities 2,176,599
TeRaE Consolidated total liabilities 3,323,027

MEERBRELEBZEANERDE -

Freg s s RERIREE  WUEIRIR
WITHEBERS 2RRTHEEER
ReXBHAREANEGBEE - TEE
ENBRERERE &

BRYEBABIE - WBHESE  RITE
AEEEEE B3R EERRAEER
ReEXBEHARAENHEGBEE A&
ENEEREFRS -

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and allocating
resources between segments:

e all assets are allocated to operating segments other than goodwill,
deferred tax assets, taxation recoverable, bank balances, deposits
and cash, assets classified as held for sale and assets used jointly
by operating segments; and

e all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other than
taxation payable, obligations under finance lease, bank loans and
import loans, borrowings, deferred tax liabilities and liabilities for
which operating segments are jointly liable.
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5. ﬂ;ﬁgﬁ(/fg) 5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Hith&g s Other information
BF it Hith 3=
Electronics Batteries Others Consolidated

FiEn Fign Fign Fign
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000

BE_Z—tHE=-A=1+—HILEE Year ended 31 March 2017
BEEABEER Amounts included in measure of
DEREFINE B S segment assets and segment

profit or loss

PrLBtE AR Interests in associates 1,110,741 293,043 - 1,403,784
BAXM Capital expenditure 41,236 212,867 3,848 257,951
rE R Depreciation and amortisation 29,078 103,738 6,225 139,041
FrHEBE ARZEE Share of results of
associates 112,851 29,720 - 142,571
FEEE Allowance for inventories 3,092 16,998 - 20,090
RAREFEE Allowance for doubtful debt 193 2,922 - 3,115
M2~ BB RGRIETER Impairment loss recognised on
BUEEE property, plant and equipment - 11,812 - 11,812
DEBEZBEREA Closure costs of Shanghai factory - 13,849 - 13,849
HEWE « BEREEZ Gain on disposal of property,
i plant and equipment 18,338 53,713 5 72,056
BY e Hith wa
Electronics Batteries Others  Consolidated

THET FET FET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

HE_S—ANE=A=1T—HLEE Year ended 31 March 2016
BEENPEER Amounts included in measure of
DEEFINEBCEE segment assets and segment

profit or loss

Fr{EH S /ARl iR Interests in associates 1,066,579 266,930 - 1,333,509
EARZ M Capital expenditure 77,058 107,994 12,060 197,112
E R Depreciation and amortisation 24,168 107,048 7,203 138,419
FraBE ARZEE Share of results of
associates 108,318 19,840 - 128,158

GEEE Allowance for inventories 5,352 15,662 - 21,014
W~ BB NEEER Impairment loss recognised on

REEE property, plant and equipment - 25,000 - 25,000
HEWE - BEREEZ (Loss) gain on disposal of property,

(B8 s plant and equipment (185) 19,077 207 19,099
s B Geographical information
AREEZEELTHBHERE PR A EM The Group’s manufacturing and marketing functions are carried out
DORMIR ~ FRER ~ BOM SR SOMBIZELT - in the PRC and certain other Asia-Pacific, Middle East, European and

American countries.

TREHRT —BEAREELIINREF P, The following table provides an analysis of the Group's sales from
BECEASEEN T MR R B ERE BT external customers based on location of customers and information
FRIRE EREWEIRIE « #2& RFENMFKIBEUS about its non-current assets other than available-for-sale investments,
MIEMEN & EAIHIIZ AT | deferred tax assets and receivables, deposits and prepayments by

geographical locations of assets:
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5.

SEEER7) 5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Hola i R ) Geographical information (continued)
-] FERENEE
Turnover Non-current assets
2017 2016 2017 2016
FiEx T Fi#n Tt
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
= The PRC

&8 - Hong Kong 465,937 485652 404,485 361,144
— At - Mainland China 1,741,734 1,693,561 1,848,433 1,939,008
EhTaiER Other Asian countries 591,614 638,591 558,843 449,736
BOM Europe 1,427,423 1,174,727 107,531 92,152
ZM Americas 1,507,786 1,688,303 942 2,890
Hith Others 88,080 114,633 5 41

REEZIREFWARIFERBE E 2 g
BH - ZERNEREARD A - WHERHEEAD
SOMBIZR ~ BN~ =M REAM DT &
EEERRE-—SNESAHENNEAS
BE o DR AMIONBEIR i BEEMIE
MEEEETER/ETE  HE K SERAE
TEON NEXEMERBEETRRER L
B T M N EEEMIER B E AR
2N

FEERBA
DT RASLE B ERERZIIADN

5,822,574 5,795,467 2,920,239 2,844,971

The geographical information of the Group’s revenue from external
customers and non-current assets by individual significant countries
in other Asian countries, Europe, Americas and others is not available
and management considers the cost to obtain the information
would be excessive. The revenue and non-current assets classified
as “Other Asian countries” mainly represents Taiwan, Singapore
and Malaysia, revenue and non-current assets classified as “Europe”
mainly represents United Kingdom and Germany and revenue and
non-current assets classified as “Americas” mainly represents North
America.

Revenue from major products
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue from its major
products:

2017 2016

FExT T

HK$'000 HK$'000

B NGEBER Electronics and acoustics products 1,288,333 1,266,459
BN TR ER Batteries and battery related products 4,263,755 4,269,044
FRERCAR E G Automotive wire harness products 270,486 259,964

FEEREH
REEZFE—tFLR-F-—REFZA=1—
HIEFE  REEMNE-—FFM10%HLULE
REBZWN -

5,822,574 5,795,467

Information about major customers
No single customer contributed 10% or more to the Group’s revenue
during the years ended 31 March 2017 and 2016.
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6. HifthszH 6. OTHER EXPENSES
2017 2016
FiEn FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI ~ ME MR BEEE Impairment loss recognised on property,
(F¥zE14) plant and equipment (note 14) 11,812 25,000
EREERESE(MET20) Impairment loss recognised on goodwill
(note 20) - 16,382
DBRE < BB IEE ) Closure costs of Shanghai factory (note) 13,849 -
EERE &R Customer’s dispute settlement 11,238 -
36,899 41,382
W REEFRR T —tHF=A=1+T—HLHF Note: Amount included the redundancy fee and provision for cost incurred in
B ASERBEANTPRZNBEAR MmN closing down the factory of the Group's subsidiary located in PRC for the
HEERERER - year ended 31 March 2017.
7. BATERRAE 7. FINANCE COSTS
2017 2016
FiE&n FET
HK$°000 HK$'000
SRIT READIETR Interest on bank and other
FEER borrowings 96,221 89,446
MBHEETNEER Interest on obligations under
finance leases 8 97

96,229 89,543




88

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTD)

FaiREMEE=)

Year ended 31 March 2017 #E_ZS—+F=A=+—RHLFE

8. FRMATHEFI

8. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

2017 2016
FiEx Tt
HK$°000 HK$'000
FRERDEA DRERATIER ¢ Profit before taxation has been arrived at after charging:
EEHS(ME9) Directors' emoluments (see note 9) 30,579 31,852
HEET#HS 2B NER Other staff's salaries, allowances and welfare 1,030,854 1,044,737
ETRANERA Total employee benefits expenses 1,061,433 1,076,589
M~ BENEEZIE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
-BEEE - owned assets 134,678 133,905
—-BEHECEE — assets under finance lease 31 231
134,709 134,136
A < Auditor's remuneration

AEE Current year 11,887 11,433

FE(RINRB B (Over) underprovision in prior years (215) 691
AREFEHE BEETEZ R ) Allowance for doubtful debts (included in administrative

expenses) 3,115 -
GEER(BRETEZEA) Allowance for inventories (included in administrative expenses) 20,090 21,014
B EEMH( BEETESEA ) Amortisation of intangible assets (included in administrative

expenses) 4,332 4,283
ERARET8H Bad debts written off 78 -
BRAST B EERA Cost of inventories recognised as expenses 4,363,541 4,309,705
nEEENAEES Minimum lease payments made in respect of

HEM*E Rental premises 65,746 54,319

Hith Others 4,885 5,055
MRERASH Research expenditure incurred 94,405 90,731
TSR T ACERER Realised loss on derivative financial instruments - 2,161
MESRIRECRERESR Unrealised loss on derivative financial instruments - 2,866
PSEEH NS and after crediting:

HEME - BB RRE W Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 72,056 19,099
ZEWE-FANBAR W Gain on bargain purchase arising from the acquisition

of a subsidiary 777 -
BEWECNTEES) Gain on fair value change of investment property

MELZ M 1,071 -
FEMNEARR LW Gain on deregistration of subsidiaries 4,283 -
SBITER ST EMA Interest income from bank deposits and balances 2,658 3,873
AT A BIRA Interest income from associates 236 614
HAiFEWERIE 2 R SU A Interest income from other receivables 1,896 5,062
FRGEDERSBAIR Rental income from investment properties,

185,000 7T( ZF—RE ¢ less outgoings of HK$185,000 (2016: HK$195,000)

195,000/ 7T ) 825 1,116
mESRTECERRA Realised gain on derivative financial instruments 1,166 -
pekllog Exchange gain 51,786 23,487
At ESREE IR BB Dividend income from available-for-sale financial assets 27 -
RERERREEE(MEE) Unclaimed warranty cost provision (Note) - 7,327

MyaE

EAR BRI —E = HEGPTERH50%
BREERERRCAELE LBSTHRR
BIRAT - @Y RERERREBEE - %
ERREFCARARRDTHREME » VB
ETR-AREZA=t—HILEE 280K
B EEA IR R PR -

Note: The amount represents the reversal of warranty provision relating to
the disposal of the previously 50% held joint venture, Shanghai Jinting
Automobile Harness Limited in 2013. As the warranty provision was valid
for two years after the completion of transactions, the entire amount was
reversed during the year ended 31 March 2016 and recognised in the
profit or loss.
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9. EERESFHNROBEEFHNES

ESRESFHRESHH

EEREH

EASRENTFIE(ZF—RE  LR)ER

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REMUNERATION AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments and employees’
emoluments
Directors and chief executive
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the nine (2016: nine)

RABF < FHanT - directors and the chief executive are as follows:
2017
H it Z
Other emoluments
RIRHER ade vt
HER BRI SHEIER
HitigF! Performance Retirement
we Salariesand  related incentive benefits scheme &t
Fees other benefits payments contribution Total
Tign Fign Tign Fign Fign
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(HiEEi)
(Note i)
ZE{hgs Victor LO Chung Wing 10 8,461 1,151 613 10,235
Z{az LEUNG Pak Chuen 10 3,789 2,973 298 7,070
BEE Richard KU Yuk Hing 10 2,029 363 174 2,576
T Andrew CHUANG Siu Leung 10 2,919 389 236 3,554
R Brian LI Yiu Cheung 10 3,485 2,433 286 6,214
2R LUI Ming Wah 260 - - - 260
B Frank CHAN Chi Chung 250 - - - 250
RER CHAN Kei Biu 210 - - - 210
RRE Karen NG Ka Fai 210 - - _ 210
980 20,683 7,309 1,607 30,579
2016
A
Other emoluments
FENE BRIKER
ek BRI STRIRLR
HieA Performance Retirement
we Salaries and related incentive benefits scheme e
Fees other benefits payments contribution Total
FHT T FHT FHET FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
)
(Note i)
ZE{hgs Victor LO Chung Wing 10 8,451 2,859 613 11,933
22 LEUNG Pak Chuen 10 3,838 3,013 268 7,129
BEE Richard KU Yuk Hing 10 2,029 471 174 2,684
e Andrew CHUANG Siu Leung 10 2,817 374 227 3,428
AR Brian LI Yiu Cheung 10 3,393 2,152 275 5,830
2R LUI Ming Wah 250 - - - 250
L Frank CHAN Chi Chung 240 - - - 240
BRER CHAN Kei Biu 200 - - - 200
RRE Karen NG Ka Fai 158 - - - 158
898 20,528 8,869 1,557 31,852
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9. ESRESFHROIBREFHES <)

EFREAFHRESHH <)

EEREH w)
FfEE -

(i) REMARBX N REZFEEEE
BRIRE N A LR THISHAT BFEE -

(i) BAPEEERFARATMRE - 7 diREE
ZFNC BRI RREPTRAZ R -

(i) DIERTESTESHM - ERZRRFRZA
NRRAEERECEBRERT - DIEHE
SOEITE R RIERTESH 0 EERW
SERNRER R

/75
FEERAFEESHFN L2 REERRE=S
B TF—REF  ZR)AAEFNBE(H
21BN ERTE) - Hgma( —F—K
FMBIARBEREFM I FARESRE
BEZFMIT

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REMUNERATION AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (continued)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments and employees’
emoluments (continued)
Directors and chief executive (continued)

Notes:

@)

(ii)

(iii)

The performance related incentive payments were determined
with reference to the operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics for both years.

Mr. Victor LO Chung Wing is also the chief executive of the Company
and his emoluments disclosed above include those for services rendered
by him as the chief executive.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly for
their services in connection with the management of the affairs of the
Company and the Group. The independent non-executive directors’ and
non-executive director’s emoluments shown above were mainly for their
services as directors of the Company.

Employees

The five highest paid individuals of the Group for the year included
three (2016: three) directors or the chief executive of the Company,
details of whose emoluments are set out above. The emoluments of
the remaining two (2016: two) highest paid employees of the Group,
not being a director of the Company, are as follows:

2017 2016
FiE&x FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
i N B AR R Salaries and other benefits 4,591 4,553
ZE)HEE) Performance related incentive
payments 5,879 4,368
RRERIFTEIHER Retirement benefit scheme
contributions 217 211
10,687 9,132
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9. EFRESFHNROBEEFHES <)

EFRESFHRESTHM =)

ES =)
fhFIREFENEEEIZ0T ¢

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REMUNERATION AND FIVE

HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (continued)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments and employees’
emoluments (continued)

Employees (continued)

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

EEHE
No. of employees
2017 2016
4,000,001 7t —4,500,0005 7T HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 - 1
4,500,001t —5,000,00057T HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 1 1
5,500,001t —6,000,000/& 7T HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,000,000 1 -

RREEER  WEETReHIN AR
E(BEEE REALEE MSFAER
ASE MAREE 2 ZE KA EB AL
B RMEFER  MESENEHKEL
A -

No emolument was paid to the five highest paid individuals (including
directors, chief executive and employees) as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office during
both years. None of the directors or the chief executive has waived
any emoluments during both years.

10. 1§ 10. TAXATION
2017 2016
FiEn T
HK$'000 HK$'000
(S The charge comprises:
EBERER Hong Kong Profits Tax
—REEIE — charge for the year 5,170 3,895
—FFEEC AR — underprovision in previous years 76 5,015
5,246 8,910
EBLISNAD I R FLIR Taxation in jurisdictions
other than Hong Kong
—RNEERIE - charge for the year 96,175 96,795
—FFEZREINEE — overprovision in previous years (4,469) (10,762)
91,706 86,033
96,952 94,943
IRIERIIAS (=8 ) (FEE30) Deferred taxation charge (credit)
(see note 30)
—KEE — current year 6,221 (8,394)
103,173 86,549
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10. ﬁlﬁ(/g) 10. TAXATION (continued)
EHLIM T ET R A EZ TSR TEA Income tax on profits assessable outside Hong Kong mainly arose
RS ZERTER(T EMERE DOMEEA from PRC Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and United Kingdom
AFTER - DRI E25%F24% 518 - corporate income tax was calculated at a rate of 25% and 24%,

respectively.

FRIBZ HERFUT ¢ A statement of reconciliation of taxation is as follows:
2017 2016
Fign FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
BB AR A Profit before taxation 210,204 204,821
BREBAEHEI16.5%( ZF—7"E 1 16.5%) Tax charge at the Hong Kong Profits
HEHIES tax rate of 16.5% (2016: 16.5%) 34,684 33,795
FrbBE AR HBRE Tax effect of share of results of associates (23,524) (21,146)
TEREREZ M HBRE Tax effect of expenses not deductible
for tax purposes 26,890 21,729
RRBACRBHE Tax effect of income not taxable for
tax purposes (5,921) (6,036)
KERTEBBCHEYE Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 63,198 51,131
FERAFARARESBCHEYE Tax effect on utilisation of tax losses
previously not recognised (13,076) (10,921)
BBLOMERRARE  ZE Effect of different tax rates in jurisdictions
other than Hong Kong 12,792 12,274
EARRAAE R TBINAEHR Withholding tax on distributed and
undistributed profit 12,523 11,470
FEECEIMNEE Overprovision in previous years (4,393) (5,747)
REERIE Taxation charge for the year 103,173 86,549
11. |2 11. DIVIDENDS
2017 2016
FiERT Tt
HK$'000 HK$'000
NARFERER BN | Dividends recognised as distribution
during the year:
BEIRE T RERBRE - 8R1.05( 2016 Final dividend — 1.0 HK cent
(ZF—REF 5 —AFRERE—2.55(l) (2016: 2015 Final dividend —
2.5 HK cents) per share 7,847 19,617
EIREZF—ERBRE - R.25( 2017 Interim dividend - 1.2 HK cents
(ZE—RE 25— "FPHERE—2.58) (2016: 2016 Interim dividend —
2.5 HK cents) per share 9,416 19,617
17,263 39,234
EEREEBRBRBBRESR1.2EMW A final dividend of 1.2 HK cents (2016: 1.0 HK cent) per share has
(ZEB—XF SR1.08) » BFENE been proposed by the directors and it is subject to approval by the
BEITZREBAFERE LERSEB - BRE shareholders in the forthcoming annual general meeting. This dividend
9,416,000 7T( Z = — /N 4E 7,847,000 of HK$9,416,000 (2016: HK$7,847,000) has been recognised in the
T0ERARR 2 EFEETRRER - dividend reserve of the Company.
BRCEFE—tHFEEESR24BWW(ZF—X On the basis of 2.4 HK cents (2016: 3.5 HK cents) per share for 2017,
F35%) PHERBEREEER total interim and final dividends amount to HK$18,832,000 (2016:
18,832,000/ 7T( Z&F—7<4F © 27,464,000/ HK$27,464,000).

JT) e
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12.

13.

FhEF

BRAATEEAZ SRERRATIRET
5B ¢

12.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to the

owners of the Company is based on the following data:

2017 2016
FiE&n FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
& Earnings
BRANREBEAZ Profit for the year attributable to
2ERA owners of the Company 20,108 18,705
F ¥
‘000 ‘000
BB Number of shares
SAEEREALEERA Number of shares in issue during the
FRERITRHOEE year for the purposes of basic and
diluted earnings per share 784,693 784,693

RIB—tHF=A=+—RAIEE_ZFT—t
F=ZA=t—RILFEWERITEBRE
HIbEEHERE_F—tF=A=+—H
LHFEGREERT -

AERE_R-RE=ZA=t—HLEES
RESE B AR ARAQRRITREBERES
THRERBRE"F—RFZR=+—HLHF
EAARRRRDFHITSEERD
It AN B BRI MR RAATIE -

No computation of diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31
March 2017 is disclosed as there are no outstanding share options at

31 March 2017 or at any time during the year.

The computation of diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31
March 2016 did not assume the exercise of the outstanding share
options of the Company because the exercise price of the Company’s
share options was higher than the average market price of the

Company'’s shares for the year ended 31 March 2016.

BREmE 13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
FHEIT

HK$'000
DTE FAIR VALUE
RIZ—AFMNA—H At 1 April 2015 9,849
GiERE Currency realignment (214)
RIF—R"F=A=+—H At 31 March 2016 9,635
Bz Currency realignment (751)
NFEEEE) Change in fair value 1,071
AE—tFE=A=1—H At 31 March 2017 9,955
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13. |EME (=) 13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (conzinvecy

94

BREMEN B EHEEBNA T EREREE
WA B B ERTT - KAATRT
EREMERAR(ZF—RF | KRAATHERE
MARAR GE - ZSHEMEESNER
REHENE R R FAE AR ER o ZaTER
SEMSFHEAYZIERBE KR Tz
DERELEH -

ATF—FR TR AEZA=tR &
EERPENEERER A TETREEST
BEEERAE  LIRBLMERARtTiEm
FEERECEMRARBENYEREER  [RE
REER BT -

TEREHRBEREDE QAT EMAEENE
BOCERPT R ERM RBARER) Wi
ANFEFEBZATEFEBARBBRN TR
REMEAFERBHRNE3MR)

The fair values of investment properties at the end of the reporting
period were valued by RHL Appraisal Limited (2016: RHL Appraisal
Limited), independent qualified professional valuers not connected
with the Group. The valuers have appropriate qualifications and
experiences in the valuation of similar properties in the relevant
locations.

The fair values of the Group’s factory building and warehouses
situated in the PRC as at 31 March 2017 and 2016 were determined
based on depreciated replacement cost method by estimating the
market value for the existing use of the land, plus the current cost
of replacement of the improvements less allowance for physical
deterioration and all relevant forms of obsolescence and optimisation.

The following table gives information about how the fair values of
the investment properties are determined (in particular, the valuation
techniques and inputs used), as well as the fair value hierarchy
into which the fair value measurements are categorised (Levels
1 to 3) based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements is observable.

TEMFENATE - ERERURS AR
(EIENEERYES L

REHRRA - ATERE
AREFERENR Fair value
Investment properties assets as at {hiERE
held by the Group in the 2017 2016 REEEANE
consolidated statement Fin Ter  LTEER Valuation technique(s) EENTTERHANE HEE
of financial position HK$'000  HK$'000 Fair value hierarchy  and key input(s) Significant unobservable input(s) Sensitivity
HEARERER 230 ArEEENAL EERARETIR J0AREE il Sl B U YN
IEHATR 1500 ARH(BER 35382 EBENE-
~BERA 1691\ “F—AE  8THK
1,000 AREE1 SOOARK BER
1199ETE1, 79987 ))
Factory building and 9,955 9,635 Lewel3 Depreciated replacement cost Building construction cost, ranged from A significant movement of input would
warehouse in PRC method RMB1,200 to RMB1,500 result in significant change in fair value
Key input (equivalent to HK$1,353 10 to the investment property.
- Building construction cost HK$1,691) (2016: RMB1,000 to
RMB1,500 (equivalent to HK$1,199 to
HKS$1,799)) per square metre.
MAERE » E3BRAMMEASIEL - There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the year.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best use
of the properties is their current use.
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14. Y% - BEREE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

xalE HETHR ik
THREE BE REERE HERRE IHRIR
Freehold Leasehold Leasehold Machinery Moulds  #REE
landand  landand  improve- and and Asset under Eftr 8t
buildings  buildings ments  equipment tools construction Others Total
FHET FHEx FEx FiEr FHET FhEx FAT TAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(Bet)
(note)
A EE COST OR VALUATION
RIBE-RENA—H At 1 April 2015 153,466 855,606 122,260 2,458,764 244,198 104,720 193,064 4,132,078
BHRE Currency realignment (5764)  (29,399) 3528 (52,450)  (5,632) (2,083  (1,333)  (93,133)
# Additions - 7,873 21,732 37,344 9,121 107,026 14,016 197,112
HE Disposals (6,423) (4,816)  (13,058)  (51,902)  (33,998) (14)  (22,587) (132,798)
2R Transfer - 451 - 31,590 5,908 (44,192) 2,183 -
RIZ—XE=A=1t—H At31March 2016 141,279 833,775 134,462 2423346 219,597 165,457 185,343 4,103,259
ol Currency realignment (6:818)  (46711) 1260  (49,044)  (9153)  (4124) (5515 (120,105)
) Additions - 1,180 30,998 56,985 8,767 146,960 13,061 257,951
HE Disposals (3,795)  (34,098) (9,557) (347,089)  (11,691) (77)  (26,331) (432,638)
BRAEAFHE Reclassified as held for sale
(Kfsk24) (see note 24) - (32473) - - - - - (32473)
ZR Transfer - 108,473 - 80,038 10,741 (205,173) 5,921 -
RIZE—TFE=F=1+—H At31March 2017 130,666 830,146 157,163 2,164,236 218,261 103,043 172,479 3,775,994
g Comprising:
BA At cost 100,329 830,146 157,163 2,164,236 218,261 103,043 172,479 3,745,657
[HE-—ASUmE At valuation - 1994 30,337 - - - - - - 30337
130,666 830,146 157,163 2,164,236 218,261 103,043 172,479 3,775,994
TEREE DEPRECIATION AND
IMPAIRMENT
RIF-AFNA—H At 1 April 2015 41,701 255,279 76,362 2,039,688 169,430 - 140,394 2,722,854
Bz Currency realignment (1314 (9,257) 2495 (40972  (3,503) - (1,268)  (53,819)
REEEE Provided for the year 1,760 21,10 7912 78,461 13,859 - 11,034 134,136
R RESE Impairment loss recognised - - - 25,000 - - - 25,000
HERTR Eliminated on disposals (2,898)  (1,593)  (12,884)  (47,49)  (32,744) - (20,706) (118321)
RIZ—XE=F=1t—H At31March 2016 39,249 265,539 73,885 2,054,681 147,042 - 129,454 2,709,850
BHRE Currency realignment (894)  (14,367) 2,000  (32,136) (5,107) - (3619 (54,033)
REEER Provided for the year 1,317 20,892 16,986 71,198 13,722 - 10,594 134,709
ERAZRESSE Impairment loss recognised - - - 11,764 - - 48 11,812
HERRR Eliminated on disposals (1,544) (20,179 (9,340)  (334,341)  (10,148) - (25,055 (400,607
BRAEAFHE Reclassified as held for sale
(Fizt24) (see note 24) - (26,601 - - - - - (26,601)
RIF—tE=A=+—H At31March 2017 38,128 225,284 83,621 1,771,166 145,509 - 111,422 2375130
REfE CARRYING VALUES
RIF—tHE=A=1+—H At31March 2017 92,538 604,862 73,542 393,070 72,752 103,043 61,057 1,400,864
RIZE—RE=B=1t—H At31March 2016 102,030 568,236 60,577 368,665 72,555 165,457 55,889 1,393,409
MWet: e EEENEH  REED A Note: Others included furniture and fixtures and motor vehicles with carrying

49,032,0005#% 7T( —F —/\4F © 44,764,000
FIT )~ F112,025,00058 570 ZF— /N 4F ¢
11,125,000%7% )

values of HK$49,032,000 (2016: HK$44,764,000) and HK$12,025,000
(2016: HK$11,125,000), respectively.
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14. W% - BERR i« 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
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BE_S—tH#=B=+—0  L#%HE
A 2 I8 N 8 6 2 BR B B 1,987,000 7T
(ZF—7X4 1 1,352,0007T )

M BEERB(EREERKAEREL
BRI )2 oA SIS B U E G5 AT R &
Hinst R EEZRUTITEXRLERENR
BIRRESFITE L -

BiE

METHMRERE  2%Z5%SRER MR
HEFH(IREEE)

KABEEEE 2%ZE4%

HREEEE 10% 2331/, % 3= 5|
HERTEE
(IBsEE )

ERERIRIRUE -

IS 10%Z233",%

ITERTIA 10%E50%

Eft( BRE - K8 10%E33',%
RBMRE)

NEE_S—tHF=B=1+—HLtHE "
AEERZBRENDE - BRERZHEHT
WElzEETEE R_E—tHE=H
=+—H  ZBEFEME - KEKZEN
29,000,000/ 7T( ZF—754F * 30,000,0005%
J0) c AN MRS EIRESEE
HEFVEEEPNRSHRETILIEEN
BRIREGTEETE - RAFE  HNSIA—K
HEME  ZBENTERKAE RGN
- FEpEES ERABRESE - RE
FE  ARAEEESTAEBEEM TR
S| EZMENRKIBEMBA » FAmERR
{E#51825,000,00058 7T ° BHIRARRIRE M
BRIR KA B25%( ZF—RE 1 104% )

REE_FE—tF=RA=+t—HLFE &
HE - BENERNEEDE  BENR
TERREE1811,812,000%7T ©

As at 31 March 2017, the carrying amount of machinery
and equipment under finance leases is HK$1,987,000 (2016:
HK$1,352,000).

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost or valuation of items of
property, plant and equipment, expect for asset under construction
and freehold land, over their estimated useful lives and after taking
into account of their estimated residual value, using the straight-line
method or the reducing balance method, at the following rates per
annum:

Straight-line method:
Leasehold land and buildings 2% to 5% or over the remaining
period of respective leases

where shorter

2% t0 4%

10% to 33'4,% or over the
remaining period of respective

leases where shorter

Freehold buildings
Leasehold improvements

Reducing balance method:

Machinery and equipment

Moulds and tools

Others (representing furniture,
fixtures, equipment and motor
vehicles)

10% to 33,%
10% to 50%
10% to 33',%

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group carried out a review
of the recoverable amount on property, plant and equipment of the
Plant. The Plant has property, plant and equipment of approximately
HK$29 million as at 31 March 2017 (2016: 30 million). The recoverable
amount of the Plant has been determined based on the cash flow
projection from the latest financial budgets approved by management
with a suitable discount rate. During the year, no impairment loss was
recognised on these assets due to the introduction of a new product
line, resulting in an improvement in the expected future cash flows of
the Plant. In the prior year, the impairment loss of HK$25,000,000 was
mainly attributable to a deterioration in expected future cash flows of
the Plant due to the Group's effort to reduce capacity by consolidating
the rechargeable lithium battery plants. The rate used to discount the
cash flow forecast was 25% (2016: 10.4%).

During the year ended 31 March 2017, an impairment loss of
HK$11,812,000 was recognised on certain of the other property,
plant and equipment since it were identified to be idle, obsolete or
damaged.
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15. Fi{GBHE AR R 15. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

2017 2016
T FHBIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BENRRERA Cost of investments in associates
+tmH Listed 100,378 100,378
JEET Unlisted 457,171 456,871
PG MBS & Share of post-acquisition profit
Hih 2w and other comprehensive income,
TRERE MRS net of dividends received 836,352 766,377
1,393,901 1,323,626
=/ NCIUNG N Amounts due from associates 9,883 9,883
1,403,784 1,333,509
IHBNR=A=1t—HZAYE Fair values of listed shares at
31 March 240,372 158,437

BENRRFREEF LR BN BREER
FH - REFEER  AEBKASERED
HEART ZEARREHERER - FALt
HSHIIFERBEE -

—REBE ATz EHRONATERIER
HiEZRERER  AESEAATFEER
E1ER -

Frih Bt AR = BERE117,775,0005
T ZF—74E 1 115,469,0007T ) ©

FEMENTZFH BRI RE M4 -

FEMB AT ZHBEREE
FHAEETEZBRENR Y BENBER
FIANT - LT BERRERRETBYH
WEEARRCBENT Y BREIMRE
e

BRETIFEARAR("EEL HREETERN
BRAR(TEE DRAEENERBEA
7 EfMiReMBRREERERE -

The amounts due from associates are unsecured and interest-free
and have no fixed repayment terms. In the opinion of the directors,
the Group would not demand for the repayment within the next
twelve months from the end of the reporting period. Accordingly, the
amounts are shown as non-current assets.

The fair value of listed shares of an associate is determined based on
quoted prices in active markets and therefore are categorised as level
1 under the fair value hierarchy.

Included in the interests in associates is goodwill of HK$117,775,000
(2016: HK$115,469,000).

Particulars of the principal associates are set out in note 44.

Summarised financial information of material associates
Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s material
associates is set out below. The summarised financial information
below represents amounts shown in the associates’ financial
statements prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.

Linkz Industries Limited (“Linkz") and Meiloon Industrial Co., Ltd.
("Meiloon”) are the material associates to the Group and they are
accounted for using the equity method in these consolidated financial
statements.
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15. FRAGEE A EELS () 15. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
SA% Linkz
2017 2016
FiEgrx FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
MENEE Current assets 1,888,023 1,732,761
FERBEE Non-current assets 1,208,737 1,271,038
mEas Current liabilities 1,470,165 1,471,069
FEREERF Non-current liabilities 132,081 59,858
FEZE AR Non-controlling interests 10,638 10,422
WA Revenue 2,683,612 2,557,788
2EERF| Profit for the year 100,987 73,531
2EHMPEH Other comprehensive expense
for the year (44,632) (67,045)
DEFEDEMBERARRE Total comprehensive income
for the year 56,355 6,486
FRNEFELZ R Dividends received from Linkz
during the year 13,235 -
A AR IS E BN A TR K Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the
NHER - B N B RS REEY RN T ¢ carrying amount of the interest in the associate in respect of Linkz

recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

2017 2016

TiExT FHET

HK$'000 HK$'000

BENFEE Net assets of Linkz 1,483,876 1,462,450

RERTEEHES Proportion of the Group’s ownership

TR Bl interest in Linkz 38.13% 38.13%

FrbL R RS EE Share of net assets of Linkz 565,802 557,632

e Goodwill 28,242 28,242

HithFi% Other adjustment (2,536) (2,536)
AEBATGELER S Carrying amount of the Group's interest

BRTEME in Linkz 591,508 583,338
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15. FiGBHE QRIS () 15. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
£ Meiloon
2017 2016
TR FHBIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
MENE EE Current assets 852,912 816,370
FERBEE Non-current assets 555,844 553,782
nEEE Current liabilities 309,488 346,271
FERBEE Non-current liabilities 161,078 136,123
JEZE R Non-controlling interests 86,931 82,339
WA Revenue 905,146 1,013,420
2ERF Profit for the year 86,851 72,459
2EEMPERER( ) Other comprehensive income (expenses)
for the year 26,623 (58,103)
DEDEMBERARLE Total comprehensive income
for the year 113,474 14,356
FRRSEREZ S Dividends received from Meiloon
during the year 12,790 11,923
B B ER N EEEEN RE T IERE Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the
AR BEARERRMEYRRAT carrying amount of the interest in the associate in respect of Meiloon

recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

2017 2016
FiEn T
HK$'000 HK$'000
<ENFEEE Net assets of Meiloon 851,259 805,419
AEEEEERE TR A Proportion of the Group’s ownership
interest in Meiloon 20.27% 20.27%
FTh=EH R EE Share of net assets of Meiloon 172,550 163,258
RS Goodwill 38,387 36,292
HihFA% Other adjustment 37) (233)
AEBATEEERR CREE Carrying amount of the Group's interest
in Meiloon 210,900 199,317
ERCVBEELAER AT _BA=1+—H - The financial year end date for Meiloon is 31 December. For
REBRAEBREBBIIN—ER=A=+— the purpose of applying the equity method of accounting, the
AEE M BEREZS AT » HI - &E consolidated financial statements of Meiloon and its subsidiaries for
BEAERLENBATEBE _ZS—NFE the year ended 31 December 2016 (2016: 31 December 2015) have
+"A=F+—H(ZE—NE: 5—HE been used as the Group considers that it is impracticable for Meiloon
+_B=t+—B) It FEEC G EREE to prepare a separate set of financial statements as of 31 March.
HEReEREC BN  c BN _F—/RF Appropriate adjustments have been made accordingly for the effects
+_A=F+—HE_F—tF=A=+—H of significant transactions between that date and 31 March 2017, if
ZHEEARGZHENME ) EREEEY any.

HE R -
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15.

16.

FRiGEhE ATES =)
JEEBIEXRBEATANSEEH

15.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Aggregate information of associates that are not individually
material

2017 2016
Fi&rx FET
HK$°000 HK$'000
AEBEEESRN 2 W ARER The Group's share of profit and total
comprehensive income 83,104 71,320
AEBF GBS ARRRD < REELESR Aggregate carrying amount of the
Group's interests in these associates 601,376 550,854

RIF—tE=A=+—8  Fh#BEAT
5B FE IR (E210,900,0005 7T( ZF—%
£F 1 199,317,000 70 )BVEEN EHERE -
EZENBETMEL - HRMNEEEFESFR
SR BRAT LM - ZEER_F—tHF
=A=+—HzmHEER240,372,000#
Jo( ZZ—74F 1 158,437,000#7T ) °

AEERZENRENR_F—tHF=A1
=t—BNmEEERRAEEVHEREN
SREE @ FItt - WHEAFHEREE -

HREER _F—XRE-A=1t—Hz™m%H
BEENREHEMREE  FAUBLEER
E BN RS REE BN E S8 LB
HORERE - RZF—AR"F=A=1+—8"
Al EIEELEREER SFEAEE £
BENZRXEEEEIEN=FUWHAER
ANHESREFAEER - VERAERE
BT ERREF1%ER - ZFEMNBEER
RFFAFHERE 1% RITRE10%HH - 2
REFTAIREEE NEEZF—RF=AH
=t —RUEFEEFREEFRE -

Interest in associates as at 31 March 2017 included listed investment
in Meiloon with carrying value of HK$210,900,000 (2016:
HK$199,317,000). Meiloon was incorporated in Taiwan and its
shares are listed on the Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation. The
market value of Meiloon as at 31 March 2017 is amounted to
HK$240,372,000 (2016: HK$158,437,000).

As the market value of the Group’s investment in Meiloon as at 31
March 2017 was higher than the corresponding carrying value in
the Group's financial statement, no estimation of value in use was
performed.

Since the market value of Meiloon as at 31 March 2016 was lower
than its corresponding carrying value as at 31 March 2016, Meiloon
was assessed for impairment by comparing the carrying value with the
recoverable amount. As at 31 March 2016, the recoverable amount
was determined based on the value in use calculations using the
cash flow projections based on 3 years financial budget approved by
management of Meiloon. The preparation of financial budget is based
on the estimated revenue growth rate of 1%. Cash flows beyond the
three-year period were extrapolated based on the estimated growth
rate of 1% and a discount rate of 10%. Based on the estimated
recoverable amount, no impairment loss allowance was required as at
31 March 2016.

Tt R 16. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
2017 2016
Fi&n T
HK$'000 HK$'000
AR SATE Listed equity securities at fair value 15,396 13,716

I AR ESFRARE Unlisted equity securities at cost less

EEIBRER impairment loss recognised 48,570 48,570
B Total 63,966 62,286

AEETHHERARE 2 DITNT

An analysis of the Group's available-for-sale equity investments is as
follows:

2017 2016

Tigx FHIT

HK$’000 HK$'000

FRE S Y aE(a) ) PRC distributor (note(a)) 29,000 29,000

BERERMNERAR Amita Technologies, Inc. 15,396 13,716

EREMEBRMERAR(MED)) BMTPOW Limited (note(b)) 12,256 12,256

GPBM Nordic AB GPBM Nordic AB 7,021 7,021
B RB B A RAR Wuxi Donggang Battery Accessories

Co., Ltd 293 293

63,966 62,286
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17.

CAMEHERE e

ByEE -

(@) #X I8 29,000,000 & T ( = F — XN F
29,000,0007T VAR EE (L H49% itz —
BRARERZ AR EXEEBABEERS
g5 - ZF%.Z(/,\uﬁ’\—_IEﬁEl%%i%ﬁﬁﬁl?ﬁA
HEEZRYRRENET - EZRREAEER

BEHZARETEARE lJttEZ@T%&’;’UEE
%T@t&jm&ﬁ

(b)y MEEZZF—NFE=ZA=1+—HILFE X&E
.L,{500,000§TE( A2 3,875,000/ 7T )58

HNER - BABREMERMARAR RS -
R - R ERMBRARDRE ZBER

15%#5EE14.68% °

EmEAES 2R EBLIMLT £ A
FERRERAMBRFEENRED SRS H
AT W Bt R -

FrE3E Eh R AR E DI A RBET AR
AREBATEMEFEERREZ - AR
AEFRRHAQNTEBERAISENE -

AR ERIRE

R_F—HFNA_+—HER_S—=%
=B+ B  xEEEITBREAETHE
(#ER RERE REERERERAR
(THmZER DREZATBREEERT ARk
TR ) TBRERIEAREA68,019,0005

JT e T}ﬁﬂ’i%‘;ﬁzﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁs* —NFIA
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AR REREC _EEH +—HE

“E-AREEAC -1- HHmn R mER
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I - BRIEZRIE R RABE R ERE
BZARRRE  BEzRNESERED
MR REREE A URETHE - #
AERER I TR SRR EERARITET
8 FAE D ERUAFEFARERZA
BRREIRE -
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BN Z AR RE RN AT EER R FERE
ERT  FIIRBEMGFARREE BT
FEzFaERT -

—tFEZRA=THLEFE

16. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS (continued)

17.

Notes:

(@) The amount of HK$29,000,000 (2016: HK$29,000,000) represents the
Group’s 49% equity investments in a company established in the PRC,
which is engaged in selling and distribution business. The Group does not
participate in the daily operations and has waived its rights to exercise its
voting power in the board of directors’ meetings of this company. In the
opinion of the directors, the Group cannot exercise significant influence
over the company and accordingly, such investment is classified as available-
for-sale investments.

(b) During the year ended 31 March 2016, BMTPOW Limited increased its share
capital through issuing new shares. The Group subscribed the additional
shares of BMTPOW Limited at a consideration of USD500,000 (equivalent to
HK$3,875,000), resulting in the dilution of shareholdings on the investment
in BMTPow Limited from 15% to 14.68%.

The fair value of listed equity securities, all of which are listed outside
Hong Kong, are measured based on the quoted closing market prices
on the last market day of the financial year.

All unlisted equity securities are measured at cost less impairment
because the range of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant
that the directors of the Company are of the opinion that their fair
values cannot be measured reliably.

INVESTMENT IN CONVERTIBLE NOTE

The Group entered into an agreement on 21 April 2011 and a
supplemental agreement on 26 March 2013 (collectively referred to
as the “Subscription Agreements”) to subscribe for a convertible note
(the "Convertible Note”) in the principal amount of approximately
HK$68,019,000 issued by GSM Holdings Limited (“GSMH"). The
maturity date of the Convertible Note was 21 April 2016 (“Maturity
Date"”) and was interest bearing at 2.00% per annum. The Convertible
Note was convertible into shares of GSMH during the period from
21 April 2012 to 21 April 2016. There was no conversion into shares
of GSMH under the Subscription Agreements. Unless previously
converted or repaid in accordance with the Subscription Agreements,
GSMH shall redeem the Convertible Note on the Maturity Date at
the outstanding principal together with interest accrued thereon. The
investment in Convertible Note issued by GSMH was designated as
FVTPL as the Convertible Note contained an embedded derivative.

The Convertible Note was reclassified to other receivable on Maturity
Date. Due to financial difficulties of GSMH, GSMH was unable to
redeem the Convertible Note in accordance with the Subscription
Agreements on the Maturity Date. There were no charges made to
the consolidated profit or loss in the current or prior financial years,
since the fair value of the Convertible Note was determined to be nil
in previous years.

101



102

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTD)

FaiREMEE=)

Year ended 31 March 2017 #E_ZS—+F=A=+—RHLFE

18. L EE 18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
ERMRERE
Product EERE EFRRRE
fG1E development Technical Customer aF
Trademarks expenditure ~ know-how relationship Total
T T T T T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
A CoST
RIE-AFNA—-HLK At 1 April 2015, 31 March 2016
“F—E=A=1—H 83,655 129,461 104,724 10,026 327,866
120 Addition 1,550 - - - 1,550
R_F—tHE=RA=1—H At 31 March 2017 85,205 129,461 104,724 10,026 329,416
REHMER ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION
wE AND IMPAIRMENT
RIZ-R%NA—H At 1 April 2015 73,195 129,461 104,549 10,026 317,231
kR Provided for the year 4,182 - 101 - 4,283
RI5—E=A=1—H At 31 March 2016 71,377 129,461 104,650 10,026 321,514
REEER Provided for the year 4,258 - 74 - 4332
RIS—tHF=A=1—H At 31 March 2017 81,635 129,461 104,724 10,026 325,846
IREE CARRYING VALUES
RI5—tE=A=1+—H At 31 March 2017 3,570 - - - 3,570
RIZB—E=R=1+—H At 31 March 2016 6,278 - 74 - 6,352
19. & 19. GOODWILL
2017 2016
TFi&rx FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
IREE CARRYING VALUE
TR At beginning of the year 102,066 118,448
ElERZRERIE Impairment loss recognised - (16,382)
FRE At end of the year 102,066 102,066

BREEZRER R FBHN KRB

20

20. BREZEERH

P19 Bz I E D ECE (8 51 8 LA R
ReELBEMGERENS - BT

Particulars regarding impairment testing on goodwill are disclosed in

note 20.

20. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill set out in note 19
has been allocated to each individual or group of cash generating

units (“CGUs") as follows:

2017 2016
TFERT FHET
HK$"000 HK$'000
GPIZ GP Ind 33,775 33,775

TR ER EMBRAR GP Batteries Zhongyin (Ningbo) Battery
Co. Ltd 33,319 33,319

HRTHISHEE MDA ERTRIS ) Eastern Europe marketing and

distribution network (“EE") 23,000 23,000
Efh Others 11,972 11,972
ast Total 102,066 102,066
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20. EZEEE )

21.

RAREE  AEBRBRSREEN A

i ﬁ»ﬂi@}ﬁﬁ BEREBTEBRIBERIK
i5¢( — N N BSFE NSRS IETE
%xﬁaﬁi%ﬁzaa%ﬁnma:g
—ANE 0% ZE17.6% ) UFBEERI11.0%E
14.8%( ZF—7X4F 112.2%%E16.2% JEtE -

ZSESEABUMNAKESBEUERER
HE - FHEENECTFERRAXRTEE
ITRE N BRERWA LB EL HNTE
HEE  SEBEEARRTSERTHEZ
EEEREECRHANTRENIRSEEASS
N2 BERBITEITRX - B RFRIRITHEE
RTEH o WA RE B B E S g DI
RIaHATGARR 2 B TER - EinatEER
BENFIERRAEENESELSEMCB
AEBELEEBEHTSREASERECHE
REFBEREBRACRESRALRETES -
REE_S—ARF=-H=+T—HLEFE " K
EEBERHSMNEMERZBREBED
#%9,665,0008T( —F—t4F : THITIK
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20. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL (continued)

During the year, the Group performed impairment review for goodwill,
based on cash flow forecasts derived from the most recent financial
budgets of each of the CGUs for the next 1 to 5 years (2016: 1 to 5
years) with reference to annual growth rate ranging from -3.3% to
13.1% (2016: 0% to 17.6%) by using the discount rate ranging from
11.0% to 14.8% (2016: 12.2% t0 16.2%).

The recoverable amount of each of the CGUs has been determined
on the basis of value in use calculation. The key factors for the value
in use calculation are discount rates, growth rates and expected
changes to revenue and direct costs during the year. Management
estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the CGUs. The growth rate is based on industry growth forecasts.
Changes in revenue and direct cost are based on past practices and
expectations of future changes in the market. Other key assumptions
for the value in use calculations included budgeted sales and gross
margins and their related cash inflow and outflow patterns, estimated
based on the CGUs’ historical performance and management'’s
expectation of the market development. During the year ended
31 March 2016, the Group recognised impairment losses of
HK$9,665,000 (2017: Nil) and HK$6,717,000 (2017: Nil) in relation to
EE and others respectively, which arose mainly due to insufficient cash
flows derived from respective financial budgets due to the economic
downturn in the European market that resulted in a drop in the sales

and the financial performance of the relevant CGUs.

The recoverable amounts of EE and others have been determined
on the basis of value in use calculations. Their recoverable amounts
are based on certain similar key assumptions. Both value in use
calculations use cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by management covering a 5-year period, and a discount
rate of 16.2% and 12.2% respectively. Both sets of cash flows beyond
the 5-year period are extrapolated using a steady 0% growth rate.
This growth rate is based on the relevant industry growth forecasts
and does not exceed the average long-term growth rate for the
relevant industry. Cash flow projections during the budget period for
both EE and others are also based on the budgeted sales, expected
gross margins and the same raw materials price inflation during the
budget period. Expected cash inflows and outflows, which include
budgeted sales, gross margin and raw material price inflation have
been determined based on past performance and management'’s
expectations for the market development. Management believes that
any reasonably possible change in any of these assumptions would not
cause the aggregate carrying amount of EE and others to exceed the

aggregate recoverable amount of EE and others.

b= 21. INVENTORIES
2017 2016
Figrn FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
B Raw materials 208,073 206,863
et Work in progress 227,101 280,909
£y Finished goods 413,251 416,354
848,425 904,126
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22. RS TR E it FEUSERIE R FR (T K1 22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS
FEEBGRTHESZRFEER  —RHB=1 The Group allows its trade customers with credit periods normally
RE—H_+RAE - BIREF M ERER ranging from 30 days to 120 days. The following is an ageing of trade
(NBRAREFTEBE RBEAPENRREE and bills receivables, net of allowance for doubtful debts, presented
HHZREOTANT - based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period:

2017 2016
Fi&x FHIT
HK$°000 HK$'000
BRERRER Trade and bills receivables
0-60K 0 - 60 days 747,553 579,039
61-90XK 61 —90 days 90,729 132,939
BIBI0K Over 90 days 76,602 85,105
914,884 797,083
HAEWEARIE ~ e LIENFRIB(HIE) Other receivables, deposits and
prepayments (note) 293,325 230,626
1,208,209 1,027,709
- EATENERIE KRR IE 2 FEREIFR D Less: Non-current portion of deposits
and receivables
WE—ENBARCENZS Deposit paid for acquisition of a
subsidiary - (3,096)
BEWE - RERREBAIZNZZS Deposits paid for acquisition of
property, plant and equipment (28,477) (17,924)
FERBESZRE Non-current rental deposits (8,907) (3,684)
1,170,825 1,003,005
Mzt : SBFEBEARELER KFEAHAS - Note: The amount mainly includes VAT recoverable and prepaid expenses.
RIEWFRER  AEBSRBERPZE Before accepting any new customer, the Group will internally assess
BEHASLTFEEACHBEEER - S18 the credit quality of the potential customer and define appropriate
BRINEREEEN SN EMERR G credit limits. The management also closely monitors the credit policy
EET - BERBRAERBINRCREE of trade and other receivables and considers the trade and other
WEFNEMEKERZ EHRE - receivables that are neither past due nor impaired to be of good credit
quality.
AREEZ EREFTNEBH RN FREP&EH Included in the Group’s trade receivables are debtors with aggregate
ANAE BB 518 72 B SRR EE 7% 172,646,000 7% carrying amount of HK$172,646,000 (2016: HK$189,454,000) which
Jo( ZEF— /N4 1 189,454,000 7T ) - A& are past due at the end of the reporting period for which the Group
B8 gt S IBE G AIKIR S - has not provided for impairment loss. The Group does not hold any

collateral over these balances.

104



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTD)
FERBMEE@)

Year ended 31 March 2017 #E_S—+tF=A=+—RHLFE

22. EWERRA BRI R AT KA =)

23.

18 HA 5 568 77 lf 2 O - B LSt 5 X BR 1 4347 40
*

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS (continued)

Ageing of trade debtors which are past due but not impaired

2017 2016
TFi&n FHIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
0-60K 0 - 60 days 107,750 121,592
61 -90K 61 - 90 days 16,168 21,335
HBIBIOK Over 90 days 48,728 46,527
172,646 189,454

B S e (i) Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts of trade debtors
2017 2016
FiEn T
HK$’000 HK$'000
MREA—H At 1 April 47,355 60,135
(g Currency realignment (951) (676)
BA—ERBAR Acquisition of a subsidiary 14 -
TREFEE Allowance for doubtful debts 3,115 -
WHER z AN E S 58 Amounts written off as uncollectible (3,040) (12,104)
R=A=+—H At 31 March 46,493 47,355

AEBZARRETBENEREVRRES
1 B 45 ok 1 FEE Ui &S SR A 8B 46,493,000 7T
(ZF—7X4 © 47,355,000/ 7T ) ° ANEEI
RS R TR R o

FEBEEFEEEAER  WHEBEESETZ
8RR -
RTHRE GRREE

FEEFBZRITES  FRARRESBREE
SN =E AU TR Z B HSRITERUUF
FIZ0.001%%3.87%( ZF—7<4F 1 0.001%
£3.70% MWEFAE

23.

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are individually impaired
trade receivables with an aggregate balance of HK$46,493,000
(2016: HK$47,355,000) which the debtors have been in severe
financial difficulties. The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk with exposure
spread over a large number of counterparties and customers.

BANK BALANCES, DEPOSITS AND CASH

Bank balances, deposits and cash held by the Group comprising cash
and short-term bank deposits with original maturity of three months
or less carry interests ranging from 0.001% to 3.87% (2016: 0.001%
to 3.70%) per annum.
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24. PEHFLEBE

24. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

2017 2016
Fign THETT
HK$°000 HK$'000
B - ENSBEFDE(HEE14) Reclassified from property, plant and
equipment (notes 14) 5,872 -

M REECS—tHF=A=+—HILEFE &
EERBIE=EIVEERE  HERP
B R 52 BRTHI{E 4%5,872,00058 T2 4 T3
REE - RZFB—tF=A=1t—H " @i
HEHRTES > AL RZF—tHF=R
=1t—B  ZFEEREHIEIEREFH
EHE -

25. [EMIRRIEREA

ENREZZZANNBENEER KRR
DT

Note: During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group entered into a sale
and purchase agreement with an independent third party to dispose
of certain land and building with the carrying value of HK$5,872,000
located in Dongguan, PRC. The disposal has not been completed as at
31 March 2017 and therefore was reclassified as “assets classified as
held for sale” as at 31 March 2017.

25. CREDITORS AND ACCRUED CHARGES

The following is the ageing of creditors presented based on the invoice
date at the end of the reporting period:

2017 2016
Fi&n FET
HK$’000 HK$'000

FENER Trade creditors
0- 60K 0 - 60 days 740,446 596,423
61— 90K 61 - 90 days 71,070 106,423
HBIBI0K Over 90 days 87,612 99,086

HittEAARIENE BT

M SEPTEEREMNRERX  FAKGIER
HAbEMAHIA -

899,128 801,932
Other payables and accrued charges
(note) 400,042 348,298

1,299,170 1,150,230

Note: The amount mainly includes accrual for operating expenses, receipt in
advance and other tax payables.
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26. fTEEMTIR

26. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

2017 2016

FiExT FHBTT

HK$'000 HK$'000

SHIRAEN Commodity forward contracts - 2,866
EHERSH Commodity forward contracts

AERGEHAEIERENEELEMBHER
REVRELCER - ZEN_F—RE=A
=+ —BERITENENZEZERANT ¢

The Group uses commodity forward contracts to manage the risk
arising from price fluctuation of its raw material. Major terms of these
contracts outstanding as at 31 March 2016 were as follows:

= (L)
=11 B Quantity FIEAE RHIEmEE
Currency Commodity (in metric tonnes) Maturity Commodity forward price
ESI 882 ZF—AHFtA 14,335355T /AWE
usb Nickel 7 July 2016 UsD14,335/metric tonne
ESI 2 ZE—FNB 14,33537T //AME
usb Nickel 7 August 2016 UsD14,335/metric tonne
ES §2 ZE—RFNRA 14,335357T, /A8
usb Nickel 7 September 2016 UsSD14,335/metric tonne
ESI 882 ZF—AHFTA 14,335355T,/AWE
usD Nickel 7 October 2016 USD14,335/metric tonne
ESI 2 ZE—FTA 12,8005€7T /AME
usb Nickel 10 October 2016 USD12,800/metric tonne
ES §2 “F—RE+—R 14,335357T, /A8
usD Nickel 7 November 2016 USD14,335/metric tonne
ESI 882 ZE—Ft—A 12,8003t/ /AA
usD Nickel 10 November 2016 USD12,800/metric tonne
ESI 2 “E—Ft+IA 14,335%7T //AME
usD Nickel 7 December 2016 USD14,335/metric tonne
ES §2 “F—RETZAR 12,8003<7T,//AME
usD Nickel 10 December 2016 USD12,800/metric tonne
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26.

27.

TEEMI R

AEENERZFHREORMBE MGt
o RIF—REZA=T—H ELBER
ARIIATELF R E5182,866,000/87T © A
FEDESERRSBVEHERU RS
BRIV _F—ARE=ZA=1+—HZ®HRE
KiEE - R_F—tFE=ZRA=1T—H0 %%
EIEREREREK -

26. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The Group did not adopt hedge accounting in respect of these
commodity contracts. The estimated fair value loss of these commodity
contracts was HK$2,866,000 as at 31 March 2016. The fair values
were determined by reference to the forward price of related metals
quoted from London Metal Exchange as at 31 March 2016. There
were no outstanding commodity forward contracts as at 31 March
2017.

HIFHEERE 27. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES
RIEASEERZIRE
RIEZHEEER Present value
Minimum of minimum
lease payments lease payments
2017 2016 2017 2016
FiEn FHET FiEn FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—FREIHA Within one year 1,341 1,215 737 653
“ZhFH(BEEEME) In the second to fifth
years inclusive 1,109 468 1,025 452
2,450 1,683 1,762 1,105
BT RIREA Less: Future finance charges (688) (578) - -
HEEACHE Present value of lease
obligations 1,762 1,105 1,762 1,105
B — AR ARE&E Less: Amount due within
one year shown under
current liabilities (737) (653)
—FEEIHA Amount due after one year 1,025 452

AEBBGRUMBHERAIIVE - BE
Ki&iE - MEBHEFHFEHAIESF(ZF
— NI I 3FE5F) c FEREEH256%FE
10.39%( —F—7\4F 1 5.28%F10.39% )
FIEAEIEEENREE -

It is the Group's policy to lease certain of its property, plant and
equipment under finance leases. The finance leases are negotiated
for a lease term from 3 to 5 years (2016: 3 to 5 years). Interest rates
are charged at the range from 2.56% to 10.39% (2016: 5.28% to
10.39%) per annum. All leases are on a fixed repayment basis.
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28.

29.

RITEHRRBERER 28. BANK LOANS AND IMPORT LOANS
2017 2016
TFiEgn FHBT
HK$'000 HK$'000
—EFNERC EIRFRTER(ME29) Current portion of unsecured bank loans
(see note 29) 644,273 464,098
RREBRITERRNEEE Unsecured short term bank loans and
import loans 808,854 825,606
1,453,127 1,289,704

AEBZBITERRBEGEELUTENFIZEU
WAE « £ EIKFEIRTERLREE
FEECEMERNEEHBEMH1.95%ZF 5.00%
(ZEF—KF 1 137%FE 5.90% ) °

The bank loans and import loans of the Group are arranged at floating
rates. The effective interest rate of unsecured short term bank loans
and import loans during the year ranged from 1.95% to 5.00% (2016:

1.37% to 5.90%) per annum.

&= 29. BORROWINGS
2017 2016
Figx FiT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BIRRITEREN T EHAEE - The unsecured bank loans are repayable
within a period of:
—FR Within 1 year 644,273 464,098
BB ERAME Between 1 -2 years 439,337 601,175
BBMEERARE Between 2 - 5 years 442,899 231,454
1,526,509 1,296,727
B R & EAEEERUA( HET28) Less: Amount under current liabilities
(see note 28) (644,273) (464,098)
882,236 832,629

B RTEMER - AEBCRTERNE
MENXR s @BE(REKT 2FXEE)A
221% B730%( ZF —7R4F © 226% F
4.72% )

Borrowings are arranged at floating rates. The ranges of effective
interest rates of bank loans (which are also equal to contracted
interest rates) on the Group's borrowings are from 2.27% to 7.30%

(2016: 2.26% to 4.72%) per annum.
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30. JEFEFRIH 30. DEFERRED TAXATION

110

AEHECHRBETHEEELEEZ B
T

Movements in the deferred tax liabilities and assets recognised by the
Group are as follows:

RARHF
BRERTE ZFR
ZIFERE  Withholding

REME  Accelerated tax on
Investment tax  undistributed RIBEE Hits &t
properties  depreciation profits Tax losses Others Total

TR FER FExT TR FiER FExT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BLREEE Deferred tax assets
RZZ-R&MA—-A At 1 April 2015
GHEE Currency realignment
PEHFFA Credit to profit or loss
RIF—R"E=A=1—H At 31 March 2016
BERE Currency realignment

REERIER A

RZ—tF=A=+—-H At 31 March 2017

ELREGR Deferred tax liabilities
R_F—hFNA—H At 1 April 2015
BEHE Currency realignment

RES PR MR

RIF—~EF=A=1—H At 31 March 2016
BERE Currency realignment
B PHIRR Charge to profit or loss

R_F—tF=A=1t—H At 31 March 2017

R_BE—t+tHE=ZF=+—H X&EH
7775 1,861,403,000 % T ( ZF — N F ¢
1,708,251,0007 7T ) 2 R £ A B IR BB A
FIMBRRZEHF - MZHIBELAEERIE
ERITEEE 12,552,000 T ZF—/K4F
6,630,000/ 7T ) © HIA R A &R A TE
B TSR IEESIE %A 1,848,851,00058 7T
(ZF—7X4F 1 1,701,621,0005 7T WEHIELE
RIEEERR - FrEHIEBES A ERRIE
Z; °

RIEFIEAREMEDEMERE » AEE
AR_SFTNF—B —HERENPE K
BAR TR S HIERE T D B & A AT
TN  c AEEUREREE_FTENEFE
—B—HRAEERFEzETHEARRT
BRNEBACENERELREERIERE
RAEE TR EZ B D2 HEAEH
EEANENARRRERL - P _F—tHF=
A=1+—H AEBHNEECHSAT R
EFTRHPRzHBAR RS EFED B
LL20% F2 5% MR ZE AR I IR 1 (5 AR K 7y
12,624,000 7T( ZF—754F 1 9,993,000
DL

(Charge) credit to profit or loss

(Credit) charge to profit or loss

- 8,007 - 1,003 11,629 20,639
- (341) - 14 (40) (367)
- - - 77 1,134 1,211
- 7,666 - 1,094 12,723 21,483
- (497) - (49) - (546)
- (1,648) - 1,026 (586) (1,208)
- 5,521 - 2,071 12,137 19,729
641 18,142 8,062 - - 26,845
- (973) - - - (973)
- 9,114) 1,931 - - (7,183)
641 8,055 9,993 - - 18,689
- (527) - - - (527)
268 2,114 2,631 - - 5013
909 9,642 12,624 - - 23,175

At 31 March 2017, the Group has unused tax losses of
HK$1,861,403,000 (2016: HK$1,708,251,000) available for offset
against future profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of HK$12,552,000 (2016: HK$6,630,000) of such
losses. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the
remaining HK$1,848,851,000 (2016: HK$1,701,621,000) due to the
unpredictability of future profits streams. All tax losses may be carried
forward indefinitely.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax, a withholding
tax is imposed on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by
PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation
has not been provided for in the consolidated financial statements
in respect of temporary difference attributable to profits earned by
the Group's certain PRC subsidiaries since 1 January 2008 as the
Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. As at 31 March 2017, the amount
of HK$12,624,000 (2016: HK$9,993,000) represented the deferred
taxation on undistributed profit arising from a Taiwan associate being
recognised at a taxation of 20% and undistributed profit arising
from certain PRC subsidiaries being recognised at a taxation of 5%,
respectively.



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTD)
FERBMEE@)

Year ended 31 March 2017 HZE_ZZF—

31

32.

tEZA=T—HLEFE

RIBSLEAALH  —REBRERE
BB IRANIS AT BI(T BARERTE] ) - BB
BB BNREEAARERTEERDN
BELREEBERRE  LIEBEHARZE
B o

ZBRETE BRAQATRZES  NER
B EAERRCTEREARRE > ARTE
AR LEEARBARZEMNESLESR
BARNT RN 2 BRE - AFELARAER
REYBRENDERS B2 FIIRHER
RPEAAATARRWHENEZEE
EmERE)  RBITRUESER] - B
RN AN E Rt +F RSB AR -

BB R T RERE AT BEA
AERITRAZI10% - RETHALZEMA
+ B R AT R T EAE R ALz BT
EENKREZENMSEREBTRDZ1%

RBRETEMETNBRELVENRTE
Mt IR IR ER - ﬂtfih‘h%mzﬁ
B ETZBRETRR T ZBRERE
HATE REE_F—tHFL_F— /\fE
=R=+— EJLEWEEEFW P /NSRS
HEERE - REREZZ-—ARE=A=+—H
IFFE Fﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ%&ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ@ﬁ%ﬂﬁ
T o

. Bx 31. SHARE CAPITAL
[:dvig 4=
Number of
shares
T FET
‘000 HK$'000
ERITAHR LB Issued and fully paid ordinary shares:
RRZF—AFMmMA—H At 1 April 2015, 31 March 2016 and
“EF—F=ZA=t+—HE 31 March 2017
“F—t#F=RA=t+—H 784,693 921,014
REBEEZZ—tHER_F-—RE=A=1— There were no changes in the Company’s issued and fully paid share
AIEMEFEAR - KA E8ITREEE capital in both years.
AR
BEhstE 32. SHARE OPTIONS

On 7 September 2007, an ordinary resolution was passed to adopt
a share option scheme (the “Option Scheme”). The purpose of
the Option Scheme is to enable the Company to grant options to
eligible employees and directors as incentives and rewards for their
contributions to the Company.

According to the Option Scheme, the directors of the Company are
authorised, at any time within ten years after the adoption of the
Option Scheme, to grant options to any directors or employees of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries to subscribe for the Company’s
shares at a price not less than the average of the closing prices of the
Company'’s shares on the five trading days immediately preceding the
offer date of the options, the closing price of the Company’s shares
on the offer date or the nominal value of the Company's shares,
whichever is higher. Unless otherwise cancelled or amended, the
Option Scheme will be valid and effective for a period of ten years
from the date of adoption. The maximum number of shares in respect
of which options may be granted under the Option Scheme cannot
exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company. The number
of shares in respect of which options may be granted to any individual
in any twelve-month period up to the offer date is not permitted to
exceed 1% of the number of shares in issue.

Options granted under the Option Scheme must be taken up within
the period as specified in the offer of options and upon payment of
HK$1 as the consideration for the options granted. Options granted
are exercisable within the period as specified in the offer of options.
No share option has been granted during the years ended 31 March
2017 and 2016 and all share options granted under the Option
Scheme was lapsed during the year end 31 March 2016.
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32. BEBRIE @)

REEZF—tFLF-—REFZA=1—
HIEFERERERE S ST H AT ERE R
;T

32. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

The share options outstanding under the Option Scheme during the
years ended 31 March 2017 and 2016 are as follows:

RIE—ARER
2 ot 3
® =B=+-—H
“E-HF HRITE
mBE—H REFERE EFERR Outstanding
Al {T{EHARE IT{E(E MAK{TE Transferred Lapsed at 31.3.2016
b =)t ] Exercisable Exercise Outstanding during during and
Date of grant period price at 1.4.2015 the year the year 31.3.2017
ETT (F=E)
HK$ (Note)
HTHE -
Executive directors:
27.4.2010 27.4.2010 -
26.4.2015 1.27 2,850,000 700,000 (3,550,000) -
B IFRITES ¢
Independent
non-executive directors:
27.4.2010 27.4.2010 -
26.4.2015 1.27 900,000 - (900,000) -
EE N H{th2mE
Employees of the Group
and other participants:
27.4.2010 27.4.2010 -
26.4.2015 1.27 11,415,000 (700,000) (10,715,000) -
15,165,000 - (15,165,000) -
FERANTE
Exercisable at the end
of the year

M RBECS-AEZAST—HLEE  —
BHITEEWE  H700,0000 H R
DEEPITES -

15,165,000 -

Note: During the year ended 31 March 2016, an executive director was
appointed and his share options of 700,000 were transferred to the
category of executive director.
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33. INEE—RAMIE AR

RIE—AFNA—H  AEEKETHEH
AELIZHIKEF Japan Inc.z290% 2 & TR A
X 1& % 45,000,000 H Jt( 48 E 7 3,105,000
HBIT) c WELIBE HEAAR - RIKEES
2 BB 5 5777,0005 7T © KEF Japan
INnCBHETELER  WEENARTER
EEBEREK -

WHBRIARBIE AR »

R R NBRNEEEEREENT ¢

33. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 1 April 2016, the Group acquired 90% of the issued share capital
of KEF Japan Inc. a company incorporated in Japan, for a consideration
of JPY45,000,000 (equivalent to HK$3,105,000). This acquisition
has been accounted for using the purchase method. The amount of
gain on bargain purchase arising as a result of the acquisition was
HK$777,000. KEF Japan Inc. is engaged in the trading of acoustics
products. KEF Japan Inc. was acquired so as to continue the expansion
of the Group's acoustic operations.

The acquisition-related costs for the acquisition is insignificant.

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date of
acquisition are as follows:

FHET
HK$'000
zE Inventories 5,105
FEU E TR X B E BRTE Trade and other receivables 1,472
RITHRBERES Bank balances and cash 4,668
FEN B R EMENERIE Trade and other payable (6,607)
RIEEE Tax liability (325)
4,313
ESLE =Y Pdl § s Gain on bargain purchase arising on acquisition:
T
HK$'000
SARE Consideration transferred 3,105
B0 ¢ FEIE R AERS( KEF Japan Inc.22 10% 428 ) Plus: non-controlling interests (10% in KEF Japan Inc.) 431
B EENFEE Less: net assets acquired (4,313)
HEWENB AR WM Gain on bargain purchase arising on acquisition (777)

RUEEH  EREREEMEKKRERNA
FEREHERED B R1,472,000 % 5T K&
1,486,000/ 7T » TEHARBEU BN A HIRETR
55 514,000 7T

The fair value of trade and other receivables at the date of acquisition
amounted to HK$1,472,000. The gross contractual amounts of those
trade and other receivables acquired amounted to HK$1,486,000 at
the date of acquisition. The best estimate at acquisition date of the
contractual cash flows not expected to be collected amounted to
HK$14,000.
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33. INEE—RIME AR =)

33. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued)

W ZRAERA * Net cash inflow on acquisition:
FHET
HK$'000
SAARE Consideration transferred 3,105
B EARe(FiEE22) Less: Deposit paid for acquisition (note 22) (3,096)
WERSICHSREBERS Cash and cash equivalent acquired (4,668)
ENRESNEBRHE Currency realignment on deposit paid )
(4,668)

PRUEE R © KEF Japan Inc.;210%IE A%
BB BB BIPE EMREREES T
ﬁ&ﬁ@%‘u °©

AR » KEF Japan Inc.2 255 a2
%85 ER D B A5593,00058 7T K 13,859,000
7TE °

The non-controlling interest (10%) in KEF Japan Inc. recognised at the
acquisition date was measured at its proportionate share of recognised
amount of KEF Japan Inc.’s identifiable net assets.

Included in the profit for the year is HK$593,000 attributable to the
additional business generated by KEF Japan Inc. Revenue for the year
includes HK$13,859,000 generated from KEF Japan Inc..
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34. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company manages its capital to ensure that the entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising
the return to owners through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior

years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which includes
bank loans and import loans, and borrowings disclosed in notes 28
and 29 respectively, net of cash and cash equivalents and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued share
capital, reserves and retained profits as disclosed in the consolidated

statement of changes in equity.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a regular
basis. As part of this review, the directors consider the cost of capital
and the risks associated with each class of capital. In the opinion of
the directors of the Company, the Group will balance its overall capital
structure through the payment of dividends, new share issues and
share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of

existing debt.

EMIR 35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
=Rt T ELER Categories of financial instruments
2017 2016
Fi&grx FHBIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
SRIEE Financial assets
R FEU R IE Loans and receivables
— R EF N E B EWERIE — Trade and other receivables 1,024,052 897,677
— PR B — Dividend receivable 6,975 39,300
—RITHER ~ BARNRE — Bank balances, deposits and
cash 1,058,541 977,879
2,089,568 1,914,856
AHEERE Available-for-sale investments 63,966 62,286
SRtaE Financial liabilities
DU SE A F AR At amortised cost
— FEBRTE R B Ath AT R — Creditors and other payables 1,073,753 889,163
—RITERNEEREE — Bank loans and import loans 1,453,127 1,289,704
— &= - Borrowings 882,236 832,629
3,409,116 3,011,496
mAEEmMIA Derivative financial instruments - 2,866
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Financial risk management objectives and policies

Details of the Group’s financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments include
market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks
are set out below. The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

Market risk

Currency risk

The carrying amounts of the Group’s monetary assets and monetary
liabilities, representing trade and other receivables, dividend receivable,
bank balances, deposits and cash, creditors and other payables, bank
loans and import loans and borrowings, other than the respective
Group entities’ functional currencies at 31 March 2017 and 2016 are as
follows:

B'5E =1
Assets Liabilities
2017 2016 2017 2016

FiEgn THET FiER THET
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000

SRIT Australian dollars 133 11,139 - -
ES5 United States dollars (“USD") 346,944 179,803 281,022 125,049
AR Renminbi 499,586 376,677 562,922 468,907
HThn T Singapore dollars 5,897 4500 56,934 55,459
BRTT Euro 58,935 27,239 26,619 10,697

EENERRTERRERERN S cEE
FeE - ERESKEEEEEMNERRE -
W N FFE EEPEARINE R -

911,495 599,358 927,497 660,112

Exposures to foreign currency risks are managed as far as possible by
matching assets and liabilities in the same currency denomination.
The management regularly monitors foreign exchange exposure and
considers hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arise.
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Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)

Currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a 5% (2016: 5%)
increase and decrease in the functional currency of the respective
group entities against the relevant foreign currencies. The analysis
excludes the fluctuation between United States dollars and Hong
Kong dollars because Hong Kong dollars are pegged to United States
dollars. The rates mentioned above are the sensitivity rates used
when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management
personnel and represent management'’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary
items and adjusts their translation at the year end for a 5% change
in foreign currency rates. The analysis illustrates the impact for a 5%
strengthening of the functional currency of the respective group
entities against the relevant foreign currency and a negative number
below indicates a decrease in profit before taxation (2016: a decrease
in profit before taxation) and vice versa. For a 5% weakening of
the functional currency of the respective group entities against the
relevant foreign currency, there would be an equal and opposite effect
on the results.

2017 2016

FiEn FHBIT

HK$'000 HK$'000

TR Australian dollars (7) (557)

AR Renminbi 3,167 4,612

HThN3E T Singapore dollars 2,552 2,548

BT Euro (1,616) (827)
Vil Interest rate risk

REFERRITHSHEHRFE N R BRRIT
HFAR(FHBRWEE23)  FRIRITERNEE
EE(FBRMGE28 ) LERGEBRME29)
EHESRENETRR

R EE S REB BB KSR A HES
ARIEAR © 15 EREEB LR
BR ARBEREBE—SERZERA
%

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to its
variable-rate bank balances at prevailing market deposit rates (see
note 23), variable-rate bank loans and import loans (see note 28), and
borrowings (see note 29).

The Group will enter into interest rate swaps to mitigate part of
the exposure to interest rate risk, if necessary. In addition, the
management will monitor the situation and consider further hedging
such exposure should the need arises.
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EMEABEEEIERBER #)

Rk )

FIF )
$$l2ﬁ%miﬁzﬂﬁzgﬁ$ﬁ
BASERARARRIT mzé%ﬁmﬂ%
FE(TEBRIT H%ﬁmﬁ 703 SR4TH)
R E(THMEERITRIZERE DI REER
RZRE - EEERE AN EBRITER
Z BRI EAE - A E C EHRIT AR
FrEE 2 FZE BRI AER ©

THBRED DB ERREFERRTE
REEREE ~ FRITEREH A RER
REEMETE ° Eﬁﬁﬂﬁ“ﬂﬁiﬁii

HESMT AR IRMEE - SOEF LH,/
THRAERERENFARRER T
EEEHN BB IR -

BRED T

MR ITERRBEFERBITERFE L
FTBRSOEE - MATEHMEHAERFR
“*E$%l%mm/ﬂ%m9/ﬁm
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HAER AR
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Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on the
fluctuation of Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate, Singapore Interbank
Offered Rate or Prime Rate arising from the Group's bank borrowings.
The management considers the Group's exposure of the short-term
bank balances to interest rate risk is not significant as interest bearing
bank balances are within short maturity period.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the
exposure to interest rates for variable-rate bank loans and import
loans, and bank borrowings. The analysis is prepared assuming
financial instruments outstanding at the end of the reporting period
were outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis points increase or
decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management’s assessment of
the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

Sensitivity analysis

If the interest rate on bank loans and import loans, and borrowings
had been 50 basis points higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group's profit before taxation would decrease/
increase by approximately HK$11,144,000 (2016: HK$9,786,000).

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its investment in
listed equity securities and unlisted equity securities. The Group has
a team to monitor the price risk and will consider hedging the risk
exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on exposure
to equity price risks at the end of the reporting period.

If the price of the listed equity investments had been 5% (2016: 5%)
higher/lower, the available-for-sale investment reserve will increase/
decrease by HK$770,000 (2016: increase/decrease by HK$686,000).

In the opinion of the directors, the Group's investments in unlisted
equity securities are not sensitive to price changes, therefore, no
sensitivity analysis is prevented.
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Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
Credit risk

As at 31 March 2017, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to
discharge an obligation by the counterparties and financial guarantees
provided by the Group is arising from:

— the carrying amount of the respective recognised financial assets as
stated in the statement of financial position; and

— the amount of contingent liabilities in relation to financial
guarantee issued by the Group as disclosed in note 38.

The management considers that the Group has adequate credit
control for determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. The Group reviews the recoverable amount of
each individual trade and other receivables at the end of the reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties are
banks with high credit-ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agents.

The Group is also exposed to the credit risk in respect of guarantees
given to banks relating to banking facilities utilised by associates (see
note 38). The management periodically reviews financial position of
the associates and considers that the associates are of strong financial
strength and the Group has adequate monitoring procedures to
reduce the credit risk.

The Group does not have any significant concentration of credit risk
over trade receivables. Trade receivables consist of a large number of
customers and spread across diverse industries.

Liquidity risk

The Group finances its operations by using a combination of
borrowings and equity. Adequate lines of credit are maintained to
ensure necessary liquidity is available when required. The management
monitors the liquidity position of the Group on a periodical basis to
ensure the availability of sufficient liquid funds to meet all obligations.
With reference to the existing unutilised facilities and newly obtained
facilities up to the date when the consolidated financial statements
are authorised for issue and after taking into account of any possible
disposal of investments and re-financing arrangements, the directors
of the Company consider the source of liquidity and capital for the
daily operation are sufficient.
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

The following table details the Group’s contractual maturity for
its financial liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required to pay. The table includes
both interest and principal cash flows. To the extent that interest flows
are at floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from interest

Ho rate at the end of the reporting period.
REFEH
#EA
ZERmE{E
ENRag JEifER Carrying
IEFI9FE —£R - 5 REiieE amount
Weighted On demand HER Total at the end of
average or within Within undiscounted the reporting
interest rate 1 year 2-5 years cash flows period
BT FET BT FET
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZE—t&=H=+—H Asat 31 March 2017
FERBRIBR HAfEMEL  Creditors and other payables - 1,073,753 - 1,073,753 1,073,753
RITERRBEEE Bank loans and import loans
(FEAX) (variable rates) 3.18% 1,515,183 - 1,515,183 1,453,127
BHROFHAX) Borrowings (variable rates) 3.70% - 923,870 923,870 882,236
FBHERR Obligations under finance leases 3.52% 1,341 1,109 2,450 1,762
BBEREXA(NE) Financial guarantee contracts
(note) - 24,077 - 24,077 -
2,614,354 924,979 3,539,333 3,410,878
RZE—ARE=BA=+—H Asat 31 March 2016
FERBRIBR EAfENMEL  Creditors and other payables - 889,163 - 889,163 889,163
RITERRBEEE Bank loans and import loans
(FEAX) (variable rates) 347 1,348,768 - 1,348,768 1,289,704
BEROIEFZE) Borrowings (variable rates) 3.77 - 857,089 857,089 832,629
WBEERHR Obligations under finance leases 5.30 1,215 468 1,683 1,105
BBEREXA(E) Financial guarantee contracts
(note) - 16,327 - 16,327 -
2,255,473 857,557 3,113,030 3,012,601
TTAESBTE S84 E  Derivative - net settlement
— - outflow 2,866 - 2,866 2,866

st « D BRAR AR BEAEEHER
BIECRBERTHFH T A ARERARE
ZEBERMIBACEAESHEH - NREHEE
B AEERRHRATERESREERRZHE
A HEAZRIA © AT BRI EERR
RINEHFRRERYBEMAREZEEE
KMIRBERRE AN -

T B R GBI SIS E B st X
REBRAR » EAUFBRAERT B2 BEER

B -

Note: The amounts included above for financial guarantee contracts are the
maximum amounts the Group could be required to settle under the
arrangement for the full guaranteed amount if that amount is claimed
by the counterparty to the guarantee. Based on expectations at the end
of the reporting period, the Group considers that it is more likely that no
amount will be payable under the arrangement. However, this estimate is
subject to change depending on the probability of the counterparty which
suffers credit losses on the financial receivables and claims under the
guarantee.

The amounts included above for variable interest rate instruments are
subject to change if changes in variable interest rates differ from those
estimates of interest rates determined at the end of the reporting
period.
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

EMTRATESE
M AR EN AR RS ESREER
SMBEZATENEL -

BEEAFEFEBZIEEZZHMEERE
MEEZLFE
FEERPCHEERSRERDZE®RSE
BEERNATENE - TREHBEREZS
TREELE/MEEATENMEZEENER
(LEZFRHERITEEARE)

Fair value measurement of financial instruments
This note provides information about how the Group determines fair
values of various financial assets and financial liabilities.

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities
that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities are
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period. The
following table gives information about how the fair values of these
financial assets and financial liabilities are determined (in particular,
the valuation technique(s) and inputs used).

£REE/
E T ATEEE(&E) ATEER
Financial assets/ Fair value assets Fair value

financial liabilities

(liabilities) as at hierarchy

TREHAREE
DFEHE/EERER EENTIRE RTEZRE
TEGABEZER BAMR Relationship of
Basis of fair value measurement/ Significant unobservable  unobservable input(s) to
valuation technique(s) and key input(s) input(s) fair value

2017 2016
Fign TAT
HK$'000 HK$'000

1 PERTHLE F20

RENEAES

Equity securities 15,396 13,716 Level 2

dlassified as
available-for-sale
investments

2 DERMTESRIEN X

EERAN

Commodity forward -
contracts classified
as derivative financial
instruments

REBEZF—tERTF—FRF=A=1T—
HILFE - AFERREREES -

HftemEEME/A B ENATEDREE
REERBESREDNTN—RAREBERNE
E - ANREERAZSFEHEENRTHME
BELEATFEAN KB ERAREED
Bk

(2,866) Level 2

EABSHATENRREERETS A
(RAUAER FAERRER R -

2

&R TER

The fair value of the equity securities N/A N/A
is estimated by the price quotation
available on the Emerging Market Board
in Taiwan, which does not trade actively.

FRRERE - NER NER

AR ERENENERBRER(HRE
PANTERRESENERERAS)
RARERAE - DERRERG A
EER AR RS MG -

Discounted cash flow. N/A N/A

Future cash flows are estimated based on
closing forward price (from observable
forward price of related metals at the
end of the reporting period) and contract
forward rates, discounted at a rate
that reflects the credit risk of various
counterparties.

There is no transfer between different levels of the fair value hierarchy
during the year ended 31 March 2017 and 2016.

The fair value of other financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined in accordance with general accepted pricing models
based on discounted cash flow analysis. The directors of the Company
consider that the carrying amounts of these financial assets and
financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost approximate their fair
values.
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36.

37.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Company and certain of its subsidiaries participate in the Gold
Peak Group Provident Fund Scheme, a defined contribution retirement
benefit scheme, for all qualified employees in Hong Kong. The
scheme is funded by contributions from employers according to the
employees’ remuneration and length of services as defined under
the trust deed. The monthly contribution rates of this scheme ranged
from 5% to 10%. At the same time, the Group also participated in a
mandatory provident fund (“MPF") scheme registered under the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Ordinance. All new employees have
the option to join the Gold Peak Group Provident Fund Scheme or the
MPF scheme with terms as stipulated by the MPF Authority. Under the
MPF scheme, both the employer and its employees are required to
make contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant
income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000
effective from June 2014 for the MPF scheme.

For the Gold Peak Group Provident Fund Scheme, the unvested
benefits of employees who terminate employment are utilised by the
employers to reduce their future level of contributions. The amounts
of unvested benefits so utilised by the employers during the year
ended 31 March 2017 were approximately HK$1,214,000 (2016:
HK$571,000). As at 31 March 2017, the forfeited contributions of
HK$121,000 (2016: HK$195,000) were available to reduce the level
of employers’ future contributions.

The Group also participates in the employees’ pension schemes of
the respective municipal government in various places in the PRC
where the Group operates. The Group makes monthly contributions
calculated as a percentage of the monthly payroll costs and the
respective municipal government undertakes to assume the retirement
benefit obligations of all existing and future retirees of the Group.
The Group has no other obligations for the payment of pension and
other post-retirement benefits of employees other than the above
contributions payments.

In addition, certain subsidiaries of the Company outside Hong Kong
and the PRC participate in central provident fund schemes established
by the relevant authority in their respective countries which are
defined contribution plan.

The Group contributed an aggregate amount of HK$15,511,000
(2016: HK$16,148,000) to the above retirement benefit schemes
during the year ended 31 March 2017.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION
During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group entered into finance

lease arrangements in respect of property, plant and equipment with
a total capital value at the inception of HK$1,398,000 (2016: HK$nil).
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38.

39.

40.

HARR 38. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
2017 2016
TFERT FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000
THENATRITENIER Guarantees given to banks in respect of
banking facilities to associates 16,327 16,327
Hfth Others 7,750 -
RiE 39. COMMITMENTS
2017 2016
FExT FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
EENERTGEUBERIER Capital expenditure in respect of
BREEME - BMERSZEZ acquisition of property, plant and
BEARKIE equipment contracted for but not
provided in the consolidated
financial statements 83,360 25,935

ERHERRE

HAE

REEPREER - AEBERAAIHHEEXA
EAERTTRH > AN ZEEMT ¢

40.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

As lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has outstanding
commitments under non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as

follows:
2017 2016

R R R e

TitREE Machinery TNEE  Machinery
Land and and Hith Land and and Hih
buildings equipment Others buildings  equipment Others
Fign FiEn Fign FiET FET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—FR Within one year 70,744 261 2,115 69,288 213 2,658

ZEhENEEME In the second to fifth years

BEER) inclusive 186,707 443 1,843 205,632 307 2,011
BEEhE Over five years 13,588 1 - 26,892 - -
271,039 715 3,958 301,812 520 4,669

EXHEHSAERAEERNERHAE
IREEB AR EEE - HEFH—RE
BRIVERISFE( 2T —RFE D 1FZR206)

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for
its office properties, factories and machinery and equipment. Leases

are negotiated for terms from 1 to 15 years (2016: 1 to 20 years).
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40. EEHEERIEB2)

HiEE

FR - REYWERSWA,010,000# 7T
(ZF—7X4 11,311,000 7T ) - REREH
EEB FHERRMKEYERAER
9,955,000 70( —ZF — 7N 4F : 9,635,000
Jt)  FTRMEEAREAS HEFH—Z
ME - RIREHAEH » AEERRREKE
HERSHEARRENT ¢

40. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS (continued)

As lessor

Rental income from investment properties earned during the year was
HK$1,010,000 (2016: HK$1,311,000). Investment properties with
carrying amount of HK$9,955,000 (2016: HK$9,635,000) were held
for rental purposes at the end of the reporting period. The properties
held have committed tenants for a period from one to two years.
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with
tenants for the following future minimum lease payments:

2017 2016

Fi&grx FET

HK$'000 HK$'000

—&FRN Within one year 2,187 3,996
“EhFENEEMFEEEEAN) In the second to fifth years inclusive 3,991 10,913
A Over five years 1,836 3,809
8,014 18,718

4. FEALRS

AEEEAEEZBMENTETUTERR
5

41.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group entered into the following significant transactions with its
associates of the Group:

2017 2016

TFiEx FiET

HK$000 HK$'000

==l NG| Purchases from associates 505,073 498,506

SEETHEAT Sales to associates 150,099 130,018
B¥E AT EEEWRA Management fee income received

from associates 1,692 2,997

NBREWEER  FEELAATEBEN
AR TRERRIIN B E TR R ERER
IBRFANFIR - RENRENRERN

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has the following
balances with its associates included under trade and other receivables
and prepayments and creditors and accrued charges:

2017 2016

Fign FHET

HK$'000 HK$'000

FEWE S NR B Trade receivables due from associates 46,404 36,535
Hih B AT FIE Other receivables due from associates 3,847 23,842
eSS AT ER Trade payables due to associates 123,350 120,273
HibE(JBtE AT 2508 Other payables due to associates 417 18,866

FTEEEREBEAATESE I TESH
2N N

The key management personnel includes solely the directors of the
Company and the compensation paid to them is disclosed in note 9.
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42. FRBZUHRRE

ARAR_FB-—EtFERF-REF=ZA

=t—RZHBERAT :

The financial information of the Company as at 31 March 2017 and

2016 as follows:

42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

31.3.2017 31.3.2016
TFi&n FHIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
JERENEE Non-current assets
MZE ~ B &R Property, plant and equipment 22,614 24,991
=L R E NI S Interests in subsidiaries 1,222,454 1,222,454
WBATIRRK Amounts due from subsidiaries 26,822 26,852
HEZRE Rental deposits 3,684 3,684
1,275,574 1,277,981
MENEE Current assets
HibEERIE K TANFIE Other receivables and prepayments 4,972 5,020
MEBATRK Amounts due from subsidiaries 100,092 100,570
RITHGF  BRNERS Bank balances, deposits and cash 31,445 37,842
136,509 143,432
mENEE Current liabilities
FEERIENER Creditors and accrued charges 6,049 8,371
MIFHERE Obligation under finance lease 252 -
SRITEMR Bank loans 319,500 225,917
325,801 234,288
mENREFE Net current liabilities (189,292) (90,856)
BEEREREHEE Total assets less current liabilities 1,086,282 1,187,125
JEiREIE(E Non-current liabilities
B Borrowings 150,250 233,750
MBEHERETE - —FRER Obligation under finance lease
— after one year 505 -
150,755 233,750
BERE Net assets 935,527 953,375
BEXRiEE Capital and reserves
REACFIEE31) Share capital (note 31) 921,014 921,014
Er D) Reserves (note) 14,513 32,361
LR Total equity 935,527 953,375

RIF—tHFAA-+HBEZERESE - I

HUTEEARESR
FAGES REz
EE EE

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 20
June 2017 and are signed on its behalf by:

Victor LO Chung Wing

LEUNG Pak Chuen
Director Director
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42. FABZHBRAR =) 42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY (continued)

126

PrigE Note:
ERRR R (R
i3St Share REERN
Dividend option Retained 8t
reserve reserve profits Total
FET FHET TET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
NZF-AFNA—H At 1 April 2015 19,617 4,429 84,846 108,892
GRS YN Transfer upon lapse
of share options - (4,429) 4,429 -
2FBE Loss for the year - - (37,297) (37,297)
EIRERE Dividend paid
—“F-AERPKE -2015 final dividend (19,617) - - (19,617)
—ZF—R"ERBRE - 2016 interim dividend - - (19,617) (19,617)
BERS Dividend proposed
—ZE—REREKE - 2016 final dividend 7,847 - (7,847) -
A_F—RE=A=1+—H At 31 March 2016 7,847 - 24,514 32,361
2EFE Loss for the year - - (585) (585)
EIRERS Dividend paid
—IE—AEREKE - 2016 final dividend (7,847) - - (7,847)
—ZE—tHEREKE ~2017 interim dividend - - (9,416) (9,416)
BERS Dividend proposed
—ZE—TERBRE ~2017 final dividend 9,416 - (9,416) -
RZF—tHF=R=+—H At 31 March 2017 9,416 - 5,097 14,513
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43. FEMBEAE

(a) IBASM—RREH

ARAR_FB—LtHFRF—XRFZA
=t—BZETERBARFBEAT

43. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(a) General information of subsidiaries
Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2017

and 2016 are as follows:

FEERGERTREZ
RIS BT /M AE BYEAE
Place of Nominal value of Effective equity
WEATEHE incorporation/ issued share/ interest attributable FEEE
Name of subsidiary registration registered capital to the Group Principal activities
2017 2016
EFH
Electronics division
BEEXERAR B% HK$496,000,000 85.47%  8545% BRKRE
Bowden Industries Limited Hong Kong Investment holding
CIH Limited iyl 5$1,473,666  85.47% 85.45%  ZRIFE
Singapore Investment holding
Famingo Pte Ltd. IR S$2  85.47% 85.45% RS
Singapore Investment holding
GP Acoustics Limited KEHBRES US$51,000,000  85.47% 85.45%  ZERIEE
British Virgin Islands Investment holding
GP Acoustics (HK) Limited &5 HK$20,000,000  85.47% 85.45% HE  FELNEEERN
Hong Kong EFER
Marketing, retailing
and distribution
of acoustic and
electronic products
GP Acoustics (Middle East) (Bkhi] AED300,000  85.47% 85.45% HERDHEBENEFER
DWC-LLC United Arab Emirates Marketing and distribution
of acoustic and electronic
products
GP Acoustics (UK) Limited R £12,500,000  85.47% 85.45%  RIRE it HER
United Kingdom HERBRRETER
Investment holding, design,
marketing and trading of
acoustic and electronic
products
SHEFH PR ERAT &% HK$2  85.47%  8545% ZRIE
GP Electronics (China) Limited Hong Kong Investment holding
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43. T EMBE A =) 43. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
(a) MBAZM—MER =) (a) General information of subsidiaries (continueq)
FRERGRITREZ
L/ Ets BT /MR AE BYEAE
Place of Nominal value of Effective equity
MEAR &R incorporation/ issued share/ interest attributable FTEEK
Name of subsidiary registration registered capital to the Group Principal activities
2017 2016
EFH =)
Electronics division (continued)
SIEHEEBRAR & HK$50,000,000  85.47% 8545% HEREEEEER
GP Electronics (HK) Limited Hong Kong Marketing and trading

of audio products

BimelETERATe g HK$170,000,000 81.20%  81.18% ELBBRNETER
GP Electronics (Huizhou) PRC Manufacturing of acoustic and

Co,, Ltd.e electronic products
GP Global Marketing Corporation FE#E US$100,000  85.47% 85.45%  FHMEE

Cayman Islands Holding of trademarks

GP Global Marketing Limited ) HK$100,000  85.47% 85.45%  TiGHE

(formerly known as GP Global  Hong Kong Marketing

Marketing (HK) Limited)
GPT %+ HIE $$286,306,915  85.47%  85.45%  HRRE
GP Ind2 Singapore Investment holding
SINTXZEHARAT B HK$21,000,000  85.47% 8545% HEENHERBTHHR
GP Industries Marketing Ltd Hong Kong GERRERER

Marketing and trading of quality
parts and components and
hygienic and health care

products
SHETERERAR BE HK$1,000000 85.47%  8545% HREE
GPE International Limited Hong Kong Investment holding
ZNIERREERAT  TE US$2,283,000  85.47%  8545% ERRERR - BERR
Huizhou GP Wiring Technology ~ PRC ERFE
Ltd. Manufacturing of automotive

wire harness, transformers and
switching mode power supply

KEF Celestion Corporation HEHE US$10,000  85.47% 85.45% FEMEE
Cayman Islands Holding of trademarks
KEF Japan, Inc. HA JPY50,000,000  76.92% - HETZER
Japan Trading of acoustics products
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43. XEMBL= 2

(a) MBARM—&ER =)

43. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(a) General information of subsidiaries (continued)

FEEEGERTRSZ
Wi/ s BT/ HMRAE BHERE
Place of Nominal value of Effective equity
MEAR &R incorporation/ issued share/  interest attributable TELEK
Name of subsidiary registration registered capital to the Group Principal activities
2017 2016
gty
Batteries division
EAll e R $$257399,422  5545%  5527% HREE
GP Batteries Singapore Investment holding
RREFSHERADA FE HK$109,000,000 5545%  5527% EREM
Dongguan Chao Ba PRC Manufacturing of batteries
Batteries Co Ltd"
SEBERBEROBRAR =) ] NT$2,036,187,800  44.36% 421% EREM
Gold Peak Industries Taiwan Manufacturing of batteries
(Taiwan) Limited
GP Batteries (Americas) E3Ei US$105,800  55.45% 55.27%  HENHESH
Inc. United States of America Marketing and trading in batteries
SIECTZE(EMNERATN +& US$4,400,000  55.45%  5527% EHEM
GP Batteries (China) Limited? PRC Manufacturing of batteries
GP Batteries (Malaysia) BERAR RM10,000,000  55.45% 5527% EEEM
Sdn Bhd Malaysia Manufacturing of batteries
A& LEHERARTA g HK$110,000,000 5545%  5527% EZEM
GP Batteries (Shenzhen) PRC Manufacturing of batteries
Co., Ltdr
GP Batteries (U.K.) Limited HE £1,070,000  55.45% 55.27%  HEMHESH
United Kingdom Marketing and trading in batteries
GP Batteries (Vietnam) Limited VND90,000,000,000  43.81% 4366% ELEM
Liability Company Vietnam Manufacturing of batteries
BHRBOERAR Bk HK$2  55.45%  5527% HERMEESH
GP Battery Marketing Hong Kong Marketing and trading in batteries
(H.K.) Limited
GP Battery Marketing % 150,000,000 49.91%  49.75% EEREESH
(Korea) Limited South Korea Marketing and trading in batteries
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43. XEMBAB (#7) 43. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
(a) MBAZM—MER =) (a) General information of subsidiaries (continueq)
FEEEGERTREZ
L/ s BT/ MRAE BRERE
Place of Nominal value of Effective equity
MEAD &R incorporation/ issued share/ interest attributable FTEEK
Name of subsidiary registration registered capital to the Group Principal activities
2017 2016
i =)
Batteries division (continued)
GP Battery Marketing BRAE RM100,000  55.45% 55.27%  HEMIHESH
(Malaysia) Sdn Bhd Malaysia Marketing and trading in batteries
GP Battery Marketing (Singapore) #rin3 $$800,000  55.45% 5527% HEEREESH
Pte Ltd Singapore Marketing and trading in batteries
GP Battery (Poland) Sp. z.0o.o.  JEE PLN23,022,405  55.45% 5527% HENHEEH
Poland Marketing and trading in batteries
SBLIX(FEERAR &% HK$2  55.45%  5527% EREE
GP Battery Technology Hong Kong Investment holding
(HK) Limited
GPIEIERERAT BA HK$50,000,000  55.45%  55.27% HEERMEESH
GPI International Limited Hong Kong Marketing and trading in batteries
HIBRELERERATS & HK$30,000,000 49.91%  49.75% HERHESH
Huizhou Chao Ba Batteries PRC Marketing and trading in batteries
Co Ltd”
BENERERERATN I US$9,400,000  55.45% 5527% EEEM
Huizhou Modern Battery PRC Manufacturing of batteries
LimitedA
BREREHERAR" HE RMB30,000,000  39.93% 39.80% EHSH
Ningbo Fubang Battery PRC Manufacturing of batteries
Co Ltd®
BRERERARAR" FE US$31,100,000 49.91%  49.75% EXE®
Ningbo GP Energy Co., Ltd® PRC Manufacturing of batteries
IS R JERAT BE HK$2  5545%  55.27% EREE
Sylva Industries (China) Hong Kong Investment holding
Limited
BEERERAT B HK$1,200000 55.45%  55.27% EHEH
Sylva Industries Limited Hong Kong Manufacturing of batteries
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43. XEMBL= 2

(a) MBARM—&ER =)

43. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(a) General information of subsidiaries (continued)

FRERGRITRFZ
WL/ Eis BT /MR AE BYEAE
Place of Nominal value of Effective equity
REABRRE incorporation/ issued share/ interest attributable FEER
Name of subsidiary registration registered capital to the Group Principal activities
2017 2016

3 =)

Batteries division (continued)

Vectrix International Limited

HBLIEERAT
Whitehill Electrochemical
Company Limited

PR ERBHNERAT"

Zhongyin (Ningbo) Battery
Co. Ltd®

RtiE

Other investments

Makinen Properties Limited2

°  IWEAT RN PEIEG T EMALZ R

BEhE-

A EEAT R P EEG T M 25

EHARE-

& WENRRANDEERE - FIEEMN
BARARQARBESH -

BE

Hong Kong
Bk

Hong Kong
e

PRC
HREARAE

British Virgin Islands

BRI R AR MR A Z AT
RARMFAULARMETZKRNY

BB -

EXRBINARRBCHBAT » EERR
ZENRA TR ERFEZFETER
AEHEE-EERAD - EFARHE
FI RN E AR 2 F B RS RURIRETT

Ko

PREWEES  ERFEEARRENES

iy MIBARMEETEREES -

HK$30,000,000 55.45%  55.27% HENBERE
Holding of intellectual properties

HK$2  55.45%  5527% B RERENFTE
Investment holding and provision
of logistic support

US$35,000,000  38.82% 38.69% EREH
Manufacturing of batteries

Us$1  100% 100%  #ERHE
Investment holding

@ These Companies are established as sino-foreign joint ventures
registered under the PRC law.

A These companies are established as wholly foreign owned enterprises
registered under the PRC law.

A~ These companies are directly held by the Company. All other
subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company.

Except for the companies established in the PRC with registered
capital, the classes of shares held by the Company in the above
companies are ordinary shares issued by these companies.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results of the year
or constituted a substantial portion of the assets of the Group.
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

Save as disclosed, none of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
outstanding at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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43. T EMBE A =)

(b) MIBASZEREREEE

43. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(b) Change in ownership in subsidiaries

REE_FS—tF=H=+—H1HF
E AQNAZHBABDRHSPLOEH
Mp - BN ER4A250008T( ZF
—XN4F 1 44,909,00038 7T ) © Kl fEZ[E
B BN E4250008 T ZB—K
£ 1 44,909,00078 7T ) BEA L AR 2 JE
72 % 1E %5 479,000 38 T ( ZF— K 4F ¢
54,656,000 JT ) & =2 7 %8 54,0004 J©
(ZF—74 9,747,000 ) HENE
KIEEBPRER -

REZE-_F—tH#=H=+—H1HF
E AEBKE—HEHEBAR
ShRERS - R E 51,393,000 0 ( ZF
— 754 18,077,000 7T ) o A EZ K
B EARE 1,393,000 0( ZF—K
£ 18,077,000 T ) B R oA 2 2 FF =
% 18 45 2,350,000 T ( —F — K& ¢
17,017,000 7T ) =2 Z=%8957,0005% 7T
(ZF—754F ¢ 8,940,000 7T ) HIENE

RBEE_F-—tF=A=+—"HLEEF
E > BRETHBATBREKER &
EEXHFEEREZNRSRER
4,966,000/ 7T °

RBE_F-ARNF=ZA=1+—"HLHF
E - AEEWEIEETHBEARTIFRER
ERAEFRIEMINESARE &
%A7/%9,450,000787T °

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the listed subsidiaries
of the Company repurchased their shares from the market at
cash consideration of HK$425,000 (2016: HK$44,909,000). As
a result of the repurchase, the difference of HK$54,000 (2016:
HK$9,747,000) between the consideration paid of HK$425,000
(2016: HK$44,909,000) and the amount of non-controlling interests
adjusted of HK$479,000 (2016: HK$54,656,000) was directly
recognised in capital reserve.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group acquired
additional interest in a subsidiary for a consideration of
HK$1,393,000 (2016: HK$8,077,000). As a result of the
acquisitions, the difference of HK$957,000 (2016: HK$8,940,000)
between the consideration paid of HK$1,393,000 (2016:
HK$8,077,000) and the amount of non-controlling interests
adjusted of HK$2,350,000 (2016: HK$17,017,000) was directly
recognised in capital reserve.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group paid cash
of HK$4,966,000 to non-controlling shareholders of certain
subsidiaries as a result of capital reduction during the year.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group received cash
contribution of HK$9,450,000 from non-controlling shareholders
of certain subsidiaries as a result of capital injection during the
year.

(c) BEEEXIEIZEHIERDHIEREMBEATZ (c) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have material
B non-controlling interests
AEBEEERFLERERNIERZENR The table below shows details of non-wholly-owned subsidiaries
BARZFHIBYIERMT ¢ of the Group that have material non-controlling interests:

[pAve::hap-3 IR FEN
FEEEMT BEERRRELG
Place of Proportion of
incorporation and ownership interests DEFIEERRER T BEHIEIRIRIES
MEAB&E principal price and voting rights held by Profit allocated to Accumulated
Name of subsidiary of business non-controlling interests  non-controlling interests non-controlling interest
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
Fign FiET FiEn FiHT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
GPIZ K
GP Ind Singapore 14.53% 14.55% 16,238 19,409 294,395 299,632
SLEH N3
GP Batteries Singapore 35.12% 35.32% 70,685 80,158 891,089 936,612
86,923 99,567 1,185,484 1,236,244
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43. TEMBEAR») 43. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(0 BBEEXFEHIEGNIFZERBAR

(c) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have material

2B =) non-controlling interests (continued)
GPT % GP Ind
2017 2016
Tign T
HK$'000 HK$'000
MENEE Current assets 3,069,855 2,888,244
FREEE Non-current assets 2,956,588 2,863,976
nEaE Current liabilities 2,465,479 2,243,314
FERBEE Non-current liabilities 753,822 616,163
GPT BB NEMZ R Equity attributable to owners of GP Ind 1,903,579 1,944,804
R ER Non-controlling interests 903,563 947,939
[ON Revenue 5,822,584 5,795,467
I ERFIREE Expenses, other gains and losses 5,646,161 5,587,199
2ERF Profit for the year 176,423 208,268
BERAADEEAZER Profit attributable to owners
of the Company 89,500 108,701
BERGP IR R < 5 A Profit attributable to the non-controlling
interests of GP Ind 16,238 19,409
BEREIIEHIFERER BT Profit attributable to the non-controlling
interests of GP Batteries 70,685 80,158
2ERF Profit for the year 176,423 208,268
FERAAREE ACEMEETH Other comprehensive expense
attributable to owners of the Company (3,937) (114,633)
BERGP LR ER c 2 ES Other comprehensive expense attributable
to the non-controlling interest of GP Ind (156) (10,350)
HSERSIES O ERER M2 EX Other comprehensive expense attributable
to the non-controlling interests
of GP Batteries (22,815) (79,545)
2EHMREIH Other comprehensive expense for the year (26,908) (204,528)
BERANAREE A2 I H EE Total comprehensive income (expense)
attributable to owners of the Company 85,563 (5,932)
FERGPT RS v 2N EE Total comprehensive income attributable
to the non-controlling interests of GP Ind 16,082 9,059
BERSSHIRERES v 2 HRREE Total comprehensive income
attributable to the non-controlling
interests of GP Batteries 47,870 613
2ERENGETR Total comprehensive income for the year 149,515 3,740
EffFFERER RS Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (60,363) (69,317)
REEREL TRESTNTE Net cash inflow from operating activities 57,715 195,453
BEEREL VRS RILTE Net cash outflow from investing activities (24,764) (154,529)
REELCIRETRNTE Net cash inflow from financing activities 106,329 146,849
BERNTFE Net cash inflow 139,280 187,773

B ER BRI E SR 5 A8

uh D8 GPTEFRAIEE

The details of the financial information were disclosed in GP Ind’s
annual report which was available on the website of the Singapore

Stock Exchange.
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43. T EMBEA= =)
() BEEEXEEHERNIEZEMNEAR

43. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(c) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have material

134

ZEE ) non-controlling interests (continued)
EUIEH GP Batteries
2017 2016
Tign T
HK$'000 HK$'000
MEEE Current assets 2,138,628 2,053,861
FRBEE Non-current assets 1,579,808 1,533,675
nEarE Current liabilities 1,865,043 1,524,018
ERBEE Non-current liabilities 146,634 262,740
SIEMHE NELZER Equity attributable to owners of GP Batteries 1,257,265 1,336,047
g Non-controlling interests 449,494 464,731
KA Revenue 4,263,929 4,271,267
S HfaFIREE Expenses, other gains and losses 4,180,625 4,183,699
2F 57 Profit for the year 83,304 87,568
BERAATER ARA Profit attributable to owners of
the Company 10,774 6,320
BENGPIEIERIER O HT Profit attributable to the non-controlling
interests of GP Ind 1,845 1,090
BENEIIE I ERER . ER Profit attributable to the non-controlling
interests of GP Batteries 6,954 5,969
BERSBNBARIERER A Profit attributable to the non-controlling
interests of GP Batteries' subsidiaries 63,731 74,189
2E 57 Profit for the year 83,304 87,568
BENAADEE ACEMRHES Y Other comprehensive expense attributable
to owners of the Company (22,185) (55,143)
BENGP L ERER C AMAEZ Other comprehensive expense attributable
to the non-controlling interest of GP Ind (3,799) (9,515)
BERS LB IR s 2 A Other comprehensive expense attributable
to the non-controlling interests of GP
Batteries (14,319) (52,084)
BERSIBRBEARI R EM2EE Other comprehensive expense attributable
to the non-controlling interests of GP
Batteries' subsidiaries (8,496) (27,4617)
2EHMAEL Other comprehensive expense for the year (48,799) (144,203)
BERARTEEACEE ER Total comprehensive expense attributable
to owners of the Company (11,411) (48,823)
BENGP T IS« 2 X HER Total comprehensive expense attributable
to the non-controlling interests of GP Ind (1,954) (8,425)
BEREIIEHIEERER  2H AR Total comprehensive expense attributable
to the non-controlling interests of GP
Batteries (7,365) (46,115)
BEN B UHBARFRRER ¢ 2HRR AR Total comprehensive income attributable
to the non-controlling interests of GP
Batteries subsidiaries 55,235 46,728
DEDENER( T ER Total comprehensive income (expense) for
the year 34,505 (56,635)
[SINEE S &) Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (48,807) (55,611)
S Y b R N Net cash inflow from operating activities 179,291 212,677
BEEBEECRESRLTE Net cash outflow from investing activities (90,751) (84,817)
BEEECRS(RE RNFE Net cash (outflow) inflow from financing
activities (38,282) 72,838
ReEnNFE Net cash inflow 50,258 200,698

B E R IE IR I E 53X 5 i
uh PRz I LB R REE -

The details of the financial information were disclosed in GP
Batteries’ annual report which was available on the website of the

Singapore Stock Exchange.
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44. PRINCIPAL ASSOCIATES

are as follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conTD)
FERBMEE@)

Details of the Group’s principal associates at 31 March 2017 and 2016

FEERERTRE
B3I/ RS ZENERE
BEATEE Place of incorporation/ Effective equity interest FEEE
Name of associate registration attributable to the Group Principal activities
2017 2016
Z7H
Electronics division
Julong Technology Limited RBERREE 25.64% - ZRKE
British Virgin Islands Investment holding
BETEBRAT &% 32.59% 3258%  BREE - EHSENER
Linkz Industries Limited Hong Kong Investment holding and
manufacturing of electronic
cables and wires
XETERNERAR g 17.33% 17.32% % RENHESERR
Meiloon Industrial Co., Ltd. Taiwan FEEM
Development, manufacturing
and marketing of acoustic
and audio-visual equipment
BERRBRAR B 25.64% 25.64% ERRERSBRRES
Wisefull Technology Limited Hong Kong Investment holding and
trading of metallic products
EEREARAT RBEARHE 25.64% 2564%  BREE
Youjia Technology Limited British Virgin Island Investment holdings
ZitH
Batteries division
AZ Limited B 22.18% 211%  EERYESH
Russia Marketing and trading in batteries
ENEREERAR HE 22.18% 22.11% EREN
Changzhou Lithium Batteries Ltd PRC Manufacturing of batteries
SETEERAR B 16.64% 16.58%  HERMESH
Gold Yi Industry Company Limited PRC Marketing and trading in batteries
GP Battery Marketing (Germany) e 27.73% 27.63% EERHESH
GmbH Germany Marketing and trading in batteries
GP Battery Marketing (Middle East) )i 27.73% 27.63% BERNESH
Limited (FZC) United Arab Emirates Marketing and trading in batteries
GP Battery Marketing (Thailand) %E 27.17% 27.08% EENHESH
Co Ltd Thailand Marketing and trading in batteries
GWA Energy, Inc BE 22.74% 22.66% BEENHEESH
Taiwan Marketing and trading in batteries
Hanoi Battery Joint Stock Company i) 16.64% 16.58% EREH
Vietnam Manufacturing of batteries
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44.

45,

FTEBEATD @) 44, PRINCIPAL ASSOCIATES (continued)
FREEERTRE
L/ B ZENEHE
BEAT R Place of incorporation/ Effective equity interest TELK
Name of associate registration attributable to the Group Principal activities
2017 2016
it =)
Batteries division (continued)
FBEEEBRAT BA 18.48% 1842%  HERMEEN
Lichton International Ltd Hong Kong Marketing and trading in batteries
EREREMERAT HE 17.74% 17.69% ERRSHEES IR
Ningbo Fengyin Battery Co. Ltd PRC Marketing and trading in batteries
materials
HERAREBAERAT L 19.11% 19.05% EREMARTHER
STL Technology Co., Ltd Taiwan Manufacturing of battery packs
and products
RILEH T REBARAT FIE 23.57% 2349%  EHEHW
T.G. Battery Co (China) Ltd PRC Manufacturing of batteries
RUBHNTIXFE BRAT BA 21.13% 27.63%  EREERREMRIE
T.G. Battery Co (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong Investment holding and provision
of logistic support
BENBERRAEBRCAKITEEARED - Significant influence is exercised through representative on board of directors of

PUEPTE#G iz B8 AT A AR B
B-FTEMEARCEEIRZARALZK
3T o L ERB AR ABR
EL/ASI

NWIEMEARCKRE  RADZHEER
WERIEEH ©

EXRBINAEECHENT - EERR/EEY
ZERNABERFENMZFARNERTE
REECEBENERAERFEE—HAER
#o - ERARBIEMBE AT 2FEN
REEBURIRILE -

BEHREE

A_FE—+TtHE=ZA=+—H%  SILEBHM
BEE70% R MBATPR(ER)ES
BRAT(" PRI | nt PR R & R
BATNAMESL > RPRRI—EE2E
EECWBATERS LEETHERA
0 EMEARA A RE500,000,0007T( £
564,000,000 )

45,

all the above associates.

All associates indicated above are indirectly held by the Company.
All associates operate principally in their respective places of
incorporation/registration. All of the above companies are limited
liability companies.

The investments in associates are solely for shares of results and no
strategic purpose is involved.

The above table lists the associates of the Group which, in the
opinion of the directors, the Group exercised significant influence and
principally affected the results of the year or constituted a substantial
portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
associates would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars
of excessive length.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Subsequent to 31 March 2017, a 70%-owned subsidiary of
GP Batteries, Zhongyin (Ningbo) Battery Co., Ltd ("ZYNB"), has
incorporated a wholly-owned subsidiary, Ningbo GP Pairdeer Batteries
Co. Ltd in the People’s Republic of China, with a registered capital of
RMB500 million (approximately HK$564 million) in connection with an
intended internal corporate restructuring of ZYNB and its subsidiaries.



FINANCIAL SUMMARY OF GP INDUSTRIES LIMITED

GPITRBRLGEHFNE
FelEaR CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
BE=ZH=+—HLEE Year ended 31 March
2017 2017 2016 2016
FNET Figrx* TEIET T
S$'000 HK$'000* S$'000 HK$'000*
= Turnover 1,037,596 5,822,574 1,038,335 5,795,467
Gl Profit before taxation 55,338 310,536 57,004 318,168
18 Taxation (23,899) (134,113) (19,690) (109,900)
FRI R F) Profit after taxation 31,439 176,423 37,314 208,268
IR Non-controlling interests (12,779) (71,711) (14,478) (80,809)
2ERA Profit for the year 18,660 104,712 22,836 127,459
FaRBRinE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
R=B=+—H At 31 March
2017 2017 2016 2016
FHINET Fi#grx* TEIET T
$$°000 HK$'000* S$'000 HK$'000*
KB Investment properties 1,791 9,955 1,672 9,633
W~ R R Property, plant and equipment 247,962 1,378,246 237,507 1,368,421
&N TR Interest in associates 247,725 1,376,930 226,787 1,306,656
AEHERE Available-for-sale investments 6,291 34,966 5,777 33,285
REFIEEE Deferred tax assets 3,549 19,729 3,729 21,485
&R& LFaNFIE Deposits and prepayments 6,063 33,700 3,648 21,018
M EE Intangible assets 18,542 103,062 17,960 103,478
TEEE Current assets 552,301 3,069,855 501,292 2,888,244
mEE Total assets 1,084,224 6,026,443 998,372 5,752,220
FEREEE Non-current liabilities 135,621 753,822 106,943 616,163
TEBaE Current liabilities 443,567 2,465,479 389,356 2,243,314
wmeE Total liabilities 579,188 3,219,301 496,299 2,859,477
SBEE Net assets 505,036 2,807,142 502,073 2,892,743
BREIATEEA AR Equity attributable to owners of the
company 342,475 1,903,579 337,546 1,944,804
ElSadiig & Non-controlling interests 162,561 903,563 164,527 947,939
505,036 2,807,142 502,073 2,892,743
m{E MARKET CAPITALISATION 295,526 1,642,622 302,865 1,744,987

* PAMELRBRB BT BRI B RF AR Rk

KIRE -

*  The Hong Kong dollar equivalents as shown above for illustrative purposes are

converted at the exchange rates ruling as at the respective year end dates.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY OF GP BATTERIES INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
IR HEFRERA EFHRR

HalEaR CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
BE-A=1T—HILEE Year ended 31 March
2017 2017 2016 2016
FHNET Figrx* TEIET FET
$$000 HK$'000* S$'000 HK$'000*
=E ] Turnover 759,842 4,263,929 765,254 4,271,267
FREL A A Profit before taxation 29,215 163,943 28,645 159,882
18 Taxation (14,370) (80,639) (12,956) (72,314)
ENiRESiagl] Profit after taxation 14,845 83,304 15,689 87,568
IR Non-controlling interests (11,357) (63,731) (13,292) (74,189)
DEHF Profit for the year 3,488 19,573 2,397 13,379
FeBERRinE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
R=A=1+—8H At 31 March
2017 2017 2016 2016
FHINET Figrx* THEIET T
$$°000 HK$'000* S$'000 HK$'000*
mE Goodwill on consolidation 11,970 66,533 11,548 66,535
KB Investment properties 1,791 9,955 1,672 9,633
L E YN Property, plant and equipment 201,850 1,121,943 194,039 1,117,976
e UNGIL B Interest in associates 52,722 293,045 46,329 266,929
A ERE Available-for-sale investments 6,291 34,967 5,777 33,285
IEAERIIEE B Deferred tax assets 3,549 19,726 3,729 21,485
e MaMFIE Deposits and prepayments 6,052 33,639 3,095 17,832
TEEE Current assets 384,763 2,138,628 356,474 2,053,861
MEE Total assets 668,988 3,718,436 622,663 3,587,536
FERBasE Non-current liabilities 26,381 146,634 45,602 262,740
nEBaE Current liabilities 335,542 1,865,043 264,513 1,524,018
FEy = Total liabilities 361,923 2,011,677 310,115 1,786,758
FEE Net assets 307,065 1,706,759 312,548 1,800,778
SREATEEE AL Equity attributable to
owners of the company 226,196 1,257,265 231,888 1,336,047
FEIE G RE TR Non-controlling interests 80,869 449,494 80,660 464,731
307,065 1,706,759 312,548 1,800,778
m{E MARKET CAPITALISATION 129,656 720,667 134,403 774,376

* PINELCEB AR ETEE Y REREFEEHZRI® ¥ The Hong Kong dollar equivalents as shown above for illustrative purposes are
T - converted at the exchange rates ruling as at the respective year end dates.
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